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Board of Governors Meeting
Webcast and Teleconference
September 17-18, 2020

WSBA Mission: To serve the public and the members of the Bar, to
ensure the integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

PLEASE NOTE: ALL TIMES ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE
ALL ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS

To participate remotely: Call 1.888.788.0099
Thursday Sept. 17'" - Meeting ID: 982 7788 1006
Friday Sept. 18" — Meeting ID: 991 4629 1672

Thursday, September 17, 2020

9:00 AM - CALL TO ORDER

(] APPROVAL TO FILL VANCANT SEAT - DISTRICT 8 GOVERNOR

[] SWEARING-IN OF DISTRICT 8 GOVERNOR, BRENT WILLIAMS-RUTH

BOARD RETREAT

[] STRATEGIC GOALS

CONSENT CALENDAR & STANDING REPORTS

12:00PM — RECESS
[l WELCOME

[] APPROVE PROPOSAL TO ANNOTATE MINUTES WITH VIDEO LINKS, Pres. Rajeev Majumdar ....... 5

[] CONSENT CALENDAR

A governor may request that an item be removed from the consent calendar without providing a
reason and it will be discussed immediately after the consent calendar. The remaining items will
be voted on en bloc.

e Review & Approval of June 26-27 BOG Meeting MiNULES........cccvvveeeeieeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeernrireeeeeeeeeenans 6
e Review & Approval of July 24 BOG Meeting MINUEES .........ueeviriiiiiiiiiieeeeiee e 14
e Review & Approval of August 29 BOG Meeting MiNULES ........coovevrvrreiieeeeiiiiireeeee e e eeseirrreeeeeeens 19
e Client Protection Board Recommendations ..........ccccviieeiiiiieeiiiiiiee e 21

[] PRESIDENT ELECT’S REPORT ON BOARD RETREAT
[] PRESIDENT’S REPORT
[] EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT .........cocoeiiiieiiieiiisteiisieteestesessesessesesessesessesessssesessesessssessnsesessesensnns 22

[J MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS (30 minutes reserved)
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Overall public comment is limited to 30 minutes and each speaker is limited to 3 minutes. The
President will provide an opportunity for public comment for those in the room and participating

remotely. Public comment will also be permitted at the beginning of each agenda item at the
President’s discretion.

[] PRESENTATION ON WSBA'’S DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION PROGRAMMING

[] REPORTS OF STANDING OR ONGOING BOG COMMITTEES

Committees may “pass” if they have nothing to report. Related agenda items will be taken up

later on the agenda. Each committee is allocated, on average, 3-4 minutes.

e Executive Committee, Pres. Rajeev Majumdar, Chair

e APEX Awards Committee, Gov. Russell Knight, Chair

e Personnel Committee, Gov. Alec Stephens, Chair

e Legislative Committee, Gov. Kyle Sciuchetti, Chair

e Nominations Review Committee, Gov. Jean Kang & Pres-elect Kyle Sciuchetti, Co-Chairs
e Diversity Committee, Gov. Jean Kang, Co-Chair

¢ Long-Range Planning Committee, Gov. Paul Swegle, Chair

e Member Engagement Workgroup, Govs. Kim Hunter and Dan Clark, Co-Chairs

e Budget & Audit Committee, Treas. Dan Clark, Chair

SPECIAL REPORTS

(] JUDICIAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS COMMITTEE REQUEST FOR SUPPORT FOR ADOPTION OF
REVISIONS TO JISCR 13, Vicky Cullinane

] EQUITY & DISPARITY WORK GROUP UPDATE, Chair Gov. Alec Stephens

[0 GOVERNOR LIAISON REPORTS
This is an opportunity for Governors to make reports related to their liaison assignments.

AGENDA ITEMS & UNFINISHED BUSINESS

] BUDGET & AUDIT COMMITTEE MATTERS, Treas. Dan Clark, Chair and Chief Financial Officer Jorge

Perez
e Approval of the 2021 Keller Deduction, Julie Shankland..........cccovvveeeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeneecireeeeeee e,
e Approval of the Sections Administration Per-Member-Charge, Kevin Plachy
e Presentation and Approval of the WSBA FY21 Budget, Jorge Perez......cccccovvveeevieeiievccnvveennennn.
e Approval of the 2022 and 2023 WSBA Member License Fee, Jorge Perez, Dan Clark

Friday, September 18, 2020

[] ANNUAL DISCUSSION WITH THE DEANS OF WASHINGTON STATE LAW SCHOOLS, Annette Cla

rk,

Seattle University School of Law Dean; Jacob Rooksby, Gonzaga School of Law Dean; and Mario

Barnes, University of Washington School of Law Dean

] APPROVE RULE CHANGES PROPOSED BY CIVIL LITIGATION RULES REVISION TASK FORCE,
Chair Dan Bridges
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] MCLE BOARD REQUEST FOR SUPPORT OF THEIR PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO APR 11 RE ETHICS
REQUIREMENT, Chair Asia WISt w.eceeiiiiiiiieeiee ettt e e e e seaaaree e e e e s 273

1 APPROVE PROPOSED RPC AMENDMENT AS RECOMMENDED BY THE AD HOC COMMITTEE TO

INVESTIGATE ALTERNATIVES TO MANDATORY MALPRACTICE INSURANCE, Gov. Kyle Sciuchetti
and Chief Disciplinary Counsel DOUZ ENAE ......c..uuviveiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee ettt e e e seireeeee e e e e sessneaes 394

12:00PM — RECESS
[ APPROVE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

] COUNCIL ON PUBLIC DEFENSE MATTERS, Professor Robert Boruchowitz

e Updated Performance Guidelines For Persistent Offender Cases ......cccccvvevveeeiriiieeeeinieeeeennne 405
e Covid Guidance for Public Defense OffiCes ......cuiiiiiiiiiie i 441

] APPROVE REQUEST TO INCREASE SIZE OF THE LAW CLERK BOARD, Chair Ben Phillabaum, Interim
Associate Directory for Regulatory Services Renata de Carvalho Garcia........cccoeeevvvvveeeeeeeencnnnnee. 447

] WASHINGTON STATE BAR FOUNDATION ITEMS, President Kristina Larry.......oeeeveveeeeeveveenenen. 453

e Approve FY21 Trustee Appointments
e Approve Proposed Change to Funding Structure for the Powerful Communities Project

GOVERNANCE TRANSITION

[] PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS, SWEARING IN OF NEW GOVERNORS AND OFFICERS, AND
RECOGNITION OF OUTGOING GOVERNORS

INFORMATION
I CT<T o<1 =1 W ] o] o 1 1 F=14 (o] 1 TSR 462
o Monthly FINGNCIal StatemMENTS ...uuviiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e e e e e e e e e seaarreeeeeeees 477
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TO: WSBA Board of Governors
FROM: President Rajeev D. Majumdar
DATE: September 8, 2020

RE: Executive Committee’s Proposal to annotate WSBA Board of Governor meeting minutes with video
links

ACTION: Approve proposal to annotate WSBA Board of Governor meeting minutes with video links.

The WSBA Bylaws direct the WSBA Executive Director to ensure that minutes are “made and kept of all BOG
meetings” and that these shall, at a minimum, record the members of the Board in attendance, the date and time
of the meeting, the agenda of the meeting, the subject and results of any final action taken, and a reasonable
summary of the issues and points raised during discussion. See WSBA Bylaws Section IV.B.5 and Section VII.A.1.d.
Consistent with Roberts Rules of Order, WSBA’s minutes are intended to be an objective report of what was done,
rather than what was said. WSBA also maintains recordings of the Board meeting, which accurately capture a richer
record of our discussions and deliberations.

Because this context is often useful to fully understand the actions taken by the Board, and the staff already create
video bookmarks for each agenda item, it is the consensus and recommendation of the Executive Committee that
we annotate our Board meeting minutes with links to the video recording beginning with the minutes for the June,

July, and August meetings, which are on the consent calendar for approval in September.

In Service,

Rajeev D. Majumdar, WSBA President

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539 | 800-945-WSBA | 206-443-WSBA | questions@wsba.org | www.wsba.org


https://www.wsba.org/docs/default-source/about-wsba/governance/proposed-bylaw-amendments/bylaws-amended-may-17-2018-108ba66f2f6d9654cb471ff1f00003f4f.pdf?sfvrsn=286003f1_19

BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEETING

Minutes
Held Virtually
June 26-27, 2020

The meeting of the Board of Governors of the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) was
called to order by President Rajeev D. Majumdar on Friday June 26, 2020 at 8:33 AM. Governors
in attendance were:
Hunter M. Abell
Sunitha Anjilvel
Daniel D. Clark
Peter J. Grabicki
Carla Higginson
Kim Hunter
Jean Kang
Russell Knight
Tom McBride
Bryn Peterson
Kyle D. Sciuchetti
Alec Stephens
Paul Swegle
Judge Brian Tollefson (ret.)

Also in attendance were Immediate Past President William D. Pickett, Gov-Elect Matthew
Dresden, Gov-Elect Brent Williams-Ruth, Interim Executive Director Terra Nevitt, General Counsel
Julie Shankland, Chief Financial Officer Jorge Perez, Chief Disciplinary Counsel Doug Ende, Chief
Regulatory Counsel Jean McElroy, Interim Director Advancement Kevin Plachy, Executive
Administrator Shelly Bynum, Nancy Hawkins (Family Law Section), James E. Macpherson
(Washington Defense Trial Lawyers), and Betsy Miale-Gix (Washington State Association for
Justice).

Consent Calendar (video recording link)
Pres. Majumdar asked if anyone wanted to remove an item from the consent calendar. Gov.

Swegle moved for approval. Motion passed unanimously. Treas. Clark was not present for the
vote.
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President's Report (video recording link)
Pres. Majumdar honored local hero recipients chosen by the Whatcom and Skagit County Bars,
Heather Powell and Heather Webb.

Interim Executive Director's Report (video recording link)

Interim Executive Director Nevitt referred to her written report and provided a brief summary.
She introduced Washington Supreme Court Justice Mary Yu to answer questions with regard to
the process for approving revised rules for discipline and incapacity. Discussion followed.

President-Elect Report on July Board Retreat (video recording link)
Pres-Elect Sciuchetti provided a report and preview of the July Board Retreat.

Interview and Selection of 2020-2021 WSBA President-Elect (video recording link)

Pres. Majumdar presented the only candidate for 2020-21 Pres-Elect, Gov. Brian Tollefson. Gov.
Tollefson made remarks. Gov. Grabicki moved for the election of Gov. Brian Tollefson. Discussion
followed. Motion passed unanimously.

First Read: Ratification of Emergency Bylaw Amendment Art. VI.G Re Governor Elections (video
recording link)

Pres. Majumdar presented the topic and referred to the materials. He noted that this was a
required first read and no action would be taken.

Member & Public Comments (video recording link)
Theresa Butler, President of the Mason County Bar Association and James E. Macpherson

provided public comment.

Reports of Standing or Ongoing BOG Committees (video recording link)

Executive Committee. Pres. Majumdar reported on the work of the Committee, which met last
week to plan for the July Board Meeting as well as meet with the Client Protection Fund Board
and the Committee on Professional Ethics.

APEX Awards Committee. No report.

Personnel Committee. Gov. Stephens reported on the work of the Committee. He noted that the
performance evaluation of the Interim Executive Director Nevitt would be taken up during this
meeting, as well as the Committee's recommendation to remove Director Nevitt's interim status.

Legislative Committee. Gov. Sciuchetti reported on the work of the Committee, including a
recommended policy regarding legislative activity of sections that will be taken up later on the
agenda.

Nominations Committee. Gov. Sciuchetti reported on the work of the Committee. He noted that
its role is to appoint committee chairs for the next fiscal year and it will be meeting to do so
tomorrow.
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Diversity Committee. No report.

Long-Range Planning Committee. Gov. Swegle reported on the work of the Committee, noting
that with so many changes, it has not felt timely so engage in long-range planning. He shared
some suggestions for future long-range planning. Discussion followed

Member Engagement Workgroup. No report.

Budget and Audit Committee. Pres. Majumdar read Treas. Clark's report regarding the work of
the Committee. He provided details on the May financials noting that we have gone from a
budgeted deficit to a substantial surplus. Discussion followed.

The WSBA Response to Our National Dialogue (video recording link part 1, part 2)

Pres. Majumdar introduced this portion of the agenda including the purpose and intent behind
it. He listed and recognized the many entities that have written publically and to the WSBA
calling for action.

Approval of Statement by Council on Public Defense. Council on Public Defense Vice-Chair Travis
Stearns presented the Council's statement for approval as provided in the materials. Discussion
followed. Gov. Grabicki moved for approval of the statement. Motion passed unanimously.

Mission Statement of the WSBA. Gov. Higginson presented the proposed revised mission
statement as presented in the materials. Gov. Higginson moved for approval of the proposal.
Discussion followed. Gov. Stephens moved to amend to add, "with a strong commitment to
serving its members and the public." Discussion followed. Gov. Stephens moved to table to have
this reviewed by as many people in the association as possible. Motion to table failed 5-7.
Discussion followed. The motion to amend the proposal passed 9-3. Gov. Swegle moved to
amend the proposal again to make it a proposed amendment to the mission statement for
consideration and input, after which the Board will take it up again. It was clarified that the effect
of the amendment would be to push the proposal out for comment and then put it back on a
future agenda. Treas. Clark moved to call the question. Motion to call the question passed
unanimously. Second motion to amend passed unanimously. The underlying motion, as amended
twice passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the votes.

Reports of Task Forces, Work Groups, Liaisons, and Other WSBA Entities (video recording link)
Editorial Advisory Committee. Pres. Majumdar introduced Chair Ralph Flick and recognized the
staff and committee for the magazine's recent selection as an honoree of the Public Relations
Society of America (PRSA) - Puget Sound Chapter Board of Directors. Chair Flick referred to the
materials and provided an overview of the work and approach of the committee. Chair Flick also
provided information about the Letter to the Editor Policy. Discussion followed.

The WSBA Response to Our National Dialogue (Continued) (video recording link)
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Discussion with WSBA Diversity Committee Re Reaffirming the WSBA's Current 2013 Diversity and
Inclusion Plan. Diversity Committee member Serena Sayani and Gov. Anjilvel presented the
Committee's proposal, and specific actions, as presented in the materials. Discussion followed.

Reports of Task Forces, Work Groups, Liaisons, and Other WSBA Entities (Continued) (video
recording link)

Corona Task Force. Co-Chairs Michael Cherry and Kevin Plachy presented an overview of the work
of the internal and external task forces to respond to the global pandemic. Discussion followed.

Council on Public Defense Matters (video recording link)

Proposed Charter Revision. Vice-Chair Travis Stearns presented the Council's revised charter as
provided in the materials, which will remove term limits for the Supreme Court Justice position
on the Council. He noted Chief Justice Stephens affirms the proposal. Gov. Stephens moved for
approval. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the vote.

Comment on Amending CrR 3.1(f), CrRLJ 3.1(f), and JuCrR 9.3(a) to Require that Judges Consider
Defense Requests for Expert Funds Ex Parte. Council Member Sophia Byrd McSherry presented
the proposed comment as provided in the materials. She noted that the comment was initially
presented to the Board in April and that since the April meeting, the Criminal Law Section has
reviewed the proposal and is in support. Gov. McBride moved for approval. Motion passed
unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the vote.

Reports of Task Forces, Work Groups, Liaisons, and Other WSBA Entities (Continued) (video
recording link)

Ad Hoc Committee to Investigate Alternatives to Mandatory Malpractice Insurance for
Consideration by WSBA and the Washington Supreme Court. Gov. Sciuchetti presented on the
work of the Committee, including some of the alternatives they've explored, noting that he
anticipates bring a proposal to the Board in late summer. Discussion followed.

Pro Bono and Public Service Committee Proposed Amendments to WSBA Bylaws Art. 111(B)(4),
APR 1(e), and GR 24 to Reduce Barriers to Access for Emeritus Pro Bono Status (video recording
link)

Co-Chair Nick Larson and Committee Members Althea Paulson and Bonnie Aslagson presented
the proposed amendments of the Committee as provided in the materials. Gov. Higginson moved
for approval of the proposal. Pres. Majumdar noted that the Bylaws change requires a second
read. If this passes, his intent would be to send all the proposals together at the same time.
Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the vote.

Proposed Comment to Northwest Justice Project 2020 Private Attorney Involvement Plan (video
recording link)

Co-Chair Nick Larson presented a proposed comment in support of the Northwest Justice
Project's 2020 plan for private attorney involvement. Gov. Stephens moved for approval. Motion
passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the vote.

APEX Awards Committee Recommendations for 2020 Awards (video recording link)
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Gov. Knight noted that out of respect for the nominees and those that won't be receiving an
award, the materials for this agenda item were provided confidentially. He requested a single
motion approving the entire slate. Gov. Stephens moved for approval. Motion passed
unanimously. Gov. Higginson abstained. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the vote.

Budget and Audit Committee Items (video recording link)

Second Read: Proposed Amendment to WSBA Bylaws Art. I1l.1.5 Re License Fee Exemptions Due to
Hardship. Chief Regulatory Counsel Jean McElroy presented the proposal and the rationale for it.
Discussion followed. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for
the vote. Pres. Majumdar noted that he would send the amendment to the Court after the July
meeting along with the other bylaws amendment. There were no unresolved objections to this
course of action.

Proposed Reduction of the Client Protection Fund Assessment. Gov. Peterson moved for approval.
Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not present for the vote.

The WSBA Response to Our National Dialogue (Continued) (video recording link)

WSBA Equity and Disparity Workgroup. Pres. Majumdar introduced the proposal as presented in
the materials. Gov. Sciuchetti moved for approval. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Higginson
and Tollefson abstained. Govs. Grabicki, Hunter, and Kang were not present for the vote.

Resolution of the WSBA in Affirming the Rule 6 Program's Value and Role in Providing an
Additional Path to Justice for Underrepresented Communities. Gov. Abell presented the
resolution as provided in the materials. Discussion followed. Gov. Abell moved to amend the
resolution to add to the second to last paragraph the following language, "Be it further resolved
that the Board of Governors respectfully encourages the Washington Supreme Court to amend
the Order Granting Diploma Privilege and Temporarily Modifying Admission & Practice Rules
dated June 12, 2020 to include qualified graduates of the Program.” Motion to amend passed
unanimously. The resolution as amended passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Kang were not
present for the votes.

Budget and Audit Committee Item (Continued) (video recording link)

Results of Process and Execution Audit. Joseph Purvis and Mitchell Hansen of Clark Nuber
presented. Discussion followed, including remarks by Treas. Clark. Chief Financial Officer Jorge
Perez reported on actions taken to respond to the audit results.

The WSBA Response to Our National Dialogue (Continued) (video recording link)

Resolution of the WSBA in Response to National Dialogue. Pres. Majumdar presented the
resolution and suggested adding the two statements received after it's drafting from the
Washington State Bar Foundation and the Association of Washington Assistant Attorneys
General and the Solidarity Caucus of the Professional Staff Organizing Committee. Gov. Sciuchetti
moved for approval. Discussion followed. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter, Kang, and
Knight were not present for the vote.

Recommendation Re Proposed Policy Re Legislative Activity of Sections (video recording link)
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Govs. Sciuchetti and Higginson presented the proposed policy as provided in the materials.
Discussion followed. Gov. Stephens proposed to amend the proposed policy so that it reads
"..supersedes and replaces any and all prior policies on the same subject as it applies to sections."
Discussion followed. Gov. Grabicki moved to table. Motion to table failed for lack of a second.
Motion to call the question passed unanimously. Govs. Grabicki, Hunter, Kang, and Knight were
not present for the vote. Motion to amend passed 9-2. Govs. Hunter, Kang, and Knight were not
present for the vote. Motion to approve the policy as amended was approved 10-1. Govs. Hunter,
Kang, and Knight was not present for the vote. Pres. Majumdar asked Gov. Grabicki to reach out
to concerned sections for a possible future amendment to the policy.

Diploma Privilege (video recording link part 1, part 2, part 3)
Pres. Majumdar introduced and provided the procedural background on the topic.

APR Board Permission. Treas. Clark moved for approval of the APR Board's proposal. Discussion
followed, including public comment. Motion passed unanimously. Gov. Tollefson abstained.
Govs. Grabicki, Hunter, Kang, Knight, and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Maintain Existing Refund Policy. Treas. Clark deferred to Chief McElroy to present information on
the proposal. Discussion followed including public comment. Motion passed unanimously. Govs.
Grabicki, Hunger, Kang, and Knight were not present for the vote.

Request for Contingency Plan in the Event the Summer Bar Exam Cannot be Held Safely. Pres.
Majumdar introduced JD graduates Efrain Hudnell and Katie Koch and they presented concerns
about the need to provide an alternative path to licensure for those not benefiting diploma
privilege in the event the exam cannot be held safely. Discussion followed, including public
comment. Gov. Stephens moved that the Board ask staff to do contingency planning regarding
LLM exam takers in the event we have to cancel the July exam and find other ways to assist them.
Motion passed 4-2. Govs. Higginson and Tollefson abstained. Govs. Abell, Grabicki, Hunter, Kang,
Knight, and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Additional discussion took place regarding diploma privilege, including additional public
comment. Gov. Higginson moved that we forward member comments about diploma privilege
and the future of the bar exam to the Court. Gov. Higginson accepted a friendly amendment to
submit the comments we've received to date in the redacted form we have in our materials and
that the President be directed to circulate the Court's decision to the members for comment by
July 31. Motion failed for lack of a quorum.

The meeting resumed on June 27, 2020. Pres. Majumdar ruled on a dispute regarding Roberts
Rules of Order. He ruled that abstentions are noted and recorded but do not count as a yay or
nay vote.

The Board returned to discussion on Gov. Higginson's motion from the previous day. Motion
passed unanimously. Govs. Hunter and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Evaluation of the Interim Executive Director and Consideration of Removal of Interim Title (video
recording link part 1, part 2, part 3)
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Gov. Stephens walked through the materials provided in the public and confidential materials
and presented the results of the evaluation.

Pres. Majumdar announced the basis and purpose for moving into executive session and that
public session would resume at 9:40 AM. The Board moved into Executive Session at 9:03. Pres.
Majumdar announced extensions of executive session to 10:20 AM, 10:45 AM, and 11:05 AM.

Pres. Majumdar resumed public session at 11:05 AM.

Gov. Stephens presented and moved for acceptance of the rating and qualitative statement in
response to the evaluation of the Executive Director. Motion passed unanimously. Gov.
Higginson abstained. Govs. Abell and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Gov. Grabicki moved to remove the title of interim subject to negotiation of a contract to be led
by Pres. Majumdar and Pres-elect Sciuchetti. Gov. Stephens confirmed this was also the
recommendation of the Personnel Committee. Discussion followed. Motion passed unanimously.
Govs. Higginson and Stephens abstained. Govs. Abell and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Committee on Professional Ethics Matters (video recording link)

Proposed Amendments to Comment 4 to RPC 1.16 and New Additional Washington Comments 16
to RPC 1.13. Committee Member Brooks Holland presented the Committee's proposal.
Discussion followed. Gov. Grabicki moved for approval of the comments. Gov. Peterson moved
for an amendment to remove the "however" clause. It was accepted as a friendly amendment.
Motion passed unanimously. Gov. Hunter abstained. Govs. Abell and Swegle were not present
for the vote.

Proposed Amendment to RPC 7.2(b)(2), 5.4, and 1.5(e)(2) Re Fee Sharing with Nonprofit Lawyer
Referral Services. Professional Responsibility Counsel Jeanne Marie Clavere and Brooks Holland
presented the Committee's proposal. Discussion followed. Gov. Grabicki moved to propose the
amendment to the Court. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Abell and Swegle were not present
for the vote.

Interviews and Selection of 2020-2023 WSBA At-Large Governor (video recording link part 1, part
2, part 3)

Pres. Majumdar presented the proposed process for the at-large election as presented in the
materials. Gov. Stephens moved for approval. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Abell, Grabicki,
Hunter, and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Pres. Majumdar administered the election. The first candidate was Kim Sandher who provided
her opening remarks and responded to the standard questions. The next candidate was Kristine
Kuenzli who provided her opening remarks and responded to the standard questions. Jean
Cotton followed and withdrew her candidacy. Michael Hall followed and provided his opening
remarks and responded to the standard questions. Candidate Connie Wan followed with her
opening remarks and responses to the questions. Candidate Lisa Mansfield followed with her
statement and responses to the standard questions. Candidate C. Olivia Irwin followed with her
presentation and responses to the standard questions. Luis Beltran followed with his
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presentation and responses to the standard questions. Laura Sierra was the next candidate. She
presented her initial statement and answered the standard questions. Allison Foreman was the
next candidate. She presented her initial statement and answered the standard questions.
Discussion followed. The Board moved to its first round of voting. The results were 6 votes for
Lisa Mansfield, 3 votes for Kristine Kuenzli, 2 votes for Sandher, and 2 votes for Wan. Gov. Hunter
was not present for the vote.

With no candidate receiving more than 50% of the votes, Pres. Majumdar announced that we
would move to a run-off election between the top two vote getters, Kristine Kuenzli and Lisa
Mansfield. Discussion followed. Gov. Knight moved to invite the top two vote getters back for a
30 second response to anything that came up in the discussion. Gov. Knight accepted a friendly
amendment to give them each 2 minutes. Motion passed unanimously. Gov. Hunter was not
present for the vote. The Board moved to its second round of voting. The results were 11 votes
for Lisa Mansfield and 3 votes for Kristine Kuenzli.

Proposed Policy: Transparent Salary Information (video recording link)

Pres. Majumdar noted that there is no proposal before the Board and provided an opportunity
for discussion. Gov. Stephens moved to send the topic to the Personnel Committee. Discussion
followed. Gov. Stephens withdrew his motion. Gov. Higginson moved to have published on the
WSBA website (1) the written compensation policy, (2) a range of all salaries and paid
classification bands, (3) a list of current starting, mid points, and ceilings, (4) a list of current
employee job titles, and (5) a written summary of other benefits. Discussion followed. Gov.
Grabicki suggested that the President, President Elect, and Treasurer work with the leadership
team to develop a proposal for July that doesn't not involve identifying individual salaries. Gov.
Sciuchetti moved to amend Gov. Higginson's motion to adopt Gov. Grabicki's proposal. Pres.
Majumdar recommended that the language be amended to allow for more than one proposal.
Gov. Sciuchetti accepted that as a friendly amendment. Amended motion passed unanimously.
Govs. Abell and Swegle were not present for the vote.

Governor Roundtable (video recording link)
Gov. Anjilvel requested that the Governors make a donation to the Washington State Bar

Foundation.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, Pres. Majumdar adjourned the meeting at 5:12 PM on Saturday,
June 27, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

Terra Nevitt
WSBA Interim Executive Director & Secretary
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEETING

Minutes
Held Virtually
July 24, 2020

The meeting of the Board of Governors of the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) was
called to order by President Rajeev D. Majumdar on Friday, July 24, 2020 at 8:33 AM. Governors
in attendance were:
Hunter M. Abell
Sunitha Anjilvel
Daniel D. Clark
Peter J. Grabicki
Carla Higginson
Jean Kang
Russell Knight
Tom McBride
Bryn Peterson
Kyle D. Sciuchetti
Alec Stephens
Judge Brian Tollefson (ret.)

Also in attendance were Immediate Past President William D. Pickett, Gov-Elect Brett Purtzer,
Gov-Elect Matthew Dresden, Gov-Elect Lisa Mansfield, Gov-Elect Brent Williams-Ruth, Interim
Executive Director Terra Nevitt, General Counsel Julie Shankland, Chief Financial Officer Jorge
Perez, Chief Disciplinary Counsel Doug Ende, Chief Regulatory Counsel Jean McElroy, Chief
Communications Officer Sara Niegowski, Interim Director Advancement Kevin Plachy, Equity &
Justice Manager Diana Singleton, Executive Administrator Shelly Bynum, Nancy Hawkins (Family
Law Section), and James E. Macpherson (Washington Defense Trial Lawyers).

President's Report (video recording link)

Pres. Majumdar welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting, noting that the Board had originally
planned to meet in Skamania County. Pres. Majumdar covered electronic meeting etiquette. He
denounced racism and explained the steps that are being taken in response to the June meeting,
including the ombudsperson process, putting a pause on policy setting, and delaying the retreat
until we can identify a skilled trainer. Pres. Majumdar highlighted WSBA's work in providing three
free ethics CLEs and provided an update on the Equity & Disparity Work Group.
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Pres. Majumdar presented the Local Hero Award to Court Commissioner Jeff Baker, who was
nominated by the Klickitat-Skamania Bar Association.

Pres. Majumdar announced the resignation of Gov. Kim Hunter and Pres-Elect Sciuchetti read a
statement from her. Gov. Stephens moved that we fill the unexpired term of Gov. Hunter with
Gov-Elect Brent Williams Ruth. Gov-Elect Brent Williams Ruth requested that we come back to
the matter at a later time. Gov. Stephens withdrew his motion.

President-Elect's Report on Board Retreat (video recording link)
Pres-Elect Sciuchetti reported on his plans for the Board retreat.

Interim Executive Director's Report (video recording link)
Interim Executive Director Nevitt provided her report.

WSBA Treasurer Election (video recording link)
Pres. Majumdar administered the Treasurer's election. The only candidate, current Treas. Clark
was elected unanimously.

Member and Public Comments (video recording link)
Public comment was taken regarding comments made by Gov. Higginson at the June 2020
board meeting.

Governor Roundtable
There were no Governor Roundtable items.

Reports of Standing or Ongoing BOG Committees (video recording link)

Executive Committee. Pres. Majumdar reported on the Executive Committee's upcoming work.

APEX Awards Committee. Gov. Knight noted that Pres. Majumdar and Pres-Elect Sciuchetti have
been notifying the award winners and the Committee is looking at ways to honor the award
winners.

Personnel Committee. Gov. Stephens reported on the Committee's upcoming work including the
employment contract and term for the Executive Director.

Legislative Committee. Gov. Sciuchetti noted that the Committee has not met while the
Legislature is not in session and that the Committee is looking to meet with the Legislative Review
Committee once the committee chairs have been appointed.

Nominations Review Committee. Pres-Elect Sciuchetti thanked Pam Inglesby for her work with
the committee, noting her retirement, and welcomed Paris Eriksen to the role.

Diversity Committee. Gov. Kang reported on the Committee's last meeting, which focused on
concerns about the Board of Governors and diversity. The Committee also reviewed letters in
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response to Gov. Higginson's comments at the June 2020 board meeting and has formed a
workgroup to review proposed changes to the WSBA mission statement. The Committee is also
reviewing the rule change that the MCLE Board intends to propose this fall.

Public Comment Continued (video recording link)
Pres. Majumdar read a public comment from former Governor Andrea Jarmon. Discussion
followed.

Reports of Standing or Ongoing BOG Committees Continued (video recording link)

Long-Range Planning Committee. No report.

Member Engagement Workgroup. Gov. Clark's report was read in which he noted that the
Committee did not meet in July and expressed appreciation to former Gov. Kim Hunter for her
work on, and in creating, the Committee.

Budget & Audit Committee. Gov. Clark’s report was provided in the meeting materials.

Second Read/Action: Ratification of Emergency Bylaw Amendment Art. VI.G RE Governor
Elections (video recording link)

Gov. Grabicki moved for approval of the Emergency Bylaw Amendment. Motion passed
unanimously. Govs. Higginson and Tollefson were not present for the vote.

Second Read/Action: Pro Bono and Public Service Committee Proposed Amendments to WSBA
Bylaws Art. IlI(B)(4) to Reduce Barriers to Access for Emeritus Pro Bono Status (video recording
link)

Pres. Majumdar introduced the item. Gov. Grabicki moved for approval. Discussion and
comments from Pro Bono and Public Service Co-Chair Nick Larsen followed. Motion passed
unanimously. Govs. Higginson and Tollefson were not present for the vote.

Pres. Majumdar recessed the meeting until 10:30 AM. The meeting resumed at 10:30 AM.

Discussion with Law Clerk Board (video recording link)

Gov. Abell introduced Law Clerk Board Chair Ben Phillabaum who provided an overview of the
program and the work of the Board. Board member Alexa Ritchie also provided some brief
comments as a graduate of the program herself. Discussion and public comment followed.

Governor Liaison Reports (video recording link)

Gov. Stephens shared his work with the Civil Rights Law Section and noted their comments in the
materials. Pres-Elect Sciuchetti reported on his work as the Chair of the Committee to Investigate
Alternatives to Mandatory Malpractice Insurance.

Report of the Court Rules and Procedures Committee and Proposal RE The Role of Court Rules
and Procedures Committee (video recording link)
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Chair Jefferson Coulter reported on the Committee’s response to the Director Nevitt and
President Majumdar's request for input on the future direction of the Committee as provided in
the materials. Discussion followed. Pres. Majumdar restated the three requests of the
Committee: (1) request that the Court forward all meritorious rule proposals to the Committee,
(2) invite one justice to attend meetings to improve coordination and communication, and (3)
charge the Committee with responding directly to the Court on proposed rules. Discussion
followed. Gov. Stephens moved that the recommendations be forwarded to the Court. Pres.
Majumdar suggested that the third issue be bifurcated and Gov. Stephens accepted this
suggestion. Pres. Majumdar restated the question: on request 1 and 2, authorize the Committee
to make those recommendations to the Court. Motion passed unanimously. Discussion on item
3 continued. Gov. Stephens withdrew his motion on item 3.

Consent Calendar (video recording link)

Gov. Stephens moved that the June meeting minutes be pulled and referred to the Executive
Committee to add more detail about the discussion around the mission statement and the at-
large election. Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Higginson and Tollefson were not present for
the vote.

Report of the Civil Litigation Rules Revision Work Group (video recording link)
Chair Bridges presented on the work of the Work Group.

Budget & Audit Committee Items (video recording link part 1, part 2)

Review FY21 Draft WSBA Budget. Chief Financial Officer Jorge Perez presented the first draft of
the WSBA budget for FY21. Discussion followed. CFO Perez noted that a second budget would be
presented at the August 10 Budget & Audit Committee meeting.

Proposal for Governors to Attend 2020 NCBP Virtual Annual Meeting. Pres. Majumdar presented
the proposal as provided in the materials. Gov. Clark moved for approval. Motion passed
unanimously. Gov. Higginson was not present for the vote.

Proposed Revisions to WSBA Mission Statement (video recording link)

Gov. Knight moved to table consideration of the WSBA mission statement to the September
meeting to allow for greater input. Discussion followed. Gov. Grabicki moved to amend the
motion to state that we will not change the mission statement at the present time. Discussion
followed. It was clarified that the intent of the amendment was to table the matter indefinitely.
Gov. Knight accepted the amendment as friendly. Discussion on the amended motion followed.
Motion passed unanimously. Govs. Grabicki and Higginson were not present for the vote.

Proposed Policy: Transparent Salary Information (video recording link)

Director Nevitt and Treas. Clark presented the proposal as provided in the materials. Gov.
Stephens moved for approval with a change to clarify that job titles should be listed in their
generic form. Gov. Grabicki moved to table. Motion failed for lack of a second. Discussion
followed. Gov. Stephens restated and explained his motion, which would adopt a revised policy
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and change the framework in the procedure to include "generic" job titles. Motion passed 10-1.
Gov. Higginson was not present for the vote.

WSBA Committee and Board Chair Appointments (video recording link)

Pres-Elect Sciuchetti presented the chair appointments in the materials. Gov. Peterson moved
for approval. Motion passed unanimously. Gov. Grabicki abstained. Gov. Higginson was not
present for the vote.

Governor Roundtable (video recording link)
Discussion took place regarding whether or not the Board should convene for a meeting in
August.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, Pres. Majumdar adjourned the meeting at 2:15 PM on Friday,
July 24, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

Terra Nevitt
WSBA Interim Executive Director & Secretary
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS SPECIAL MEETING
Minutes
Held Virtually
August 29, 2020
(video recording link)

The meeting of the Board of Governors of the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) was
called to order by President Rajeev D. Majumdar on Saturday, August 29, 2020 at 9:00 AM.
Governors in attendance were:

Sunitha Anjilvel
Daniel D. Clark
Peter J. Grabicki
Jean Kang
Russell Knight
Tom McBride
Bryn Peterson
Kyle D. Sciuchetti
Alec Stephens
Paul Swegle
Judge Brian Tollefson (ret.)

Also in attendance were Immediate Past President William D. Pickett, Gov-Elect Lisa Mansfield,
Gov-Elect Brent Williams, Gov-Elect Lauren Boyd, Gov-Elect Brett Purtzer, Gov-Elect Mathew
Dresden, Interim Executive Director Terra Nevitt, General Counsel Julie Shankland, Chief
Disciplinary Counsel Doug Ende, Executive Administrator Shelly Bynum, Disciplinary Program
Manager Thea Jennings, Nancy Hawkins (Family Law Section), and James E. Macpherson
(Washington Defense Trial Lawyers).

Ad Hoc Committee to Investigate Alternatives to Mandatory Malpractice Insurance Report

Gov. Kyle Sciuchetti reported that the Committee had developed a proposed alternative for
potential submission to the Washington Supreme Court, which is currently considering a proposal
for mandating malpractice, with comments due September 30, 2020. Professor Spitzer presented
the proposal to amend RPC 1.4 as provided in the materials. Committee member Michael Cherry
noted his agreement with the proposal as a compromise that protects the public but does not
mandate acquisition of malpractice insurance. Discussion followed regarding the details related
to the scope of disclosure, informed consent, and the level of coverage. Gov. Stephens moved to
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table the discussion to September and with direction to WSBA staff to broadly inform the
membership of the proposal and that it is being tabled for action in September and to provide
ample time for full discussion in September before a vote. Motion passed unanimously.

Committee Chair Appointments

Pres-Elect Sciuchetti presented the appointments and noted his interest in revisiting the
committee-chair appointment process in the future. Gov. Grabicki moved for approval. Motion
passed unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, Pres. Majumdar adjourned the meeting at 10:00 AM on
Saturday, August 29, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

Terra Nevitt
WSBA Interim Executive Director & Secretary
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Office of General Counsel
Nicole Gustine, Assistant General Counsel

TO: WSBA Board of Governors

FROM: Nicole Gustine, Assistant General Counsel

DATE: August 27, 2020

RE: Confidentiality of Client Protection Board Recommendations

Previously, Client Protection Board (CPB) recommendations have been provided to the Board of Governors
(BOG) for consideration and action during executive session. Since the requirements of the Open Public
Meetings Act will not allow for CPB recommendations to be considered in executive session going forward,
the BOG will consider and act on the recommendations in public session. However, per Court Rule, all of
the materials, reports, and deliberations shall not be public. (APR 15 Procedural Regulations, Regulation
13(b)).

APR 15
CLIENT PROTECTION FUND PROCEDURAL REGULATIONS
REGULATION 13. CONFIDENTIALITY

(a) Matters Which Are Public. On approved applications, the facts and
circumstances which generated the loss, the Client Protection Board's
recommendations to the Trustees with respect to payment of a claim, the
amount of claim, the amount of loss as determined by the Client Protection
Board, the name of the lawyer, LLLT, or LPO causing the loss, and the amount
of payment authorized and made, shall be public.

(b) Matters Which Are Not Public. The Client Protection Board's file,
including the application and response, supporting documentation, and staff
investigative report, and deliberations of any application; the name of the
applicant, unless the applicant consents; and the name of the lawyer, LLLT, or
LPO unless the lawyer, LLLT, or LPO consents or unless the lawyer's, LLLT's, or
LPO's name is made public pursuant to these rules and regulations, shall not
be public.

The following report of CPB recommendations contains only pre-approved applications, and is therefore
provided to you as a Trustee, confidentially. The report will not appear in the BOG meeting’s public session
materials. Please take the time to review the materials thoroughly prior to the BOG public session
meeting. Please do not discuss any details regarding the matters, including the names or amounts
related to the matter, at the public session meeting. If you have questions about the recommendations
that you wish to bring up during public session, please use anonymous identifiers (i.e., use “Client A,” etc.,
or refer to the matter by number). If you have in depth questions that cannot be addressed without
referring to a specific client or gift amount, or you wish to act other than as recommended by the Client
Protection Board, you may individually contact the Secretary of the CPB (Nicole Gustine) prior to the
meeting, and, if necessary, the matter will be brought back for action at a subsequent BOG meeting.

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539
206-727-8237 | nicoleg@wsba.org | www.wsba.org
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TO: WSBA Board of Governors
FROM: Interim Executive Director Terra Nevitt
DATE: September 9, 2020

RE: Executive Director’s Report

COVID19 Response

The WSBA Coronavirus Internal Task Force has continued working to deliver resources and programs to support
WSBA members and the public during these unprecedented times. In addition to the activities outlined below, check-
our WSBA’s COVID19 Resource Page at https://www.wsba.org/for-legal-professionals/member-support/covid-19.

e |n order to better support member through, the WSBA CLE Summer Sale, which ran from July 7 — July 31,
offered an increased discount of 50% off on-demand seminars.

e Continue to promote the Reopening Safely: A Guide for Washington State Law Offices which is available
here. This guide was created in collaboration with the external Coronavirus Response Task Force.

e Provided guidance to WSBA volunteers and staff liaisons that the WSBA will not hold in-person events either
at the WSBA Offices or around the state until all Washington counties are at least in Phase 3. Exceptions to
this, such as the administration of the bar exam, are permitted due to court rule.

e Published five COVID19 related articles on NWSidebar, the WSBA Blog since April 27, including:

0 On-Demand Office Environments for Legal Business (September 8)
Eviction Predictions: A Roadmap for Landlord-Tenant Law in Washington (July 16)

A Family Law Perspective on the COVID-19 Crisis (July 10)

Best WSBA Summer Sale CLEs to Stream During Lockdown (July 7)

When Court is Back in Session: The Plan for Washington Courts to Resume during COVID-19 (June

23)

0 How COVID-19 Will Change Solo and Mid-Size Law Firms, Plus 4 Marketing Tools for a Customer-
Centric Business (June 17)
0 Employment Watch: How COVID-19 is Impacting Washington’s Legal Job Market (June 15)

e Published approximately six pages of COVID19 related content in the July/August 2020 and September

issues of Bar News.

O O OO

Promoting the Moderate Means Program as a Resource for Unemployed Washingtonians

In response to the pandemic, the Moderate Means Program is expanding its reach to the area of unemployment
law. Thus far we have recruited 18 attorneys to provide legal services through the program and have begun
promoting the availability of help to the public through targeted social media ads. This programmatic change has no
budget impact, but will hopefully have a real impact for individuals and families of moderate means around our
state.

Update on “Summer” Bar Exam
This week, our admissions team will administer the second half of this year’s “summer” bar exam in Tacoma and
Spokane. To recap what’s happened this spring and summer:
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e on April 17, the Board voted to recommended against offering diploma privilege and for WSBA employees
to work to hold to bar exam in the safest manner reasonably possible;

e on May 13, 2020, the Court issued a letter directing WSBA to administer the bar exam in both July and
September in the Seattle/Tacoma/Everett area and the Spokane area in multiple separate test sites.

e on May 15, 2020, the Court issued an order temporarily reducing the Uniform Bar Exam (UBE) minimum
passing score from 270 to 266 for the July and September 2020 exams only. The order also temporarily
expanded the terms of the Rule 9 license, which permits limited graduate practice.

e June 12, 2020, the Court issued an order granting current applicants registered for the July or September
2020 exams in Washington that have received a JD from an ABA accredited law school the option of receiving
diploma privilege to practice in Washington instead of taking the UBE. Diploma privilege is also an option for
applicants currently registered to take the LLLT examination in July 2020. Applicants must meet all other
requirements for admission and licensing but have the option to be admitted without taking the UBE.

As a result, 571 Bar exam applicants and all seven LLLT applicants opted for diploma privilege. Ultimately, 60
applicants took the July exam at the Greater Tacoma Convention Center and 21 took the exam in Spokane. We have
not received any reports of illness among exam attendees in July. The results of the July bar exam are attached. This
week 36 will take the exam in Tacoma and 1 person will take the exam in Spokane. Our safety plans for the exams
were approved by the Washington State Department of Health, which sought and received permission to share our
plans with other entities seeking to hold licensing exams during this global pandemic.

This year, due to COVID-19, grading of the MEE and MPT portions of the exam was done remotely for the first time.
The Board of Bar Examiners conducted two successful remote grading conferences for the grading of February and
July exams. Beginning with the September bar exam, graders will be using a new digital grading software which
allows them to view and score essay answers digitally instead of hard copy paper answers. Also beginning with the
September exam, applicants will be using ILG Exam360 instead of Examsoft to take the exam.

I am impressed but not surprised that our Regulatory Services Department team has been able to thoughtfully and
professionally navigate all of these changes while planning and administering two summer exams. A huge thank you
to everyone in our Regulatory Services Department and especially to Gus Quiniones and the admissions team. | also
want to recognize our IT department, in particular Collin Steranka and Eric Holman, for ensuring all the necessary
changes in our systems; Investigator Chuck Golden for reviewing our security requirements with GTCC staff; and, last
but certainly not least, Karen Duncan, Joanne Russell, and Sue Strachan for proctoring the exam.

Budget Update
Our Finance and Accounting team, working in close coordination with Treasurer Dan Clark, will present a final draft

of the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget for the Board’s approval at the September meeting. As it stands today FY 2020 reflects
a strong net income driven in large part by reduced expenses from actions taken this year. Next year’s budget
overcomes challenges related to COVID 19, incorporates a onetime reduced CPF contribution, and includes funding
for increased equity training for employees and the Board of Governors.

New Practice Management Guides Available to Members

This month we published the Law Firm Guide to Document Retention and the Law Firm Guide to Disaster Planning
& Recovery. These free tools for law firms of any size are the result of more than a year of work by our fabulous
outgoing Practice Management Advisor Destinee Evers, and other WSBA staff including General Counsel Julie
Shankland, Professional Responsibility Counsel Jeanne Marie Clavere, Design Services Manager Kelly Cronin, Sandra
Schilling, Felice Congalton, Jim Hanneman, and Noel Brady. We would also like to recognize the following volunteers
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from the Solo Small Practice Section who contributed to the project: Ann Guinn, Bruce Gardiner, Michael Cherry
and Kari Petrasek. Destinee has been onboarding our new Practice Management Advisor Margeaux Green and
together they will launch a third guide on the topic of Cybersecurity later this month.

Update on Executive Leadership Team Positions

As you know from my email last week, we have hired Renata Garcia into the position of Chief Regulatory Counsel.
Renata has worked in the Regulatory Services Department that she will now lead for the past five years. She joined
WSBA to lead our MCLE work and later took over the innovative programs portfolio, which includes the law clerk
program, limited practice officers, and limited license legal technicians. Licensed as an attorney in Washington,
Renata is a native of Brazil. Stemming from her personal and professional experiences, Renata brings a passion for
access to justice to her work as well as deep appreciation for the volunteers we work with.

| am also pleased to share that we continue to work with Jeff Turner and Praxis HR to evaluate our human resources
function and provide recommendations prior to filling the position of Human Resources Director, which is currently
vacant.

Judicial Information Systems Committee Report Attached

Attached is a report from Robert Taylor, WSBA’s representative on the Judicial Systems Information Committee. This
committee governs our state’s judicial information system under delegated authority from the Washington Supreme
Court.

Legal Foundation of Washington’s Annual Report

Attached is the Legal Foundation of Washington’s Annual Report. Normally, the LFW Board would join the Board of
Governors in person at our September meeting. In sharing their annual report LFW noted that it values its
longstanding partnership with WSBA and the bar’s consistent support of civil legal aid over the decades that the two
organizations have worked together.

Food Frenzy
Continuing a long tradition as WSBA, employees will participate in Food Lifeline’s annual Food Frenzy event and the

end of September and beginning of October. The money raised provides meals for hungry families and individuals.
This year, the need is greater than ever with Food Lifeline expecting a 60% increase in the number of individuals that
are food insecure as a result of COVID-19.

1 - July Bar Exam Results (attached)

2 - JISC Meeting Update (attached)

3 - Legal Foundation of Washington’s Annual Report (attached)
4 - Litigation Update (attached)

5 - Media Contacts Report (attached)

6 - WSBA Demographics Report (Late Materials)

7 - Correspondence and Other Informational Items (attached)

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539
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Attachment 1

Regulatory Services Department

61 Candidates Pass July 2020 Washington State Bar Exam

SEATTLE, WA [September 12, 2020] — The Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) announced that 61
candidates passed the Uniform Bar Exam administered in July 2020. Administered over a two-day period, the
Exam is a substantive law exam for those interested in becoming licensed in Washington to practice law as a
lawyer, and includes multiple choice, essay and performance questions. The other required component of the
Washington Bar Exam is an exam on professional responsibility (the Multistate Professional Responsibility Exam or
MPRE). Completion of a separate online educational component with accompanying online exam addressing
specific areas of Washington law (the Washington Law Component) is also required to qualify for admission. The
WSBA will recommend successful candidates who also have passed a character and fitness review and completed
other pre-licensing requirements to the Washington Supreme Court for entry of an order admitting them to the
practice of law in Washington as a lawyer.

See the full pass list on our website. Passage percentages are given below.
July 2020 Washington State Bar Exam Statistics:

Overall Pass Rates

Applicant Type Pass Fail Total Pass Rate
ABA-JD 51 3 54 94.4%
APR 6 Law Clerk 4 1 5 80.0%
U.S. Attorneys 1 1 2 50.0%
Foreign/LLM Graduate 3 4 7 42.9%
Foreign Common Law Attorney 1 0 1 100.0%
Non-ABA JD/ABA LLM 1 1 2 50.0%
Total 61 10 71 85.9%
First Time
Applicant Type Pass Fail Total Pass Rate
ABA-ID 48 1 49 98.0%
APR 6 Law Clerk 2 1 3 66.7%
U.S. Attorneys 1 1 2 50.0%
Foreign/LLM Graduate 2 1 3 66.7%
Foreign Common Law Attorney 0 0 0 00.0%
Non-ABA JD/ABA LLM 0 0 0 00.0%
Total 53 4 57 93.0%

1325 Fourth Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539
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Repeaters
Applicant Type Pass Fail Total Pass Rate
ABA-JD 3 2 5 60.0%
APR 6 Law Clerk 2 0 2 100%
U.S. Attorneys 0 0 0 00.0%
Foreign/LLM Graduate 1 3 4 25.0%
Foreign Common Law Attorney 1 0 1 100.0%
Non-ABA JD/ABA LLM 1 1 2 50.0%
Total 8 6 14 57.1%

The average UBE score total was 293.34; the required passing score was 266.

About the Washington State Bar Association

The WSBA is authorized by the Washington Supreme Court to license over 40,000 lawyers and other legal professionals in
Washington. In furtherance of its obligation to protect and serve the public, the WSBA both regulates lawyers and other
licensed legal professionals under the authority of the Court and serves its members as a professional association — all
without public funding. The WSBA’s mission is to serve the public and the members of the Bar, to ensure the integrity of the
legal profession, and to champion justice.

HHH

Contact: Jennifer Olegario, WSBA Communications Manager
206-727-8212; jennifero@wsba.org

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539
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Attachment 2

From: Robert Taylor

To: Rajeev Majumdar; Terra Nevitt; Brian Tollefson; Carla J. Higginson
Cc: Jean McElroy; Doug Ende; Diana Singleton

Subject: JISC Meeting Update

Date: Friday, September 4, 2020 10:04:34 AM

Folks, the JISC had a short meeting on August 28, 2020. Here are the highlights,

The budget information was updated. Statewide revenues are down although June and July revenues were higher
than expected. Traffic fines, the main source of funds for the court’s information systems, continue to decline.
With driving curtailed during the pandemic the funds raised has continued to decline at an even higher rate.

The good news is that funding for the 2 main projects, the CLJ Case Management System and the Appellate Court
database work, is still available in the 2019-21 biennium.

Funds for the next biennium will be down which will impact several projects including hardware replacements.

After discussing how to spend the AOC contribution to the counties’ hardware replacement needs a subcommittee
presented a sliding scale approach that distributed the cuts to the larger entities while leaving those getting less than
$5,000 to receive their full allotment. This proposal passed.

The CLJ Case Management System manager reported that a contract with Tyler Technologies had been signed and
they are ramping up to get underway. Their first feature to come on line will be efiling. I noticed the
announcement on the WSBA Facebook page the other day.

Finally, the project to build a reporting tool into the Statewide Data Warehouse is getting started. The project was
put on hold to devote resources to building the bridge between King County courts and the AOC. With this project

the AOC will be able to generate the reports that counties and the state rely on for management and funding.

On a separate note, Vicki Cullinane from AOC will be seeking endorsement from the WSBA on an updated JISCR
rule 13, she will be supplying materials for the upcoming BOG meeting.

Please let me know if you have questions.

Thanks,
Bob
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Attachment 3

2019 ANNUAL REPORT TO THE
WASHINGTON SUPREME COURT

April 29, 2019

28



LFW Vision Civil legal aid is a basic human right, available and effective for all low-income
people.

LFW Mission Equal civil justice for low-income people.

Who We Are The Legal Foundation of Washington is a non-profit organization created in 1984
at the direction of the Washington Supreme Court to distribute IOLTA funds to legal aid
organizations across the state. LFW has over thirty years of experience raising, managing, and
distributing funds to achieve equal civil justice for low-income people. We seek to ensure
access to civil legal aid for all people in Washington, and to improve the civil justice system to
be more equitable and just. Our work contributes to breaking cycles of poverty and ensuring
equal opportunity.

We serve thousands of low-income people each year by investing in civil legal aid organizations
across Washington. We bring expertise about our state civil legal aid system to ensure
thoughtful grantmaking. We receive support from public and private partners who are
committed to equal justice and system reform. We responsibly steward and strategically
distribute these funds throughout the state. Since 1984, LFW has distributed more than $200

million to Washington’s legal aid community.

Our Commitment to Anti-Racism LFW believes that creating fair access to civil justice requires
undoing systemic racial oppression. We are committed to becoming an anti-racist organization
and strive to reflect racial justice and inclusion in all our grantmaking.

In our work, we center racial equity because of the historical impact of racism in our country
and the disparate outcomes it has created and continues to create for communities of color.
We also recognize that other forms of oppression — such as sexism, classism, and ableism —
threaten our nation’s promise of justice for all, and we are committed to understanding and
addressing how all oppression affects the ability of low-income Washingtonians to access
justice.

LFW is a proud supporter of the Alliance for Equal Justice, a network of Washington State
organizations that collaborate to coordinate strategy and the delivery of civil legal aid to people
and communities experiencing poverty and injustice. We are committed to dismantling the

barriers that deny justice and perpetuate racial inequities.



The Board of Trustees of the Legal Foundation of Washington report annually to the members
of the Washington Supreme Court pursuant to Rule 1.15(a) of the Rules of Professional

Conduct, which provides that:

The Foundation shall prepare an annual report to the Supreme Court of Washington that
summarizes the Foundation’s income, grants and operating expenses, implementation of its
corporate purposes and any problems arising in the administration of the program established

by section (c) of this rule.
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FOUNDATION OPERATIONS

The Legal Foundation of Washington has been in operation since 1984. LFW’s Articles of
Incorporation, Article VII, provides for a nine-member Board of Trustees to maintain oversight
of LFW’s activities. Trustees serve staggered three-year terms and are eligible to serve a second
three-year term. The Supreme Court, the Governor, and the Board of Governors of the

Washington State Bar Association each appoint three of the nine Trustees.

Governance

Our 2019 Board of Trustees were:

President: Mark A. Griffin, Seattle attorney

Vice-President: Mark A. Johnson, Seattle attorney. He currently serves as President.

Secretary: Susan H. Hacker, Bellevue attorney.

Treasurer: John A. Goldmark, Seattle attorney. He currently serves as Treasurer

Peter J. (P.J.) Grabicki, Spokane attorney

Kara R. Masters, Bainbridge Island attorney.

Gary Melonson, Financial Advisor, Seattle. He currently serves as Secretary

Michael Pontarolo, Spokane attorney. He currently serves as Vice President

Fred Rivera, Seattle attorney. Mr. Rivera served the remainder of Russell M. Aoki’s second term

following his resignation from the board in 2018.
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The Board of Trustees met four times during 2019

February 15, 2019 (Seattle) — Board meeting and Annual Goldmark Award Luncheon

May 8, 2019 (Olympia) — Board meeting and Annual Report to the Washington Supreme Court

September 26, 2019 (Seattle) — Board meeting

November 23, 2019 (Seattle) — Board meeting to determine annual grants

Board Committees

LFW'’s stewardship of its mission was carried out during 2019 through service on six regular

Board committees. Their responsibilities were as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Executive Committee, chaired by President Mark Griffin and composed of the

four Board officers. Provides guidance when the full Board is not available.

Audit Committee, chaired by John Goldmark and included two non-Trustees,
Julie Mass and John Hoerster. Oversees the annual audit in accordance with

nonprofit best practices.

Finance Committee, chaired by Treasurer, John Goldmark. Responsible for the

operating budget, LFW’s depository banking relationship, and its investments.

Grants Committee, chaired by Vice-President, Mark Johnson. Reviews annual
grant applications and makes recommendations to LFW’s Board of Trustees

concerning all grant issues.

Goldmark Award Committee, chaired by Susan Hacker. Selects the recipient of
the Charles A. Goldmark Distinguished Service Award and plans the annual

Goldmark Award Luncheon.

IN
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(6)

Goldmark Internship Committee, chaired by Kara Masters. Selects the recipient
of the Goldmark Equal Access to Justice Internship and the program where the

intern is placed.

jw
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FISCAL ADMINISTRATION

During this ten-year season of extremely low interest rates, we have diligently cultivated other

revenue enhancement activities to allow us to provide stable funding to the legal aid

community. As a result of higher interest rates and a strong economy, LFW benefited from

increased IOLTA revenues in 2019.

Summary of 2019 LFW Income, Operating Expenses, and Grant Obligations

2019 Income

Net Interest on IOLTA Accounts
Investment Loss (realized and unrealized)
Subcontract Revenue

Contributions & Grants

Cy Pres Awards

Total Revenues

2019 Operating Expenses and Grant Obligations

Annual Grants?
Other Program Support Expenses?
Administration & Fundraising

Total Expenses

$11,595,291

1,495,877
2,675,000
2,123,383
1,333,803

$19,223,354

$10,048,32
816,692
944,074

$11,809,090

Staffing LFW’s financial operations are Nancy Smith, CPA, MBA, and Lauren Sutherland, Staff

Accountant. John Goldmark served as Treasurer in 2019 and chaired the Finance Committee

1 Grants obligations represent awards approved November 23, 2019 for distribution in 2020.

2 Other Program Support Expenses include Case Management Software Fees, Pro Bono Support and Grantee

Malpractice Insurance and Interpretation Services.

[
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which along with LFW’s Board of Trustees — provided oversight of the budget, investments, and

financial reports.
Audit

BDO USA, LLP, provided an independent audit of LFW’s financial statements and issued an
unmodified (“clean”) opinion for 2019. See Attachment A.

IOLTA

The IOLTA (Interest on Lawyers Trust Accounts) program consists of Lawyers, Limited Practice
Officers (LPO), and Limited License Legal Technicians (LLLT) holding IOLTA accounts. IOLTA
revenue (net of fees) for 2019 was $11.6M, representing 60% of LFW’s revenue. Through
diligent compliance monitoring and education, we started in mid-2018 to see an increase in the
average IOLTA interest rate. As of the end of 2019, 20 of the top 25 largest financial institutions
have increased their rates from roughly 0.20% to a range between 0.50% and 1.74%. However,
as a result of a decline in the Fed Funds rate in Oct 2019, we began to see a decline in the

average rate.

IOLTA Average Interest rate by Month
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There are 87 active financial institutions participating in the IOLTA program in Washington
State. A complete list of authorized financial institutions can be found on the LFW’s website.

IOLTA revenue from the top 13 financial institutions accounts for 97% of the total revenue.

While financial institutions are allowed to deduct reasonable account fees from their IOLTA
remittance, only thirty-four percent (34%) do so. These fees amounted to nearly $106,628 in

2019.

The increases in the interest rate made by the Federal Reserve has resulted in increased rates
being paid by financial institutions. The interest rates on IOLTA accounts ranges from .01% to

1.74%, with 45% of the financial institutions’ interest rate at or below .10%.

$14,000,000

IOLTA Revenue
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000

o . .

S0 -
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
M Series1 $1,716,594 $2,042,615 $2,354,875 $5,055,302 $11,595,290
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Other Revenue Sources

In addition to IOLTA, LFW is fortunate to have some other revenue sources from which to draw.
The Campaign for Equal Justice raises private charitable support for civil legal aid. A more
detailed account of their success follows later in this report; however, we are very grateful for
the funds raised from the legal community in our state. In 2019, the Endowment for Equal
Justice made its fifth grant award to LFW. The $823,600 grant from the Endowment was part of

the funds awarded to our grantees in 2019.

Through our funding partnership with Northwest Justice Project, over $3 million in state
funding was passed through to our grantees that did state-eligible work during 2018. This was

a significant increase from the previous year due to the inclusion of pro bono expansion funds.

Thanks to the Supreme Court’s adoption of our proposed amendments to Court Rule 23 in 2007
and 2017, cy pres awards have become an increasingly important source of revenue for civil

legal aid. In 2019, we received cy pres awards of $1,333,803.

Stabilizing Grants for the Future

Thanks to strong IOLTA revenues, LFW experienced a significant surplus in 2019. As a result,
the LFW Trustees undertook a project to structure cash reserves in such a way to provide for
immediate short-term needs, a one to three-year near term reserve, which would complement
the already-existing Goldmark Fund (the reserve of last resort). The Trustees felt that it would
be prudent to set aside these resources to help buffer future declines in IOLTA. This already
has proven to be a wise move: at the time of this writing, the Federal Reserve interest rate has
gone back to the 0 —0.25% in response to the economic impacts of the Coronavirus crisis. A

sharp decline in IOLTA receipts for the remainder of 2020 is expected as a result.
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GRANT INFORMATION

Along with our Alliance for Equal Justice Partners, LFW continues to center the State Plan’s
unified goals of race equity, legal education and awareness, access for underserved
communities, holistic client-centered services, and systemic advocacy in our strategy for legal

aid funding.

In 2019, LFW invested over $9.7 million in grants to Washington'’s legal aid system, including

recurring grants for core legal aid work and multi-year projects to target specific issues. As a

[%}

result, more than 36,000 families received free one-on-one legal services for help with urgent

legal concerns. Many of these clients would have faced homelessness, hunger, inadequate
medical care, or loss of other basic needs. Hundreds of thousands more were impacted by
systemic advocacy designed to address root causes of poverty. We were proud to make these

investments to enhance equal justice in our state.

LFW distributed $9.1 million in Partnership Grants (formerly called Annual Grants) to 23
organizations (Attachment B). LFW’s Board of Trustees also added a new Partnership Grantee
for the first time in many years, Legal Counsel for Youth and Children. Legal Counsel for Youth

and Children does groundbreaking work providing essential legal help to homeless youth at
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shelters and schools. The majority of their clients are youth of color and have been historically
underserved by civil legal aid services. We are proud to support this important organization and

to help them build and grow their capacity statewide.

LFW also distributed grants to address specific issues, including $200,000 for community
redevelopment legal work and $350,000 for foreclosure prevention. We allocated $200,000 in
Special Grants, targeted at critical, underserved populations such as formerly incarcerated
individuals and families affected by immigrant issues. Finally, we launched a new Race Equity

Grant program, described in detail later in this report.

LFW also provided support for legal aid providers around the state to address equity issues
internally in their organizations and collectively in their advocacy. As part of that focus, LFW
supported the Access to Justice Conference, a three-day summit in Spokane for the legal aid

community focused on building skills and engaging community partners in civil justice work.

Equity in Grantmaking

LFW believes that creating fair access to civil justice requires undoing systemic racial
oppression. We are committed to becoming an anti-racist organization and strive to reflect
racial justice and inclusion in all our grantmaking. We apply this commitment to grantmaking in
many ways, including: increasing investments in communities impacted most by systemic
racism; analyzing demographics of poverty populations to shed light on funding disparities;
creating channels for increased community input; supporting compensation equity and
leadership opportunities; and launching a new Race Equity Grant Program guided by
community member input. We know we still have a lot of work to do and we are grateful for

the opportunity to learn and grow alongside our partners in the Alliance for Equal Justice.

One example of our racial equity work is the Board of Trustees’ expansion of the Yakima
Volunteer Attorney Program Grant. LFW examined the racial demographics of the poverty

populations in Washington, and the Yakima Valley stood out as an area under-resourced by civil
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legal aid. Yakima County has the highest percentage of low-income

people of color in LFW’s grantee network and the highest

poverty rate in the state with 28% of its population below

125% of the federal poverty level. Of this low-income

population, 68% are Latinx. The area is also home to a large

number of farmworkers, many of whom are monolingual Spanish

speakers. Using a racial equity lens, we compared Yakima Valley with other regions similar in
size, geography, and immigrant populations. From our analysis, it was clear that the region was
underfunded, and the grant amount was out of step with the State Plan goal of, “working
toward a vision that race or color does not determine the availability and quality of services,
fairness of outcomes, and opportunities for communities and individuals.” To begin to remedy
this disparity, LFW’s Board of Trustees increased Yakima Volunteer Attorney Services’ grant
from $48,256 in 2018 to $70,000 in 2019 and to $136,100 in 2020. In addition, we supported
TeamChild’s expansion in the Yakima Valley, and we are working with the Alliance for Equal

Justice to advocate for continued growth in funding.

Measuring the Impact of Grantees’ Work
In 2019, LFW grantees provided direct legal help to over 36,000 individuals and families. The
chart below shows the types of legal problems that were addressed. Family law and housing

continue to be critical legal issues for low-income people in Washington.
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Legal Problems Addressed in 2019
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In addition to these individual cases, LFW grantees used systemic advocacy to secure legal
rights for hundreds of thousands of vulnerable people in our state. We have included a chart
outlining Columbia Legal Services’ class action impact efforts at Attachment C. We have also
included examples of grantees’ legal advocacy that made it into mainstream news media at

Attachment D.

Demographics and Accessibility
The following chart shows the race/ethnicity breakdown of clients served by LFW Partnership

Grantees in 2019.
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2019 CLIENT RACIAL DEMOGRAPHICS

Native American,
587 Asian or Pacific
Islander, 1,726

Other, 2,003

White, 10,177

Black (Not Latinx),
3,587

Latinx, 4,275

Unknown, 5,276

Legal aid programs continue to prioritize accessible services, particularly to communities
experiencing numerous systemic barriers. As part of their commitment to the goals of the State
Plan, programs have focused on developing new partnerships and embedding their services

within trusted community organizations to make legal aid as accessible as possible.

Language interpretation services are one essential component to providing accessible legal aid.
In 2019, legal aid clients were served in more than forty languages using bilingual attorneys, in-
person interpreters, and telephonic interpretation. LFW funds a phone interpretation service
for grantees, which was used for over 36,000 minutes of interpretation in 2019. The most
commonly requested languages for phone interpretation were: Spanish (1,434 calls), Arabic (93

calls), Vietnamese (45 calls), Russian (50 calls), and Somali (46 calls).
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The following chart shows the fifteen languages most frequently utilized for phone

interpretation in 2019.

Volunteer Attorney Resources

LFW-funded programs recruit thousands of attorneys to provide pro bono legal assistance to
low-income clients in their communities. In 2019, more than 3,300 individual attorneys
volunteered their time with LFW grantees. The following chart shows a breakdown of volunteer

hours by legal aid program.
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Hours of Free Legal Aid Donated by Attorneys in 2019

Benton-Franklin Legal Aid 1,231
Blue Mountain Action Council 258
Chelan-Douglas County Volunteer Attorney Services 465
Clallam-Jefferson County Pro Bono Lawyers 744
Clark County Volunteer Lawyers Program 2,599
Columbia Legal Services 701
Cowlitz-Wahkiakum Legal Aid 459
Eastside Legal Assistance 1,115
King County Bar Foundation Pro Bono Services 16,299
Kitsap Legal Services 1,300
Legal Assistance by Whatcom (LAW) Advocates 565
Northwest Immigrant Rights Project 10,059

Skagit Co. Community Action Agency Vol. Lawyers Program 490

Snohomish County Legal Services 1,383
Spokane County Bar Association Vol. Lawyers Program 1,621
TacomaProBono 1,257
TeamChild Advocacy for Youth 567
Thurston County Volunteer Legal Services 4,009
Unemployment Law Project 334
Yakima County Volunteer Attorney Services 586
TOTAL 46,102

LFW also provides annual funding for the Pro Bono Council, which supports volunteer lawyer
programs across the state. In the few years since its inception, this program has strengthened
the network of pro bono programs—encouraging collaboration and participating in statewide

strategy to enhance delivery of legal services to those most in need.
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With support from the State Legislature and Office of Civil Legal Aid, LFW worked to expand pro
bono services in Washington by granting an additional $550,000 a year to twelve Pro Bono
Expansion Projects focused on building infrastructure and growing volunteer attorney

participation.

Two years ago, LFW and the Office of Civil Legal Aid commissioned a study that showed
compensation at many pro bono programs was well below market rates. It revealed that some
employees even qualified for free legal aid due to their low salaries. In 2019, the LFW Board of
Trustees and the Office of Civil Legal Aid partnered to remedy this situation, dedicating
$300,000 in additional funding specifically to raise salaries and increase staff retention. In
addition, $200,000 was dedicated to increasing salaries at specialty legal aid providers, such as
TeamChild and Benefits Law Center, who were experiencing similar disparities. Those salary

parity funds will be an on-going part of the programs’ LFW Partnership Grants moving forward.

Stories Behind the Statistics
Client numbers represent the real-life stories of thousands of individuals and families whose
lives have been dramatically impacted by LFW grants. The following true stories are examples

of legal aid making a difference for low-income people in Washington:

“Rosie and Jim”: Rosie and Jim have been married for nearly 50 years. Until early 2019, Jim was
not only the love of Rosie’s life, but also her primary caretaker. Rosie, 67 years old, is a double
amputee with extremely limited mobility. Rosie frequently joked that she “was the brains and
he was the brawn.” Unfortunately, Jim became incapacitated in early 2019, requiring nursing
home care. The participation fee assessed by the state for her husband’s care was an
astonishing $5,176 per month—leaving Rosie with almost no income of her own and certainly
not enough to hire the caregiving services she needed. As such, Rosie was often at home alone,
sometimes trapped in a soiled wheelchair and unable to access basic necessities like food and

clean clothes, until a friend or family member was able to come rescue her.
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Solid Ground’s Benefits Legal Assistance took her case to hearing. After presenting the
testimony of three witnesses who spoke to Rosie’s extraordinary circumstances, they were able
to increase her spousal allowance and decrease the nursing home participation fee to just
$1,011 per month. This has allowed Rosie to pay for over 100 personal care hours per month

and to live safely in her home with dignity.

“Matt” (in his own words): | have had a strained relationship with my mother since | was a
child. Our living situations were not stable, and my mother was drinking a lot and was
emotionally abusive. Issues began to really reach a boiling point once | turned 14. My mother
called the police on me often, leaving me to spend nights at Remann Hall, and resulting in my
latest Diversion referral. | was often kicked out of my mother's home due to the conflict and
eventually became homeless. My GED teacher, aware of the conflict | was facing at home,
referred me to TeamChild. | called them and they agreed to help me. | had already researched
Emancipation and asked my TeamChild attorney if that was something they could assist with,
and | was told that they could. Emancipation was important to me because then | would be able
to get housing for myself. | was placed in foster care when | was younger and didn’t want to go
back and | didn’t have any other family members that could take me in. | had been taking care
of myself for quite some time. Being 17 was the only thing keeping me from having stable
housing. TeamChild gave me a list of things that | needed to do to prepare for filing my
Emancipation petition and supported me in getting all of my necessary documentation. I’'m so
glad that | did not have to go through the Emancipation process alone and that | had TeamChild
to support me. They came with me to my meetings with the Guardian Ad Litem and helped me
prepare for the actual hearing. The only other times | had been to Court was for criminal
matters, so | was nervous. But it was important to me to tell a judge what | wanted for myself
and to show that | was responsible enough to care for myself. The judge agreed that | was
capable of providing for myself and granted the emancipation. My TeamChild attorney and
Case Support Specialist were there to support me and took me to breakfast to celebrate

afterward. | am now working on completing my high school education so that | can get a degree
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in Fire Service through Bates Technical College. | also applied and was selected to participate in
the West Pierce Fire and Rescue Youth Academy in the summer.

*Clients names have been changed to preserve confidentiality

LFW Special Grants in 2019

As the grant chart at Attachment B shows, LFW made targeted Special Grants to address
underserved populations in Washington. These grants included $25,000 to Colectiva Legal del
Pueblo and $75,000 to the Lavender Rights Project. In 2019, Center for Justice’s Community
Redevelopment Grant using Bank of America settlement funds completed its final year. Their
project focused on advocating for the City of Spokane to develop protections for renters and
habitability standards. Wayfind’s Community Redevelopment Grant entered its final year in
2020. Their grant funds legal services for more than 200 nonprofit and microenterprise
businesses in South King County, the majority of which are owned by people of color,

immigrants, and/or refugees.

Race Equity Grants
LFW created the Race Equity Grant fund to build power within communities that have been
historically overlooked within philanthropy and to combat the disparate outcomes that racism
creates for people of color, particularly in the justice system.
The goals of the program are to:

e invest in communities most impacted by structural racism and oppression;

e support community- and client-centered approaches to legal aid;

e increase civil legal aid opportunities for communities of color; and

e build and support anti-racist organizations and leadership.
The Race Equity Grant program is built on a participatory grantmaking model. An advisory panel
of community experts who have worked on race equity issues and/or lived in communities
impacted by poverty and racism review grant applications and make recommendations for
funding. The panel provides insight into the challenges facing Washington’s communities of

color and ensures that LFW grants connect to their concerns.
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During the first Race Equity Grant cycle, LFW received 22 eligible proposals totaling $162,400 in
requested funds. The requests far exceeded the fund total of $75,000. After carefully
considering the requests and considering the impact

on communities of color, the advisory panel

recommended ten grant awards. Funded

organizations included: Entre Hermanos, West African Community Council, Seattle Clemency
Project, and the Tenants Union of Washington State. A full list of 2019 Race Equity Grants and a

list of current Race Equity Grant Advisory Panelists are provided at Attachment E.

Racial equity is foundational to legal aid and we believe this grant program will continue to
elevate that work. In 2020, the LFW Board increased this fund, allocating $120,000 for Race

Equity Grants. A total of twelve $10,000 grants will be awarded in 2020 over two grant cycles.

Alliance Support Resources

In addition to direct grants to organizations, LFW supports the network of grantees by paying
for shared resources to streamline operations and maximize their impact. In 2019, this included
$45,000 to JustLead to subsidize their year-long leadership academy, race equity trainings
tailored to individual programs, and statewide equity work. LFW also provided $22,500 for
professional liability insurance to cover volunteer attorneys around the state, $98,600 for the
shared case management system Legal Server, and

$45,800 for interpretation services for our

grantees. In addition, we made over $45,000 in

Grantee Support funds available for technology,

training, and unexpected costs. For example, in

2019, these support funds helped TeamChild move to a new Tacoma office and sponsored the
Executive Director of Snohomish Co. Legal Services’ participation in the Leadership Mastermind

program with the National Association of Pro Bono Professionals.
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2020 Grant Awards Determined
In November 2019, the LFW Board of Trustees met and awarded a total of $10.1 million in
grants to 30 programs throughout the state (full list at Attachment F). As that chart shows, LFW
supplemented its general funds with $575,000 in State Pro Bono Expansion funds, $669,000 in
State Civil Justice Reinvestment funds, and $500,000 in salary parity funds. The LFW Board of
Trustees approved Special Grant disbursements for targeted, equity-focused projects. Several
of those grants are highlighted below:
e $25,000 to Colectiva Legal del Pueblo for outreach and legal help to people with
immigration legal issues;
e 575,000 to Civil Survival Project for Legal Final Obligation Reconsideration Days and
training of pro bono attorneys;
e $25,000 to support the Laurel Rubin Farmworker Justice Project’s fellowship program;
e 550,000 to Lavender Rights Project to provide tailored legal help to low-income LGBTQ
clients; and
e 5$300,000 to Northwest Justice Project for operational costs not directly covered by

public funds, pursuant to our long-standing funding partnership.

Grantee Oversight and Accountability

To ensure that grant funds are being used efficiently and effectively, LFW monitors grantees’
operations in several ways. We review narrative reports covering all aspects of grantees’
programs, including governance, client outreach, and community collaborations. LFW also
reviews client service data via the statewide case management system. We review quarterly
financial reports to ensure grantees adhere to accountability standards. Based on the dollar
amount of the grant, LFW also requires that each program submit an annual audit, financial
review or other form of financial report. Additionally, LFW visits grantees to evaluate client
services delivery, administrative effectiveness, and financial accountability using a set of

performance criteria developed by the Access to Justice Board.
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EQUAL JUSTICE COALITION

The Equal Justice Coalition (EJC) is a standing committee of the Access to Justice Board,
established by the Washington State Supreme Court at the urging of the American Bar
Association in 1995 to respond to the potential elimination of federal and state funding for civil
legal aid programs. The EJC is a statewide, non-partisan coalition of civil legal aid providers and
community-based organizations that works to ensure that low-income people in Washington
State can access justice. The EJC educates policymakers, the public, and the media about the
importance of civil legal aid and, through grassroots advocacy, seeks increased public funding

for civil legal aid at the federal, state, and local levels.

Federal Funding

The Trump Administration’s FY2020 budget proposed the complete elimination of the Legal
Services Corporation (LSC) for the third consecutive year. As a reminder, LSC administers
federal civil legal aid funding, which currently amounts to almost $7 million per year for the
Northwest Justice Project, Washington’s designated recipient. While there is bipartisan support
in Congress for civil legal aid, advocates take the Administration’s proposed elimination LSC

very seriously.

The EJC has long participated in the American Bar Association’s annual Advocacy Day in
Washington, D.C., as part of the national network of advocates to protect and increase LSC
funding. The 2019 EJC delegation included Justice Mary Yu, representing the Court, as well as
WSBA President Bill Pickett, LFW Board of Trustees member and Seattle Mariners executive
vice president and general counsel Fred Rivera, Northwest Justice Project (NJP) executive
director César Torres, and former NJP client Angel Tomeo Sam, now with The Bail Project in
Spokane. EJC chair Andy Sachs and staffer Will Livesley-O’Neill attended along with LFW
executive director Caitlin Davis. The group met with all 12 offices of Washington’s

Congressional delegation and received a mostly enthusiastic response in favor of increasing LSC
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funding, particularly from Sen. Patty
Murray and her staff, who also
provided valuable insights into
Congressional support for legal
services.

LSC survived the budget process and in
fact received a $25 million increase,
from $415 to $440 million, its highest
appropriation ever. The House of
Representatives actually approved a
much larger increase, to $550 million,

which was reduced in final negotiations

César Torres, Andy Sachs, Fred Rivera, Will Livesley-O’Neill Angel Tomeo
Sam, Caitlin Davis, Justice Mary Yu, and Bill Pickett on their trip to
Washington D.C.

with the Senate. The FY2021 request aims to build on this momentum with an increase to $652

million. The Administration will again oppose the agency, taking the additional step in its FY21

budget of allocating $18 million to bring all LSC operations to an end.

State Funding

The EJCis proud to lead a group of civil legal aid stakeholders advocating for increased funding

from the Washington State Legislature. The 2019 biennial budget legislative session was one of

the most successful efforts to date. Legislators approved increasing funding for the Office of

Civil Legal Aid by more than $7 million. The increase included:

e S3 million for 20 new civil legal aid attorney positions around the state, as part of the

Civil Justice Reinvestment Plan to reach the “minimum access” standard of service

delivery. When the CJRP began in 2017, the deficit of attorneys needed to achieve

minimum access was 110. With the increases in the 2017, 2018, and now 2019 sessions,

along with additional federal investments, the deficit will be less than 40 by 2021. 10 of

the attorney positions came online at NJP in January 2020, with 10 more to be added in

January 2021.
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e $3.1 million in stabilization funding to protect previous gains in attorney positions and
maintain client service at NJP, given new salary obligations resulting from a collective
bargaining agreement.

e $300,000 in compensation equity for pro bono programs to retain staff and increase
service capacity. This was leveraged with a matching investment from LFW.

e Additional funding for a study on the impact of legal representation in eviction cases,
kinship care support, children’s representation, and services for immigrant women.

The EJC strongly advocated for the OCLA increase. The 2019 Equal Justice Lobby Day brought
more than 60 civil legal aid providers, advocates, stakeholders, and clients to Olympia.
Attendees held 66 meetings with legislators from 30 districts and heard from Sen. Ann Rivers
(R-La Center) and Rep. Mike Pellicciotti (D-Federal Way) as part of a grassroots training session.
Civil legal aid still enjoys bipartisan support in Olympia, and feedback from the Lobby Day
meetings with legislators was largely positive. Several cited a challenging budget environment
as an obstacle to OCLA’s request, which made the fact that the 2019 increase was larger than
the previous budget session’s even more encouraging.

Post-Lobby Day, EJC efforts focused on the members of the House Appropriations and Senate
Ways & Means Committees who write the biennial budget. Stakeholders in these members’
districts consistently reached out throughout the budget process. EJC staffer Will Livesley-
O’Neill also testified at each committee’s budget hearing along with Rachael Langen Lundmark,
the director of Thurston County Volunteer Legal Services, speaking on behalf of the pro bono
programs.

After the end of the legislative session, the EJC focused on stakeholder processes to assess
recent accomplishments and overlooked needs, and pivot to planning for the next biennial
budget in 2021. OCLA did not make any significant requests for the 2020 supplemental budget
year in 2020, so the EJC’s goal-setting has focused on stakeholder priorities for the next

biennium.
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Local Funding

Since the King County Veterans, Seniors, and Human Services Levy (VSHSL) was passed by
voters in 2017, the EJC has played a coordinating role for the county-funded organizations:
Benefits Law Center (BLC), Eastside Legal Assistance Program, NJP, Northwest Immigrant Rights
Project (NWIRP), Solid Ground, and Unemployment Law Project (ULP). 2019 was an off-year for
the regular biennial county budget process, with new funding instead directed through the levy.
VSHSL guidelines acknowledge civil legal aid as a funding priority and a strategy to serve specific
populations with discrete buckets of funding: low-income veterans, seniors, and vulnerable
populations including immigrants.

The first VSHSL funding cycle opened in late summer 2019 and organizations applied directly to
the bucket(s) most relevant to their work. Although there was no coordinated budget advocacy
due to the off-year, several organizations joined the EJC in October for the County Council’s
proclamation for Pro Bono Week. This marked the seventh year of the Council honoring pro
bono programs, and Council Members Dembowski and Dunn introduced the proclamation and
made friendly remarks about programs such as BLC and NWIRP at the Council meeting. WSBA
president-elect Kyle Scuichetti spoke on behalf of the legal community, and representatives of
the EJC, NJP, NWIRP, WSBA, the Pro Bono Council, and ULP thanked the Council for their

ongoing support of civil legal aid.
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Resource Development

Campaign for Equal Justice

In 2019, the Campaign for Equal Justice hit its fundraising goal of $1.8 million! Thanks to all our

supporters, the Campaign has raised an increased amount of funds for legal aid in recent years.

See the chart below with revenue totals for 2019 through 2016:

Top Line Fundraising 2019 - 2016

Annual Campaign 2019 2018 2017 2016

Total raised $1,839,379.00 | $1,733,600.00 | $1,640,900.00 | $1,345,500.00
Top Funding Streams | 2019 2018 2017 2016

Law Firm Campaigns | $ 690,859.00 | $615,550.00 | $606,350.00 $579,150.00
Goldmark Luncheon $ 318,958.00 | $383,300.00 | $251,000.00 $168,300.00
WSBA Renewal Form [ $ 296,996.00 | $259,000.00 | $229,000.00 $259,961.00

Law Firm Campaign
The Law Firm Campaign raised more this year than ever before. Nearly 100 law firms contribute
to the King and Pierce Campaigns each year. This is our highest grossing fundraising appeal

every year, contributing one-third of our annual revenue.

Statewide Fundraising Events

In 2019, the Campaign produced 13 events and 4 phone-a-thons across the state. Beer & Justice
or Wine & Justice events were held in: Bainbridge Island, Bellevue, Bellingham, Coupeville,
Everett, Mt. Vernon, Olympia, Seattle, Spokane, Tacoma, Vancouver, Wenatchee, and Yakima.

Our phone-a-thons were in Bellingham, Vancouver, Everett, and Mt. Vernon.
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2020 Goldmark Lunch

We broke attendance and fundraising records at the 2020 Goldmark Luncheon, raising
$450,000 with over 1,000 guests in attendance to celebrate retired Chief Justice Fairhurst. For
those who were unable to attend the

Luncheon, you can watch a video

about Chief Justice Fairhurst or a

video about our largest grantee,

Columbia Legal Services.

Mark Johnson, LFW President and retired Chief Justice Mary Fairhurst
accepting the 2020 Charles A. Goldmark Distinguished Service Award.

Rainier Cup Winner: Whatcom County

Each year, counties with legal aid providers compete against each other to see which county
has the highest percentage of attorneys
donating to the Campaign for Equal Justice. In
2019, Whatcom County had the highest with
31% of county bar members donating to the

Campaign.

Whatcom County lawyers and Campaign board members, Kirsten
Barron, holding the Rainier cup in the center.
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Associates Campaign

Our inaugural Associates Campaign was a rousing success thanks to the leadership of 16
associates from eight firms: Davis Wright Tremaine, Foster Garvey, Keller Rohrback, K&L Gates,
Lane Powell, Miller Nash Graham & Dunn, Perkins Coie, Schwabe Williamson & Wyatt.

We are grateful to our long-time law firm partners for opening their doors to this new
fundraising effort and to the associates who contributed and joined the Campaign for Equal
Justice for the first time, helping families in poverty across the state.

We are looking forward to our 2" Annual Associates Campaign for Equal Justice. We are

building the committee currently and beginning to recruit new firms to join this year.

Endowment for Equal Justice
As of 2019, the Endowment has distributed just over S4M to the Legal Foundation of

Washington for its annual grants to legal aid organizations around the state.

Reach 20 Campaign
The Endowment has raised $4.4M (with our LFW match) towards our S5M goal for the Reach
20 campaign. The Endowment continues to grow its individual contributor base and has more

than quadrupled its number of donors in the last four years.
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Notable Reach 20 gifts from 2019 include:

Year Reach 20 Fundraising Total

2016 S 1,073,162.75
2017 S 502,529.60
2018 S 395,402.01
2019 S 1,422,947.64
2020 (to date) S 602,647.00
Grand Total S 3,996,689.00

$405,000 Jim Degel and Jeannie Berwick

$50,000 Jim Treadwell, William E Wockner Foundation
$25,000 Lawrence True and Linda Brown

$12,500 Paula Boggs

$10,000 Ron Knox

$10,000 Joel Benoliel

$5,000 Beth Bloom

$5,000 Mark Hutcheson

$5,000 David Burman —in honor of J. David Andrews
$5,000 John Hoerster

$5,000 Judith Fong and Mark Wheeler

$5,000 Michelle and Matthew Moersfelder

$5,000 Bill Block and Susan Leavitt

$5,000 Scott Holte

TOTAL: $562,500



In Memoriam

Though the legal aid community has lost an incredible champion in J. David Andrews, his
commitment to the Endowment is living on as we have received over $30,000 in donations in
memory of Dave Andrews. Though we will miss him, we are so grateful to Dave for all that he

has done for the Endowment, and all that continues to be done in his memory.

New Board Member

Our newest board member, Gerry Schley will join the Endowment in 2020. Gerry is a wealth
management advisor at Merrill Lynch, currently serves on the board of Seattle University and
brings a plethora of experience in finance to the Endowment. He will be joining the Operations

and Investments Committee.

Plans for 2020

Despite this incredibly positive progress, the Endowment Board has made the decision to
postpone the Reach 20 initiative until July 1%, and to focus on direct fundraising for the
Campaign in response to the great need that will arise due to COVID-19. Though the corpus was
near $18.3M at the beginning of 2020 Q1, the corpus decreased by $3.38M to just over $14.9M
in the last few weeks. Despite this bleak change in our corpus, we have had a successful first
quarter, raising just over $600,000 in gifts and pledges. We are hopeful that the market will

soon stabilize, and that our corpus will continue to grow again.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, both the Campaign for Equal Justice and the Endowment for
Equal Justice have suspended all fundraising events until at least July 1% In lieu of in-person
events, we have begun to plan virtual events, targeted remote individual asks, remote
stewardship opportunities, and regular social media and Brief updates. These activities will
help us to supplement our event revenue and connect to donors and legal aid advocates. All
Endowment fundraising is suspended until July 1%, with all solicitations focused on direct aid

and the growing immediate needs.
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GOLDMARK EQUAL ACCESS TO JUSTICE INTERNSHIP PROGRAM

The Goldmark Internship Program was created with a gift of matching funds from the Charles
and Annie Goldmark Family Foundation in 1992. The purpose of the program is three-fold: to
increase legal aid services to low-income people, to encourage law students to consider
employment with civil legal aid programs or as volunteers at volunteer attorney civil legal aid
programs, and to offer an opportunity for public service employment to outstanding law

students.

The 2019 Summer Internship was awarded to Laure Kohne, a second-year law student at UCLA
School of Law. She worked with TeamChild’s JR Institutions and Reentry Project which serves
youth and young adults incarcerated in Juvenile Rehabilitation facilities across the state. She
engaged in direct case work as well as researching and creating one-pagers for distribution to

youth clients regarding basic issues and legal rights.

The 2020 Goldmark Internship was awarded to Simrit Hans, a second-year law student at the
University of Washington School of Law. She will be working with LAW Advocates in

Bellingham, assisting some of Whatcom County’s most vulnerable community members with
critical legal needs related to child custody for low-income survivors of domestic violence and

housing for low-income renters.
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2019 Goldmark Equal Access to Justice Internship Report

Laure Kohne

Goldmark Intern

Summer 2019

| appreciate having worked at an organization committed to empowering youth, rather than
simply representing them. My projects as the Goldmark Intern were meant to help youth
clients in the short term, but, importantly, also designed to teach them particular advocacy
skills that they might carry forward. With this in mind, | created record sealing handouts and
flow charts that were accessible to youth, their families, and any staff assisting them in reentry.
| wrote handouts that clarified the, sometimes confusing, grievance forms that a youth might

use to pursue a legal claim. Finally, | designed a resentencing overview template, which laid out

the various options a youth might have when pursuing a decreased sentence.

| appreciated doing this work in Seattle, Washington, because the juvenile justice system there
is making important progress. | designed a handout explaining the critical changes ushered in by
HB 1646, a legislative response to the practical challenges of youth rehabilitation in adult
facilities. Similarly, | worked on a few cases that harnessed the logic of State of Washington v.
Zyion Houston Sconiers, the Washington Supreme Court case that mandates the consideration
of youthfulness when sentencing a juvenile. Both the statute and the court case referenced
emerging research about juvenile brain development, and thus appear to be invested in making
the Washington State juvenile justice system responsive to the realities of child development

and meaningful rehabilitation.

Finally, | appreciated doing this work at TeamChild specifically because it is committed to
ending institutional racism. The Undoing Institutional Racism workshop that | attended was one
of the most moving and impactful experiences of my life. | plan to carry its teachings forward, in

both my professional and personal life.
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Tel: 206-382-7777 Two Union Square, 601 Union Street
Fax: 206-382-7700 Suite 2300
www.bdo.com Seattle, WA 98101

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
Legal Foundation of Washington
Seattle, Washington

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Legal Foundation of Washington,
which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

3

65



Attachment A

Tel: 206-382-7777 Two Union Square, 601 Union Street
Fax: 206-382-7700 Suite 2300
www.bdo.com Seattle, WA 98101

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Legal Foundation of Washington as of December 31, 2019, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter - Recent Accounting Pronouncement Adopted

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2019,
Legal Foundation of Washington adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No. 2018-08 (Topic 958) - clarifying the scope and accounting guidance for contributions received
and contributions made. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter - Prior Period Financial Statement

The financial statements of the Legal Foundation of Washington as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, were audited by Peterson Sullivan LLP (“PS”), whose partners and
professional staff joined BDO USA, LLP as of November 1, 2019, and has subsequently ceased
operations. PS expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements in their report dated
April 18, 2019.

April 15, 2020

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Legal Foundation of Washington

Statements of Financial Position

Attachment A

December 31, 2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,495,789 $ 2,483,662
Investments 16,480,863 13,800,093
Pledges and grants receivable, net 2,343,135 889,190
Interest receivable 36,195 15,726
Prepaid expenses and other assets 71,654 59,664
Furniture and equipment, net 55,003 16,870
Total Assets $ 25,482,639 $ 17,265,205
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Grants awarded $ 9,573,121 $ 10,037,264
Pass-through grant obligations 190,368 193,054
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 92,977 67,400
Due to Endowment for Equal Justice 10,430 9,969
Deferred revenue 136,750 125,500
Deferred rent 58,605 63,394
Total Liabilities 10,062,251 10,496,581
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 13,276,470 6,420,474
With donor restrictions 2,143,918 348,150
Total Net Assets 15,420,388 6,768,624
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 25,482,639 $ 17,265,205

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Legal Foundation of Washington

Statements of Activities

Attachment A

Years Ended December 31, 2019 2018
Revenue
Net interest income from IOLTA $ 11,595,291 $ 5,055,302
Grants 2,675,000 2,737,500
Contributions 1,933,923 1,755,200
Cy Pres Awards 1,333,803 908,827
Goldmark Award Luncheon, net of expenses
of $114,031 in 2019 and $90,103 in 2018 185,710 234,386
Investment income (loss) 1,495,877 (357,532)
Other revenue 3,750 -
Total Revenue 19,223,354 10,333,683
Expenses
Program 10,865,016 9,661,475
Management and general 477,884 471,907
Fundraising 466,190 407,769
Total Expenses 11,809,090 10,541,151
Change in Net Assets 7,414,264 (207,468)
Net Assets, beginning of year 6,768,624 6,976,092
Revenue recognized due to change in accounting principle 1,237,500 -
Net Assets, end of year $ 15,420,388 $ 6,768,624
Change in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions $ 5,618,496 $ 73,440
Change in Net Assets with Donor Restrictions $ 1,795,768 $ (280,908)
Total Change in Net Assets $ 7,414,264 $ (207,468)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Legal Foundation of Washington

Statements of Functional Expenses

Attachment A

2019 2018
Management Management

Years Ended December 31, Program and General Fundraising Total Program and General Fundraising Total

Grant expense $10,048,324 $ - 0% - $10,048,324 $ 8,852,325 $ - 3 - $ 8,852,325
Salary and related costs 371,667 348,612 291,663 1,011,942 372,750 342,021 257,408 972,179
Grantee support 238,411 - - 238,411 242,865 - - 242,865
Office and occupancy 63,949 60,919 50,024 174,892 59,963 57,231 45,858 163,052
Professional fees 78,730 20,237 205 99,172 86,650 25,246 2,818 114,714
Fundraising and outreach - 786 81,223 82,009 - 1,035 63,758 64,793
Board/meetings/conferences 34,439 16,695 10,380 61,514 16,794 19,635 7,033 43,462
Information technology 16,552 10,019 12,749 39,320 14,449 8,589 8,988 32,026
Communications 6,604 464 2,156 9,224 5,679 1,856 4,051 11,586
Other expenses 6,340 20,152 17,790 44,282 10,000 16,294 17,855 44,149
Total Expenses $10,865,016 $ 477,884 $ 466,190 $11,809,090 $ 9,661,475 $ 471,907 $ 407,769  $10,541,151

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Legal Foundation of Washington

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2019 2018

Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities

Cash received from IOLTA $ 11,595,291 $ 5,055,302
Cash received from Cy Pres awards 1,333,803 908,827
Cash received from grants and contributions 4,392,478 4,512,342
Cash received from other sources 314,741 334,989
Investment income received 639,502 558,395
Cash paid for grants (10,512,467) (10,709,281)
Cash paid to employees (1,007,806) (975,316)
Cash paid to suppliers (850,024) (838,287)
Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities 5,905,518 (1,153,029)
Cash Flows for (from) Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 8,326,182 9,347,408
Purchase of investments (10,171,046) (8,377,895)
Purchase of furniture and equipment (45,841) (5,311)
Net Cash Flows for (from) Investing Activities (1,890,705) 964,202
Cash Flows for (from) Financing Activity
Net collections (payments) on pass-through grant obligations (2,686) 27,756
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,012,127 (161,071)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 2,483,662 2,644,733
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 6,495,789 $ 2,483,662

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Legal Foundation of Washington

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Activities

The Legal Foundation of Washington (the “Foundation”) was created at the direction of the
Washington State Supreme Court in 1984 to administer the Interest on Lawyers’ Trust Accounts
(“IOLTA”) program in Washington State. The IOLTA program requires that interest earned on IOLTA
accounts be used for tax exempt charitable and educational purposes that are related to the legal
profession. Decisions on the allocations of awards for such purposes are made by the Foundation’s
Trustees.

Lawyers licensed to practice in Washington State and limited practice officers (LPOs) are required
to participate in the program if they hold client funds in pooled trust accounts.

The Foundation is dedicated to equal justice for low-income persons. The Foundation funds
programs and supports policies and initiatives that enable the poor and the most vulnerable to
overcome barriers in the civil justice system. As part of these activities, the Foundation hosts and
funds the Equal Justice Coalition, which is a committee of the Access to Justice Board of the
Washington State Bar Association. The Equal Justice Coalition’s mission is to educate elected
officials and the public about the importance of civil legal aid in Washington State.

The Foundation also works closely with the Endowment for Equal Justice (the “Endowment”).
The Endowment raises private charitable support for civil legal aid. This collaboration, described
more fully in Note 3, results in greater efficiencies for each organization while working on their
common goal of equal access to the civil justice system. The Endowment is legally separate from
the Foundation and is audited separately.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Foundation reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two
classes of net assets: Without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions. Contributions and
grants received are recorded as support with donor restriction or without donor restriction
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions consist of the following:

December 31, 2019 2018
Undesignated $ 4,272,786 $  (1,295,963)
Board-designated Goldmark Fund 9,003,684 7,716,437

$ 13,276,470 $ 6,420,474

The Goldmark Fund was established in 1986 to hold assets set aside by the Board of Trustees to
stabilize grant awards in the event of significant fluctuations in the annual IOLTA or other revenue.
Funds may be disbursed only with approval of the Board. Funds are included in the Foundation’s
investments and are held in a separate investment account.

10



Attachment A
Legal Foundation of Washington

Notes to Financial Statements

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of unexpended contributions restricted for particular
purposes or time periods. Net assets with restrictions are transferred to net assets without
restrictions as expenditures are incurred for the restricted purpose or as time restrictions are met.
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, all net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for future
time periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all unrestricted highly liquid
investments with a maturity on acquisition of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At times,
balances exceed federally insured limits.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is a market based measurement determined based on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. There are three levels that prioritize the inputs
used in measuring fair value as follows:

e Level 1: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are
observable either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which require the reporting
entity to develop its own assumptions.

Investments

The Foundation records its investments at fair value in the statements of financial position. The fair
value measurement of the investments was determined using Level 1 observable market inputs
within the fair value hierarchy consisting of quoted prices in active markets, such as national
exchanges, for identical assets.

Realized gains and losses, which are determined using the specific identification method, and
unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying statements
of activities.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost. The Foundation capitalizes expenditures for furniture
and equipment with a cost in excess of $1,000 that have a useful life of at least one year.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the asset’s estimated useful life,
generally a period of five years.

Grants Awarded

Grants awarded to others are recorded as an expense and a liability when approved by the Board of
Trustees and the grant has been awarded. All accrued grants are expected to be paid in the next
year.

11
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Notes to Financial Statements

Pass-Through Grant Obligations

Pass-through grant obligations consist of funds received where the donor has designated a certain
portion to be passed through to another nonprofit organization. Pass-through obligations are not
recorded as revenue or expense by the Foundation. At December 31, 2019, the Foundation expects
all funds to be disbursed in the following year.

Deferred Rent

The Foundation has entered into an operating lease agreement for its office space, which contains
provisions for future rent increases and periods in which rent payments are reduced (abated). In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Foundation records monthly rent expense equal to the total of the payments due over the lease
term, divided by the number of months of the lease term. The difference between rent expense
recorded and the amount paid is credited or charged to deferred rent, which is reflected as a
separate line item in the accompanying statements of financial position.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of sponsorships related to the Goldmark award luncheon. Revenue is
recognized when the luncheon takes place.

Revenue Recognition (IOLTA and Cy Pres)

IOLTA receipts are recognized as revenue when the amount becomes known. Amounts received may
vary from year to year due to the amount of funds in IOLTA accounts, interest rates, and bank
service charges. IOLTA revenue is shown in the statements of activities net of bank fees of $106,566
and $87,580 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Cy Pres awards (residual funds from class action lawsuits awarded to the Foundation) are recorded
when received.

Pledges and Grants Receivable

Contribution and grant revenue is recognized when a pledge or grant is made. Pledges and grants
receivable from contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net
realizable value. Pledges and grants receivable that are expected to be collected in future years
are recorded at fair value, which is measured at the present value of the future cash flows. The
discount is computed using risk-adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the pledges
and grants are received. Amortization of the discount is included in grants and contributions revenue
in the statements of activities. There was no discount recognized at December 31, 2019 or 2018, as
management determined that the discount was immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.

Management reviews the collectibility of pledges and grants receivable on a periodic basis and
determines the appropriate amount of any allowance. The Foundation charges off receivables to
the allowance when management determines that a receivable is not collectible. At both
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $2,000.

The Foundation receives state funding through a grant from the Northwest Justice Project (“NJP”)
(an unrelated not-for-profit organization).

12
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Notes to Financial Statements

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from the estimated amounts.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to program or
supporting functions. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, benefits, payroll
taxes, office and occupancy, professional services, information technology, and other, which are
allocated on the basis of estimates of time spent by program or supporting functions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement Adopted

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Foundation adopted the provisions of Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (“Topic 958”) - clarifying the scope
and accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The update assists
entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
(nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange
(reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is
conditional. As result of adopting the ASU, the Foundation has adjusted how it recognizes grants
from NJP as they are now considered contributions under the ASU. Accordingly, the Foundation has
recognized the change on the modified prospective basis. This resulted in recording a change in
accounting principle adjustment to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of
activities of January 1, 2019.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts from the December 31, 2018, financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the current-year presentation.

2. Liquidity and Availability

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Foundation has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including
cash and cash equivalents, and marketable debt and equity securities. See Note 5 for information
about the Foundation’s investments.

The Foundation’s Board of Trustees determines its level of annual grant expenditures within the
context of resources on hand, as well as a three year revenue projection. The Foundation anticipates
revenue from contract revenue, contributions, interest on IOLTA accounts, and Cy Pres awards. Due
to the passive and unpredictable nature of IOLTA funding, the Foundation maintains reserves that
would attempt to support a consistent level of grant funding.
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Notes to Financial Statements

The table below presents financial assets available for general expenditures within one year at
December 31:

December 31, 2019 2018
Financial Assets at Year-End
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,495,789 $ 2,483,662
Investments 16,480,863 13,800,093
Interest receivable 36,195 15,726
Pledges and grants receivable, net 2,343,135 889,190
Total Financial Assets 25,355,982 17,188,671
Less: Amounts not Available to be Used within One Year
Board-designated Goldmark Fund (9,003,684) (7,716,437)
Pledges and grants receivable - due after one year (50,000) (100,000)

Financial Assets Available to Meet
General Expenditures within One Year $ 16,302,298 $ 9,372,234

3. Memorandum of Agreement

The Foundation and the Endowment have a Memorandum of Agreement. Under the agreement,
(1) the Foundation provides management and operating support for the Endowment; (2) the Board
of Directors of the Endowment, with the support of the Foundation staff, agreed to raise funds for
the Endowment to support civil legal aid for the poor; and (3) the Foundation’s Board of Trustees
agreed to allocate these funds to civil legal aid providers throughout Washington State.

The Foundation is reimbursed by the Endowment for certain direct costs incurred by the Foundation
for the benefit of the Endowment, including compensation and related costs, professional fees,
printing, postage, and other direct costs that can be directly allocated to the Endowment.

The Foundation received contributions of $823,604 and $794,020 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, from the Endowment, which are included with
contributions revenue on the statements of activities.

In addition, related to the Endowment’s current fundraising campaign, the Foundation granted
$500,000, to the Endowment during the year ended December 31, 2019. The amount is included
with grant expense on the statements of functional expenses. At December 31, 2019, $105,621 was
still owed to the Endowment and is included in grants payable on the statements of position.
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4. Pledges and Grants Receivable

Pledges and grants receivable consist of the following:

December 31, 2019 2018
Receivable in less than one year $ 2,295,135 $ 791,190
Receivable in greater than one year 50,000 100,000

2,345,135 891,190
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (2,000) (2,000)
Pledges and Grants Receivable $ 2,343,135 $ 889,190

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, 84% and 54%, respectively, of total pledges and grants receivable

is due from NJP.

5. Investments

The components of the Foundation’s investments are as follows:

December 31, 2019 2018

Mutual Funds
Intermediate term bonds $ 1,357,122 $ 1,084,190
Large cap blend 3,398,468 3,021,046
World stocks 1,219,176 989,459
Foreign large cap blend 1,233,680 1,056,715
Short-term bonds 924,151 809,304
Global real estate 324,005 269,886
Small cap blend 220,739 194,706
Multisector bonds 241,192 215,324
Commodity broad basket 81,330 75,807
U.S. Government-Backed Treasury Bills and Strips 1,360,000 2,706,847
Corporate Bonds 4,471,000 400,000
U.S. Government Bonds 1,650,000 2,976,809
$ 16,480,863 $ 13,800,093

As discussed in Note 1, $9,003,684 and $7,716,437, are held in the Board-designated Goldmark Fund
for long-term purposes at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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The following schedule summarizes the investment return:

Years Ended December 31, 2019 2018
Interest, dividends, and capital gain distributions $ 659,971 558,395
Net realized losses (10,471) (187,429)
Net unrealized gains (losses) 846,377 (728,498)
$ 1,495,877 (357,532)
6. Furniture and Equipment
Furniture and equipment consist of the following:
December 31, 2019 2018
Equipment $ 97,198 52,969
Furniture and fixtures 8,209 8,209
105,407 61,178
Less: accumulated depreciation (50,404) (44,308)
$ 55,003 16,870
7. Leases

The Foundation leases its office space under an operating lease that runs through June 2024. Rental
expense totaled $124,939 and $126,635 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,

respectively. Future minimum rentals under the lease are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2020 131,577
2021 134,601
2022 137,626
2023 140,651
2024 71,082

615,537

8. Pension Plan

The Foundation has a defined contribution pension plan to which it contributes after an employee
has reached one year of service. Contribution rates, as a percentage of each employee’s wages,

were 6% for both years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Contributions vest after two years of employment. The Foundation contributed $44,203 and $43,016

to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

16



Attachment A
Legal Foundation of Washington

Notes to Financial Statements

9. Subsequent Events

The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through the date these financial statements were
available to be issued, which was April 15, 2020.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) a
global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide. However, we
cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of this pandemic. Should it continue, we would
expect an adverse impact to our statement of financial position (including our investment holdings),
changes in net assets, and cash flows in fiscal year 2020.

17

79



Attachment B

2019 ANNUAL GRANTEES

Legal Assistance by Snohomish County
Whatcom (LAW) Legal Services $140,000
Advocates $207,400

King County Programs:

Benefits Law Center $424,500

Eastside Legal Assistace Program $70,600
KCBA Pro Bono Services $611,200

Legal Counsel for Youth & Children $100,000
Solid Ground $230,4Q0

Skagit County Community
Action Volunteer Legal
Services Program $127,800

Chelan-Douglas County
Volunteer Attorney Services
$92,000

Clallam-Jefferson
County Pro Bono
Lawyers $63,200

Kitsap Lega er Lawyer
Services
$70,400

Tacoma-Pierce
County Bar
Association i
Volunteer Legal
Services
Program
$254,000

Thurston County
Volunteer Legal S =
Services $144,300

A\

V Blue Mountain Action Council
Volunteer Attorney Program

Yakima County $35,700

Volunteer Benton-Franklin

Cowlitz-

Wahkiakum

Legal Aid

e Clark County Attorney Services Legal Aid $82,700
Volunteer $75,000
Lawyers Program
$78,500

STATEWIDE GRANTEES

Columbia Legal Unemployment
Services $3,656,500 Law Project
$400,400
TeamChild Northwest Immigrant
$557,400 Rights Project $1,275,000

In addition to these Annual Grants, LFW made Special Grants totaling $300,000, Alliance Support Grants
totaling $370,000 and Race Equity Grants totaling $75,000, which are not depicted on this map.
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Legal Foundation of Washington 2019 Grants

Pass
LFW General Pro Bono Through Bank of

Annual Grantess Funds Expansion | State Funds America Total 2019 Grant
Benton Franklin Legal Aid $63,700 $19,000 $82,700
Blue Mountain (Walla Walla) $35,700 $35,700
Chelan Douglas VAS* $62,000 $30,000 $92,000
Clallam Jefferson Pro Bono $43,200 $20,000 $63,200
Clark Co. VLP $48,500 $30,000 $78,500
Columbia Legal Services $1,331,500 $2,325,000 $3,656,500
Community Action- Skagit Co. VLP $85,800 $42,000 $127,800
Cowlitz Wahkiakum Legal Aid $35,400 $35,400
Eastside Legal Assistance Program $70,600 $70,600
King Co. Bar Foundation $498,840 $112,360 $611,200
Kitsap Co. Legal Services $70,400 $70,400
LAW Advocates $157,400 $50,000 $207,400
Legal Counsel for Youth and Children $100,000 $100,000
Northwest Immigrant Rights $1,275,000 $1,275,000
Seattle Community Law Center $154,500 $270,000 $424,500
Snohomish Co. Legal Services $110,000 $30,000 $140,000
Solid Ground $120,400 $110,000 $230,400
Spokane Co. Bar VLP $113,300 $50,000 $163,300
TacomaProBono $194,000 $60,000 $254,000
TeamChild $422,400 $135,000 $557,400
Thurston Co. VLS $92,660 $51,640 $144,300
Unemployment Law Project $210,400 $80,000 $110,000 $400,400
Yakima Co. VAS $75,000 $75,000
Totals $5,370,700 $575,000 $625,000 $2,325,000 $8,895,700

Pass
LFW General Pro Bono Through Bank of
Special Grants Funds Expansion | State Funds America Total Grant
Center for Justice $100,000 $100,000
Colectiva Legal del Pueblo $25,000 $25,000
JustLead $45,000 $45,000
Laurel Rubin Farmworker Justice $25,000 $25,000
Lavender Rights Project $75,000 $75,000
Northwest Justice Project $300,000 $300,000
Wayfind $100,000 $100,000
Totals $470,000 $200,000 $670,000
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CLS Class Action Impact Overview, 2015-2019
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CLS Class Action Impact Overview, 2015-2019

Case Summaries .

Amireh v UW Medicine: Challenge to medical debt
colleclon pracEices.

C.S. v King County: Suit challenging King County’s
use of isolallon against youth and lack of educaon
provided to those youth.

Farris v Franklin Co.: Suit to improve condifons in
jail that included inadequate health care, excessive
restraint, seclusion and isolallon.

Haldane v Hammond: Suit against Washington
State Department of Correclons challenging its
denial of medical care to prisoners sul [Fing from
serious medical condiflons in violalon of the
ConsBltulBlonal prohibiflon against cruel and
unusual punishment.

Lopez v Health Management Associates: Alleged

medical center violated state-mandated “charity

care” rules and charged many low-income people * Does not include pro bono hours
for care they should have received for less or free.

Martinez v Deruyter Brothers Dairy: Suit for Rosas v Sarbanand: Suit challenging pracZices violaling rights of H-2A farmworkers under
failure to pay wages and consBtullonal challenge federal an@-trafficking laws, state labor and an-discriminalon laws.

?) ?|
to exemptllon from ovel fhe statute for Ruiz v Mercer Canyons: Suit against farm for failure to follow federal and state laws
agricultural workers. proteclng workers.
Roberson v Ray Klein: Challenge to debt collecflon

pracBices. 83
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2019 Legal Aid in the News

A hidden injustice: Solitary confinement in Washington state prisons

Nov. 11, 2019 at 6:00 am Updated Nov. 13, 2019 at 8:02 am
By Naomi Ishisaka
Seattle Times columnist

D Unit, to the right, is where the Clallam Bay Corrections Center’s Intensive Transition Program, or ITP, is
housed. (Bettina Hansen / The Seattle Times)

On Oct. 7, 600 inmates at Clallam Bay Corrections Center went on a food strike to protest ongoing
issues with conditions at the prison.

Inmates were concerned about collective punishment, the high costs for goods and services coupled
with low pay for work, quality of food and other issues. Two days later, 36 people — including the food
strike leaders — were shipped to Walla Walla State Penitentiary and 15 of them were placed in solitary
confinement, also known as the Intensive Management Unit or IMU.

Solitary confinement means being locked in a prison, jail or detention for 22-24 hours a day with no
social contact, limited access to family and limited or no access to rehabilitation or education programs.
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Those subjected to solitary confinement often suffer anxiety, hallucinations, paranoia, cognitive decline
and many other issues. While people in solitary confinement are between 3% and 8% of the prison
population, they make up 50% of prison suicides.

Called by a number of names, the use of solitary confinement is shockingly common in the U.S.
According to a 2015 study by Yale Law School, an estimated 80,000 people are in solitary confinement
across the country on a given day. And while the U.N. adopted “Mandela Rules” in 2015 saying solitary
should be used only in exceptional cases and prohibiting the use of solitary confinement beyond 15
days, the Yale study showed 81% of those held in solitary were held between one month and over six
years.

So why should we care what happens to 36 people locked up in the northwest tip of the state? Isn’t the
point of prison to punish? What difference does it make if they are in solitary or not?

If we are judged as a society by how we treat the most marginalized, we must care about the treatment
of those hidden away in the world’s largest system of mass incarceration.

One of the most surprising aspects of the use of solitary confinement is the use of “administrative
segregation,” which is ostensibly used by prisons and jails to maintain order, or to “protect” inmates
rather than punish them.

According to Nick Straley, Columbia Legal Services’ lead attorney representing the Clallam Bay inmates,
those in administrative segregation can be held for longer periods of time at the discretion of the prison.
While for a small infraction, an inmate would be held in disciplinary segregation for no more than 20
days, administrative segregation — like the type used against the food strikers — requires no infractions
and allows people to be held up to 47 days before reevaluation.

Unsurprisingly, this segregation method has become popular in prisons, with the majority of people in
solitary now held in administrative segregation, according to the 2015 Yale study. The longest periods in
solitary are also now in administrative segregation, with 14% held a year or longer, compared with 2%
held a year or longer in disciplinary segregation.

Andres Pacificar, 60, knows firsthand what solitary does to a person. Pacificar is a leadership fellow with
the Robert Wood Johnson’s Forward Promise program and a YMCA of Greater Seattle Alive &

Free outreach worker, focused on support for court-involved youth. From 1990-2008, Pacificar served
time in prisons from Clallam Bay to Walla Walla after pleading guilty to murder. While in Clallam Bay,
Pacificar founded the Asian Pacific Islander Cultural Awareness Group (API-CAG) to help the
administration understand the needs of APl inmates as well as work with younger people on gang and
violence prevention.

After founding API-CAG in 1994, Pacificar said he was put in solitary three times. The first time was for
13 months, purportedly for a phone violation, but he believes the real cause was retaliation for his work
to improve conditions in the prison. He said the experience was life changing.

“The mental pain that IMU creates breaks men down,” Pacificar said. “You know, | used to question my
existence for so long. | would talk to myself because you get so used to being inside your own head and
not having anyone to talk to. You’re not sure [the difference between] reality and just thoughts.
Where’s the line?”
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Ultimately, Pacificar said, this mental brutalization is not just inhumane, it’s self defeating.

“At the end, those people that they’re creating in those IMUs will one day be your next-door neighbor,”
he said, and the anger and mental deterioration created in solitary confinement are antithetical to the
goals of successful rehabilitation and integration.

“I’'ve seen many, many prisoners break and succumb to the torture that it is,” he said.

U.N. investigator Juan Méndez also warns against “the severe mental pain or suffering solitary
confinement may cause,” saying it “can amount to torture.”

The Department of Corrections (DOC) said that since 2011, it has cut the number of people in restrictive
housing and is working on other improvements. And as of last Thursday and following delivery of a letter

to the governor by advocates demanding the inmates’ release from solitary, the DOC said the last of the
transferred inmates were removed from solitary at Walla Walla. But for those trying to advocate for
better conditions at Clallam Bay, the damage might already be done.

Straley said through the retaliatory transfers and solitary confinements, the DOC sent a clear signal.

“The message that | think people are hearing is that if you are concerned about the serious conditions in
prison, you can suffer ... the most serious consequences, which is being thrown in solitary confinement.
And that message is heard ... by all the men at the prison.”

Ironically, many of the issues raised by inmates at Clallam Bay were echoed in the Nov. 1 release of the
first annual report of the Office of the Corrections Ombuds, which said efforts should be made to build
connections between inmates and their families to foster reintegration; healthy, quality food should be
prioritized; and more opportunities for job skills created.

In addition to the DOC adopting those recommendations, Washington state policymakers should take a
hard look at the use of solitary confinement and consider adopting the U.N. standards, so that
Washington state can truly recognize the dignity of all people.

Naomi Ishisaka: nishisaka@seattletimes.com; on Twitter: @naomiishisaka. Naomi Ishisaka writes about
race, culture and equity, through a social-justice lens. Her column appears weekly on Mondays.

86


https://docs.google.com/document/d/1m4MyQr-BPkmeZES4EmV11UoZG_CE8O4NCiboWfp4Vuc/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1m4MyQr-BPkmeZES4EmV11UoZG_CE8O4NCiboWfp4Vuc/edit
https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/Annual%20Report%202019%20Final.pdf?fbclid=IwAR08QrAvgRGY6QQU0HRDrVq8HrAT6h6ZyyfGstlaBmKUcN4nawJxydlwqS0
mailto:nishisaka@seattletimes.com
https://www.twitter.com/naomiishisaka

Attachment D

'Justice Bus' hits Seattle streets to offer legal aid for low-income
individuals

Each week the bus will go to various spots around the community and provide legal counsel to the
homeless and other low-income families.

Author: Tony Black

K5 News

Published: 10:02 PM PDT October 10, 2019
Updated: 10:02 PM PDT October 10, 2019

SEATTLE — The Justice Bus is on the streets of Seattle.

The bus comes from Benefits Law Center. They purchased an old Metro Access bus from an auction in
2018 and turned it into a “law office on wheels”

Each week the bus will go to various spots around the community and provide legal counsel to the
homeless and other low-income families. It is the first of its kind in Washington state.

The goal was to eliminate the barriers that would otherwise keep people from seeking the help they
need.
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“When somebody has barriers like transportation or simply being able to engage with a typical law
office, we bring the bus to them so they can get legal services where they’re at,” said Alex Doolittle, the
Executive Director for the Benefits Law Center.

One of the designers, Erica Bush, said she wanted to make it feel very comforting and welcoming and
make them feel like when people walked on that bus to get help, they weren’t walking onto a bus.

“l want them to feel cared for in a space that was the same quality that anyone else would expect,” said
Bush.

Right now, there aren’t any plans for an “on-demand” type of service with the bus, but they will
announce via social media where the bus will be each week.

Doolittle said the bus will be at common community areas where people will feel welcome to come and
get legal help. The bus is also ADA compliant, she said.

You can learn more about the Justice Bus on the BLC's website.
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Volunteer attorney services announces housing justice project

by Action News Staff
Wednesday, September 11th 2019

YAKIMA, Wash. - The Yakima County Volunteer Attorney Services (YCVAS) is pleased to announce the
creation of the Housing Justice Project in Yakima.

The YCVAS sent out a press release on Tuesday with the following information:

The Housing Justice Project is a program designed to ensure free representation of low-income tenants
in legal disputes with their landlord.

Volunteer lawyers will be present at the unlawful detainer court calendars held on Tuesday and Friday
afternoons.

The lawyers will be checking for deficiencies in the legal documents and negotiating with the landlord or
the landlord’s attorney.

Announcements will be made before court if you would like a chance to meet with a lawyer before your
hearing.

Or if you have received paperwork initiating an eviction, you can come to the courthouse at 1:00PM on
Tuesdays and Fridays to speak with an attorney before your matter goes to court.

“l am so excited that Yakima County VAS has started a Housing Justice Project. It’s a great way to make a
major difference in the lives of tenants who often feel as if they don’t have a voice. As a volunteer
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attorney | can walk away knowing | helped someone stay in their housing and prevented homelessness,”
explains Matt Kaminksi, YCVAS Board President and volunteer attorney with the Housing Justice Project.

“We have been working on starting this project for months and I'm thrilled to have it finally launch.
When vacancy rates are at 1% programs like this often mean the difference between housing and living
on the street,” explains Quinn Dalan, executive director of YCVAS.

Yakima County Volunteer Attorney Services provides civil legal assistance to low income individuals in
order to reduce barriers and improve access to justice.

For more information please visit our website, www.yakimavas.org or call our office at (509) 453-4400.
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Why don’t more immigrants arrive legally? For many, the doors are
barricaded.
Dec. 9, 2019 at 6:00 am Updated Dec. 9, 2019 at 6:19 am

Naomi Ishisaka
Seattle Times columnist

Children line up outside a tent at a detention center for migrant children in Homestead, Florida, in
February. (Wilfredo Lee / The Associated Press)

After last week’s column on the rise of “crimmigration” in the U.S., | received a flood of emails and
comments from readers that followed a consistent theme:

“Legal immigration is one thing, illegal entry is another. We have a process for immigrants to enter the
USA legally.”

“There’s legal immigration and ILLEGAL immigration! It’s not rocket science!!”
There were many more, with lots more exclamation points, but you get the idea.

The feeling of outrage toward immigrants who “break the rules” appeals to a particular sense of fairness
and justice, one that assumes that if only people followed the law and got “in line,” opportunities
afforded to previous generations of immigrants would be available to them. The perception seems to be
that there are two entry doors to the U.S.: one legal, the other illegal — and migrants just
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incomprehensibly choose the illegal door due to laziness, lack of respect for U.S. laws or desire to do
harm.

But what if the “legal” door is padlocked and blockaded? What if it's only open for five minutes a day
and only if you can open it with your hands tied behind your back?

On virtually every level, “legal” paths to immigration have been barricaded or removed — a

|H

phenomenon known as the “invisible wal

The invisible wall is not a new invention in U.S. immigration policy but it has become taller, wider and
more impenetrable under the Trump administration.

The overall philosophy for the invisible wall is summed up well by an email reported by NBC from a
Trump National Security Council official discussing asylum processing with Customs and Border Patrol.

In the email, the official said, “My mantra has persistently been presenting aliens with multiple
unsolvable dilemmas to impact their calculus for choosing to make the arduous journey to begin with.”

“Multiple unsolvable dilemmas” is a perfect way to describe our current “legal” immigration system, in
which an already Byzantine set of complex policies change by the day.

There are four main legal pathways to the U.S.: family reunification, work visas, diversity lottery and
asylum or refugee status. For each pathway, additional barriers are being erected to slow or stall
migration.

Say you’re a mother from Guatemala, where 60% of people live in poverty, half the children under 5 are
malnourished and there is one of the world’s highest rates of femicide. Like millions of U.S. immigrants
before have done, you take your children to the U.S. to protect them from hunger and violence and to
give them a chance for a better life.

The most generous avenue for immigration is family reunification (if you are fortunate to have an
immediate family member who is a U.S. citizen or permanent resident) — but the wait times are
determined by demand, and the waits for Central American immigrants can be up to 13 years.

The next category, long-term work visa, applies to very few migrants from Central America due to its
restrictions — only 74 people from El Salvador, Guatemala or Honduras combined received long-term
work visas of any kind in 2017.

Diversity lottery? Well “lottery” tells the story for that one. The number of Guatemalans to win that
lottery in 20177 Just 13.

So that brings us to asylum or refugee status. The Trump administration gutted the refugee
program, lowering the cap by a whopping 84%.

Meanwhile, only 31 Guatemalans were granted refuge between October 2017 and June 2018. The
asylum program approved 2,950 of 33,400 Guatemalan applicants in 2017, with efforts under way
to restrict it further.

In short, even by the most generous calculations, no more than 16,000 Guatemalans were admitted to
the U.S. legally in 2017 — a small fraction of those who are estimated to have attempted.
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When | asked Northwest Immigrant Rights Project Executive Director Jorge Bardn about his take on the
locked-door analogy, he said it was largely true except that for many migrants, there is effectively no
door at all. With all the new barriers and changes, Barén said it's now taking the agency 40% longer than
two years ago to process its clients’ immigration cases.

“For a lot of people there isn’t this magical door that they can access,” Barén said. “There’s no line.
There’s no place where they can submit an application that has any chance of succeeding to get in to the
country.”
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Civil legal aid is crucial for many in our district

Rep. Michelle Caldier
Published 5:01 p.m. PT March 13, 2019 | Updated 10:27 a.m. PT March 14, 2019

One of my most important duties, as an elected state representative, is to ensure that essential state
services are fairly and equitably available — especially for those who need them the most. Unfortunately,
an independent study shows our state’s civil legal system leaves many of our neighbors defenseless
during times of crisis — including veterans to whom our society owes its largest debt.

Low-income people in Washington face difficult civil legal problems more often than others; problems
such as eviction, medical debt, and domestic violence. Unlike in criminal cases, our fellow citizens are
not entitled to an attorney at public expense, so state-funded civil legal aid services are often their only
lifeline. Every day civil legal aid helps people protect their safety, financial security, and even the roofs
over their heads.

However, far too many of the working poor in Washington and Kitsap County lack access to civil legal
aid. A 2015 Washington State University study found that three-quarters of people living in poverty face
at least one civil legal crisis each year, but only one in four get any legal help.

The need for civil legal aid is particularly acute for low-income veterans. Distressingly, veteran
homelessness is on the rise across the country. In a recent study, the U.S. Department of Veterans
Affairs identified that one of the highest unmet needs for homeless veterans is legal help to prevent
eviction and foreclosure.

We know this to be true here in Kitsap County, where housing is harder and harder to afford and where
last year’s “Point in Time” homelessness count found at least 100 veterans living on the street.

Thanks to attorneys at the non-profit Northwest Justice Project (NJP) and volunteer attorneys working
with Kitsap Legal Services, we know of success stories that have helped veterans and low-income
citizens find housing. These lawyers assisted more than 500 people in our county last year, with 56 local
attorneys donating nearly 900 volunteer hours to the effort.

These legal services are also a lifeline for our low-income neighbors, including our seniors, who have no
other place to turn when circumstances arise that threaten their health and safety.

Take for example, Norma, an 82-year-old Kitsap senior who had a medical emergency that led to her
temporary placement in a long-term care facility. Before she could complete her recovery, the facility
moved to evict her, claiming she could afford to pay a higher monthly rate for her stay. An NJP attorney
discovered the facility was not accurately determining what she could afford to pay — and that the
Department of Social and Health Services (DSHS) made a mistake in defining her financial condition,
which led to a retroactive financial adjustment. Once these mistakes were uncovered, she was able to
complete her treatment at the facility.

We are fortunate in Kitsap County to have state-supported attorneys at the Northwest Justice Project
and volunteer attorneys at Kitsap Legal Services working every day to protect our veterans and their
neighbors in need of civil legal assistance.
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I’'m proud to be among those in the Legislature who understand the value of investing in civil legal aid. In
recent years, I've worked with a bipartisan majority to implement a Civil Justice Reinvestment Plan.

Despite improving the situation for our veterans and low-income citizens, we know we must do more.
Over time, we need to rebuild our legal aid system so it can ensure fair and equitable access to people in
need of legal help with their most important personal and family matters. | continue to support these
efforts in the 2019 legislative session, because our most vulnerable veterans and so many others in need
of legal help will be counting on us to succeed.

Rep. Michelle Caldier, R-Port Orchard, represents the 26th Legislative District, which includes Gig Harbor,
Port Orchard, the Key Peninsula and a portion of Bremerton. She is the assistant ranking Republican on
the House Health Care and Wellness Committee.
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Homeless Youth Don’t Realize How Much Legal Aid Can Help Them

By Erin Lovell | April 11, 2019

Vp Photo Studio/Shutterstock

Civil legal aid services are a necessary tool in preventing and eliminating youth homelessness. Though
most young people do not initially identify their problems as legal in nature, legal advocacy can often
help prevent the experience or reoccurrence of homelessness.

For example, barriers to housing and employment can be reduced by mitigating the consequences of a
juvenile or criminal record or by resolving open warrants and legal financial obligations. Representing
young people in domestic violence proceedings and emancipation can remove barriers to safe and
stable housing.

Resolving issues such as identity theft and consumer debt can help young people access credit needed
for student financial aid and housing applications. Improving access to and challenging denials of public
benefits can provide for basic needs such as food and medical care but can also provide income to
maintain housing and services such as child care to help youth maintain employment and access higher
education. Helping a young person change their gender marker and name can empower them to feel
safe applying for educational and employment programs.

96



Attachment D

Any minor struggling with homelessness alone has a legal issue, because someone is legally responsible
for caring for each child. Minors struggling with homelessness need legal advice to understand their
options for safety, to access emergency shelter, education and medical care. Many minors need an
attorney to help them navigate and access immigration relief, child protective services, educational
systems and juvenile and family court proceedings.

Providing a young person in crisis with an attorney alone, however, is rarely sufficient. In order to be
effective, civil legal aid attorneys need to build strong partnerships with service providers, juvenile court
professionals and schools. Strong community partnerships result in an increase in understanding of
when an attorney may be helpful (and thus more young people can benefit from civil legal aid), more
holistic services for youth and families and an improved ability to identify and address systemic gaps and
barriers affecting youth homelessness.

Many youth equate needing an attorney to being in trouble. If the youth is not in trouble with the
police, then an attorney seems unnecessary. As a result, many youth do not access the help of a civil
legal aid attorney, even when the attorney’s help could be critical in protecting or securing the youth’s
legal rights, benefits, safety, medical care, educational programs or housing.

Strong partnerships among civil legal aid attorneys, service providers and schools — including onsite
legal intake and outreach as well as shared staff meetings and training opportunities — increase service
provider, school staff and youth awareness of the variety of legal systems, rights and issues impacting
youth and when a civil legal aid attorney may be helpful. Onsite intake and outreach services also enable
youth to more easily connect with civil legal aid attorneys. Civil legal aid attorneys become part of the
youth’s support team.

Strong partnerships between civil legal aid and other community service providers lead to more holistic
services for youth and families. For example, in Washington State, Legal Counsel for Youth and

Children (LCYC) partners closely with YouthCare, Friends of Youth and the Accelerator

YMCA and Therapeutic Health Services. LCYC provides direct legal advocacy services to youth ages 12 to
24 who either are or are at risk of experiencing homelessness alone in King County, Wash.

The named service organizations offer a wide range of youth and family supports such as emergency
shelter, case management, housing navigation, family reconciliation, rental assistance, mental health
and chemical dependency services, and transitional living. Other community partners, such as
Therapeutic Health Services, offer counseling for youth and families.

Beyond collaborating to support individual youth and families, these partnerships can improve systemic
advocacy. Youth, parents, service providers, schools, attorneys and others have a variety of personal
experiences and professional expertise to collaboratively identify barriers and brainstorm potential
solutions on systemic problems perpetuating youth homelessness.

Erin L. Lovell serves as the executive director of Legal Counsel for Youth and Children in Seattle. She is a
graduate of Northwestern University Pritzker School of Law and the University of Notre Dame.
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2019 Race Equity Grantees

Center for Justice
Addressing racial inequality in Spokane through policy advocacy, community legal clinics, and post-
conviction and re-entry services.

Cowlitz Wahkiakum Legal Aid
Advancing race equity in Southwest Washington with community trainings, outreach, and organizational
capacity building.

Disability Rights Washington
Integrating movement lawyering into a statewide action plan to better serve people with disabilities in
communities of color.

Dispute Resolution Center of Yakima & Kittitas
Opening new inroads at the courts for Spanish-speaking families previously excluded from linguistic and
cultural access.

Entre Hermanos & QLaw Foundation
Expanding statewide services to Latinx LGBTQ immigrants through direct representation of asylum
seekers, legal clinics, and trainings for volunteer attorneys.

Seattle Clemency Project
Advocating for clemency for refugees around the state who are at risk of being deported and separated
from family due to prior convictions for which they have already served time.

Tenants Union of Washington State
Building the power of low income renters of color to advocate for just cause eviction, rent control, and
housing justice.

Washington Parole Coalition
Organizing community members impacted by mass incarceration, survivors of violence, and civil legal
aid providers to bring comprehensive parole reform to Washington.

West African Community Council
Achieving legal status and permission to work for Limited English Proficient members of Seattle’s
growing West African community.

What’s Next Washington & Freedom Project
Removing systemic barriers to re-entry by building skills, support, and resources for people directly
impacted by the criminal justice system.
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Race Equity Grant Advisory Panel

In 2019, the Race Equity Grant Advisory Panel made recommendations for the 10 grant recipients and
elected Carmen Pacheco-Jones, a public health advocate and chair of the Spokane Regional Law &
Justice Council’s Racial Equity Committee, as chair. Her fellow panelists are:

e Sarah Augustine, Dispute Resolution Center of Yakima & Kittitas

e Omid Bagheri, JustLead Washington

¢ Nancy Garcia, Seattle University School of Law

e Chris Graves, Snohomish County Legal Services

e Dainen Penta, Center for Justice

e  Kristin Shotwell, King County Department of Public Defense

Pacheco-Jones (pictured below with her daughter and granddaughter) answered a few questions about

the panel’s work:

What is the value of a grant advisory panel?

When you bring multiple voices together,
with multiple experiences and different
dynamics and stories, you really get the
individuals that are stepping up to serve their
communities and who are the first responder-
types who know what their communities
need. So having their voices at the table is so
important. They know how to build a
program that is going to be meaningful and
impactful, and allowing them to have the
decision-making capacity gives great value to
the programs.

What do you hope to provide to the grantees?

Photo by Deborah Espinosa for Living with Conviction

As civil legal aid providers, they are really in the trenches. And through this grant expansion, we’re really
interested in communities that have often been excluded to accessing legal aid and looking at what their
needs are, and the complexities in communities of color that will help us serve a broader population.

What most excites you about this year’s grants?

We looked at all these different organizations that are doing such impactful work, and thought about
how we could share information, learn from one another, partner with one another, through the
movement toward equity. I’'m most excited about seeing the work that’s going to be done and see the
organizations that received these grants really dig in and look at barriers that have inhibited access for

communities of color.
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Partnership Grantees

2020 Grants with Funding Sources

2020 LFW

Pro Bono

Pass Through (Pro Bono Salary|Specialty Salary

Attachment F

Total 2020

Benefits Law Center

Benton Franklin Legal Aid

Blue Mountain (Walla Walla)
Chelan Douglas VAS

Clallam Jefferson Pro Bono

Clark Co. VLP

Columbia Legal Services
Community Action- Skagit Co. VLP
Cowlitz Wahkiakum Legal Aid
Eastside Legal Assistance Program
King Co. Bar Foundation

Kitsap Co. Legal Services

LAW Advocates

Legal Counsel for Youth and Children
Northwest Immigrant Rights
Snohomish Co. Legal Services
Solid Ground

Spokane Co. Bar VLP
TacomaProBono

TeamChild

Thurston Co. VLS

Unemployment Law Project
Yakima Co. VAS

Totals

General Funds

$154,500
$70,700
$36,810
$66,930
$49,550
$49,980
$3,656,500
$86,680
$36,500
$72,810
$508,850
$72,600
$159,070
$103,000
$1,300,500
$118,380
$124,100
$116,760
$204,880
$422,400
$95,530
$210,400
$75,070
$7,792,500

Expansion
$19,000
$30,000
$20,000
$50,000

$32,000

$112,360

$35,000

$30,000

$45,000

$51,640
$70,000
$55,000
$550,000

State Funds
$270,000

$129,000

$135,000
$135,000

$669,000

$8,600
$18,990
$14,170
$18,850
$38,420

$9,220
$25,500
$12,390
$14,890
$36,700
$12,930

$21,120

$5,240
$43,320

$13,630

$6,030
$300,000

Grant
$489,500
$98,300
$55,800
$111,100
$88,400
$138,400
$3,656,500
$127,900
$62,000
$85,200
$636,100
$109,300
$207,000
$103,000
$1,300,500
$169,500
$253,100
$122,000
$293,200
$672,400
$160,800
$435,400
$136,100
$9,511,500

$65,000

$115,000
$20,000

$200,000

Special Grants

Center for Justice

Civil Survival Project

Colectiva Legal del Pueblo
Communities Rise (formerly Wayfind)

Laurel Rubin Farmworker Justice Project

Lavender Rights Project
Northwest Justice Project
Total

General Funds
$50,000
$50,000
$25,000

$25,000
$50,000
$300,000
$500,000

Pro Bono

Expansion

$25,000

$25,000

BoA Comm.
Redev.

$100,000

$50,000
$75,000
$25,000
$100,000
$25,000
$50,000
$300,000
$625,000
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Office of General Counsel

Attachment 4

To: The President, President-elect, Immediate Past-President, and Board of Governors

From:

Julie Shankland, General Counsel

Lisa Amatangel, Associate Director, OGC

Date: September 2, 2020
Re: Litigation Update

PENDING LITIGATION:

No. Name Brief Description Status
1. Pillon v. WSBA, No. 20-2- | Grievant filed complaint against Complaint filed 07/09/20; WSBA’s
10965-7 (King Sup. Ct) WSBA regarding handling of motion to dismiss granted with
grievance. prejudice on 08/31/20.
2. Small v. WSBA, No. 19-2- | Former employee alleges On 07/17/19, WSBA filed an answer.
15762-3 (King Sup. Ct.) discrimination and failure to Discovery ongoing.
accommodate disability.
3. Beauregard v. WSBA, Alleges violations of WSBA Bylaws | On 08/27/19, the Washington Supreme
No. 19-2-08028-1 (King (Section VII, B “Open Meetings Court granted direct discretionary
Sup. Ct.) Policy”) and Open Public Meetings | review. On 09/26/19, WSBA filed a
Act; challenges termination of Designation of Clerk’s Papers with the
former ED. Superior Court, and a Statement of
Arrangements with the Supreme Court.
WSBA filed a report of proceedings with
the Supreme Court on 11/25/19. WSBA
filed its opening brief on 02/10/20.
Respondent filed his response on
02/28/20; WSBA filed its reply brief on
04/01/20. On 05/15/20, the Supreme
Court appointed Judges Korsmo and
Bjorgen as Justices Pro Tem in this
matter. On 05/28/20, the Supreme
Court denied Respondent’s motion to
supplement the record. Oral argument
held 06/23/20.
4. O’Hagan v. Johnson et Allegations regarding plaintiff’s Motion to Dismiss granted on 08/05/19;
al., No. 18-2-00314-25 experiences with legal system. on 08/28/19 plaintiff circulated a Notice
(Pacific Sup. Ct.) of Intent to Appeal.
5. Scannell v. WSBA et al., Challenges bar membership, fees, | On 01/18/19, the court granted WSBA
No. 18-cv-05654-BHS and discipline system in the and state defendants’ motions to
(W.D. Wash.) context of plaintiff’s run for the dismiss; plaintiff appealed. WSBA
Washington Supreme Court. responded to plaintiff's opening brief on
09/30/19. On 04/09/20, Scannell filed a

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539
800-945-WSBA | 206-443-WSBA | questions@wsba.org | www.wsba.org
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“Motion for Injunction” and supporting
declaration with the Ninth Circuit
seeking a court order permitting him to
run for open positions on the Supreme
Court. On 04/20/20, WSBA filed a
response to the Motion for

Injunction. On 04/30/20, the State
Defendants/Appellees filed a request for
a 60-day extension to respond to the
Motion for Injunction; Scannell opposed
the request.

On 05/14/20 the Ninth Circuit issued a
memorandum/judgment affirming the
district court’s dismissal of all of
Scannell’s claims on the basis of res
judicata and the Rooker-Feldman
doctrine and denying “[a]ll pending
motions and requests”.

On 05/28/20 Scannell filed two motions:
(1) a motion for rehearing and
disqualification of one of the panel
judges (Judge Miller), and (2) a motion
for en banc review. These motions were
denied on 08/31/20.

6. Block v. WSBA et al., No.
18-cv-00907 (W.D.
Wash.) (“Block II")

See Block | (below).

On 03/21/19, the Ninth Circuit stayed
Block Il pending further action by the
district court in Block I. On 12/17/19,
Block filed a status report with the Ninth
Circuit informing the Court of the Block |
Court’s reimposition of the vexatious
litigant pre-filing order against Block. On
06/18/20, the Ninth Circuit lifted the
stay order and ordered the appellees
who have not yet filed their answering
briefs to do so by 08/17/20 (WSBA filed
its answer brief before the stay order
was entered).

7. Eugster v. WSBA, et al.,
No 18201561-2,
(Spokane Sup. Ct.)

Challenges dismissal of Spokane
County 1 (case no. 15-2-04614-9).

Dismissal order signed 01/06/20. On
01/16/20, WSBA filed a supplemental
brief on fees under CR 11 and RCW
4.84.185. Fee award of $28,586 granted

LITIGATION REPORT
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on 02/14/20; Eugster filed a notice of
appeal on 03/02/20. Transferred to
Division I. Schedule issued, clerk’s
papers and statement of arrangements
filed 07/02/20. Awaiting opening brief.

8. Block v. WSBA, et al., No.
15-cv-02018-RSM (W.D.
Wash.) (“Block I”)

Alleges conspiracy among WSBA
and others to deprive plaintiff of
law license and retaliate for

exercising 1st Amendment rights.

On 02/11/19, 9th Cir. affirmed dismissal
of claims against WSBA and individual
WSBA defendants; the Court also
vacated the pre-filing order and
remanded this issue to the District
Court.

On 12/09/19, the United States Supreme
Court denied plaintiff’s Petition of Writ
of Certiorari.

On 12/13/19, the District Court
reimposed the vexatious litigant pre-
filing order against Block; Block filed a
notice of appeal regarding this order on
01/14/20. Block’s opening brief is now
due 10/06/20; WSBA’s answering brief
will be due 11/05/20.

9. Eugster v. Littlewood, et
al., No. 17204631-5
(Spokane Sup. Ct.)

Demand for member information
in customized format.

Dismissed (GR 12.4 is exclusive remedy)
and fees awarded; Eugster appealed.
Merits and fee appeal briefing
completed. Matter transferred to
Division | and set for panel consideration
on 09/25/20 without oral argument.

10. Eugster v. WSBA, et al.,
No. 18200542-1
(Spokane Sup. Ct.)

Alleges defamation and related
claims based on briefing in Caruso
v. Washington State Bar
Association, et al., No. 2:17-cv-
00003-RSM (W.D. Wash.)

Dismissed based on absolute immunity,
collateral estoppel, failure to state a
claim. Briefing complete on appeal and
cross-appeal on fees. Case transferred
to Division Il. Oral argument heard on
10/22/19. On 01/07/20, the Court
affirmed dismissal and reversed fee
denial. Eugster filed a petition for
review with the Washington Supreme
Court; petition denied on 07/08/20.
Awaiting remand on fees.

LITIGATION REPORT
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MEMO

To: WSBA Board of Governors

Attachment 5

From: Jennifer Olegario, Communication Strategies Manager

CC: Sara Niegowski, Chief Communications and Outreach Officer

Date: Aug. 28, 2020

RE: Summary of Media Contacts, July 9—-Aug. 28, 2020

Date Journalist and Media Outlet Inquiry
July 9 Lewis Kamb, Seattle Times Sought information about diploma privilege and
bar exam statistics.
July 17 Joseph O’Sullivan, Seattle Times | Sought information about how WSBA would be
administering the bar exam, in light of COVID.
July 21 Roy Strom, Bloomberg Law Inquired how law firms are preparing to onboard
practitioners who have taken advantage of
diploma privilege rules.
July 27 Chad Sokol, Spokesman-Review | Sought bar exam statistics.
Aug. 17 Stephanie Francis Ward, ABA Inquired whether diploma privilege includes a
Journal supervised practice requirement.
Aug. 24 Philip Watness, The Pioneer Sought information and statistics about the
(Skamania County grievance process.

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539 | 800-945-WSBA | 206-443-WSBA | questions@wsba.org | www.wsba.org
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Aug. 27

Charles Featherston, Columbia | Sought comment about diploma privilege ruling
Basin Herald and effect it may have on the employment

prospects of new lawyers or concerns about the
quality of this year’s lawyers because of it.
Referred him to Supreme Court.

Media Coverage

Re: Bar Exam/Diploma Privilege
e Spokesman-Review: Hundreds Become Lawyers in Washington state Without Taking Bar Exam
Due to COVID-19 Exemption

0 + pickups of same story, including:

Re: LLLT sunset
e Above the Law: Pressure Mounts to Restore Low-Cost Legal Services Program
e Segttle Times: Supreme Court Should Reinstate Low-Cost Legal Assistance Program

Seattle Times, Centralia Chronicle, The Daily World, Everett Herald, The Pew
Charitable Trusts

Re: Whatcom Local Hero Award Winner
e Whatcom Talk: Boys and Girls Club of Whatcom County CEO Heather Powell Receives Local Hero

Award

Media Outreach and News Releases
e Honoring Local Hero from Klickitat-Skamania Counties Bar
0 News release: Jeff Baker Receives Washington State Bar Association Local Hero Award

Columbia Gorge News (includes White Salmon Enterprise, Hood River News, The
Dalles Chronicle)
Skamania County Pioneer

e Reelection of Daniel D. Clark as WSBA Treasurer
O News release

iFiber One News

Seattle Times

Spokesman-Review

Tri-City Herald

Walla Walla Union-Bulletin

Wenatchee World

Yakima Herald-Republic (In Basket for Aug. 2, 2020)
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https://www.spokesman.com/stories/2020/jul/30/hundreds-become-lawyers-in-washington-state-withou/
https://www.spokesman.com/stories/2020/jul/30/hundreds-become-lawyers-in-washington-state-withou/
https://abovethelaw.com/2020/08/pressure-mounts-to-restore-low-cost-legal-services-program/
https://www.seattletimes.com/opinion/editorials/supreme-court-should-reinstate-low-cost-legal-assistance-program/
https://www.whatcomtalk.com/2020/08/05/boys-girls-clubs-of-whatcom-county-ceo-heather-powell-receives-local-hero-award/
https://www.whatcomtalk.com/2020/08/05/boys-girls-clubs-of-whatcom-county-ceo-heather-powell-receives-local-hero-award/
https://www.wsba.org/news-events/media-center/media-releases/jeff-baker-receives-washington-state-bar-association-local-hero-award
https://www.wsba.org/news-events/media-center/media-releases/daniel-d.-clark-re-elected-as-washington-state-bar-association-treasurer-july-27-2020
https://www.yakimaherald.com/news/business/in_basket/in-basket-aug-2-2020/article_dfa6fd87-46be-5077-a475-2d0814be5e2d.html

=  Yakima Valley Business Times (article in Aug. 2020)
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Attachment 7

TO: WSBA Board of Governors
FROM: Terra Nevitt, Executive Director
Paris Eriksen, Volunteer Engagement Advisor
DATE: September 4, 2020
RE: WSBA Committee and Board Reports for 2019-2020 (FY20)

As required by the WSBA Bylaws Article IX.3(b), ‘Each Bar entity must submit an annual report to the
Executive Director and submit such other reports as requested by the BOG or Executive Director.” The
information contained in the reports was submitted by the respective staff liaison for each entity. Financial
information as provided by the Finance and Administration Department. Demographic information was
compiled using the optional information self-reported by members.

The annual reports included following this cover memo are:
Access to Justice Board

Board of Bar Examiners

Character and Fitness Board

Chief Hearing Officer Report

Client Protection Board

Committee on Professional Ethics
Continuing Legal Education Committee
Council on Public Defense

Court Rules and Procedures Committee
Disciplinary Board

Diversity Committee

Editorial Advisory Committee

Judicial Recommendation Committee
Law Clerk Board

Legislative Review Committee

Limited License Legal Technician Board
Limited Practice Board

MCLE Board

Practice of Law Board

Pro bono and Public Service Committee
Washington Young Lawyers Committee

1325 4th Avenue | Suite 600 | Seattle, WA 98101-2539
800-945-WSBA | 206-443-WSBA | questions@wsba.org | www.wsba.org
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: Access to Justice Board (ATJ)
Chair: Sal Mungia

Staff Liaison: Diana Singleton, Bonnie Sterken
Board of Governors Liaison: Carla Higginson

Size of Committee: 10

Direct Expenses: $24,000

Indirect Expenses: $104,142

Number of Applicants for FY21 13

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Access to Justice (ATJ) Board derives its authority from a 1994 Washington Supreme Court Order
and 2016 reauthorization (NO. 25700-B-567) at the request of the Washington State Bar Association
Board of Governors in response to a growing need to coordinate access to justice efforts in
Washington. The ATJ Board works closely with its justice system partners to achieve equal access to
the civil justice system for those facing economic and other significant barriers.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The ATJ Board’s 2018-2020 State Plan for the Coordinated Delivery of Civil Legal Aid to Low Income
People (State Plan) is the current guide for its work. The ATJ Board also adopted updated two-year
priorities in March 2020 to structure its work. The ATJ Board accomplishes its priorities through the
work of a number of standing committees and special initiatives to address current and ongoing
access issues.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

1) Promote Racial Equity. The Board continues to promote racial equity systemically in the
justice system, organizationally amongst Alliance organizations and internally within the
Board’s own practices and organizational culture. In June 2020 the Board released a
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2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

statement acknowledging that it has “not done enough in the battle against racism again
Black communities and other communities of color.” The Board adopted collective and
individual commitments to actively resist racism. Currently, the Board is in the process of
convening Alliance members, racial justice movement leaders, and representatives of
communities most harmed by racism within the justice system to develop an Alliance-wide
Action Plan combatting racism. The Board has engaged JustLead WA to guide the Board
through this and its internal race equity process. The Board has also provided other financial
and in-kind support to JustLead, which provides Alliance members with race equity trainings,
facilitated board and staff meetings, and discrimination of a Race Equity Toolkit.

Responding to COVID-19 Impact on Civil Legal Aid. In June 2020, the ATJ Board began
implementing a series of projects in response to the growing civil legal needs as a result of
the pandemic. The current projects include 1) partnering with the Legal Foundation of
Washington’s Communication Director to support Alliance members in with the public about
the availability of legal aid and how to access services, 2) creating a tool to help the public
and social service providers identify legal needs as a result of the pandemic, and 3) collecting
and sharing information on how courts are addressing the pandemic in a way that is
accessible to the public. A workgroup of the Board is implementing these projects and
identifying other needs that might arise in the coming year.

Implement 2018-2020 State Plan. The ATJ Board is overseeing the implementation of the
three-year State Plan. The plan is in its third and final year. A workgroup of the Board’s
Delivery System Committee will be assessing the implementation over the past three years
and making recommendations on how to move forward with the plan.

Updated the ATJ Technology Principles. In June 2020 the Court released an Order adopted
the updated ATJ Technology Principles. The ATJ Board’s Technology Committee oversaw a
rigorous process to update the Access to Justice Technology Principles, which were originally
developed in 2004, to ensure technology enhances, not hinders, access to justice. The Board’s
Technology Committee is in the process of disseminating the updated Principles through the
Alliance and justice system and developing a process to monitor its implementation.

Build Stronger Bridges with Other Justice Partners. The AT) Board aims to build stronger
bridges with partners in the criminal and juvenile justice systems, child welfare systems, non-
legal community organizations, and the LLLT and low bono communities serving clients of
moderate means. In early 2020 the Board contracted with JustLead WA to conduct research
to understand the potential harms experienced by communities of color, low-income
communities, and other communities experiencing structural bias due to the
compartmentalized, or “siloed,” nature of our civil, criminal, juvenile, and child welfare
systems. With that research completed, the Board is now launching a process with JustLead
WA to convene a task force to identify steps to “desilo” our civil, criminal, juvenile, and child
welfare systems.

Launch Planning for the 2021 Access to Justice Conference. Continuing the momentum of
the successful 2019 Access to Justice Conference, the Board has launched planning for the
2021 conference in the coming fiscal year.

Alliance Communications. The Board continues to send out regular newsletters and manage
the Alliance website as a means to facilitate intra-Alliance communications, share about
resources and opportunities, and promote Alliance related events, jobs, internships, etc.

2020-2021 Goals:

1)

Promote Racial Equity. The Board will continue to promote racial equity systemically in the
justice system, organizationally amongst Alliance organizations and internally within the
Board’s own practices and organizational culture. Much of the work is guided by the
commitments outlined in the Board’s recent racial justice statement in support of Black Lives.
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2) Respond to the Growing Civil Legal Needs because of Covid-19. The ATJ Board’s Covid-19
Response Workgroup will continue to monitor the impact that the pandemic has on the
Alliance and our client populations. The Board will continue to development projects to
address the needs.

3) Build Stronger Bridges with Other Justice Partners. As noted above, the Board is working
with JustLead WA to convene a task force to identifying steps to “desilo” our civil, criminal,
juvenile, and child welfare systems. The task force will meet over the coming year and the
Board will develop an action plan in response to their recommendations.

4) Moving Forward with the 2018-2020 State Plan. As noted, the ATJ Board is overseeing the
implementation of the three-year State Plan. This is an ongoing and critical element of the
ATJ Board’s work. The Board will work with the Alliance to determine appropriate next steps,
which might include extending the implementation period of the State Plan or modifying the
Plan in response to the current environment.

5) 2021 Access to Justice Conference. The Board will host its biennial Access to Justice
Conference. The goals of the conference are to provide inspiration, to create and deepen
partnerships, and to jumpstart innovative strategies that advance equity and justice.

6) Communicate about the Updated ATJ Technology Principles. As noted, the Court recently
adopted the updated ATJ Technology Principles. The next year will involve an extensive effort
to share the Principles broadly with the justice system community.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:

How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

Over the years, the ATJ Board has utilized the expertise of the WSBA’s diversity experts through
trainings and consultation. The Board routinely collaborates closely with the WSBA Public Service and
Diversity team, such as partnering on networking events around the state.

The ATJ Board meetings are well-attended by a variety of stakeholders. We seek and obtain input at
these meetings as well as solicit input from various list serves and other outreach efforts. For
example, the ATJ Technology Principles update process, for example, involved extensive outreach,
focus groups and a joint drafting process involving a wide array of stakeholders. Also, the Board’s
efforts to identify action steps to “desilo” our civil, criminal, juvenile, and child welfare system has
been very intentional in listening to individuals and communities most harmed by structural bias and
disparities.

The ATJ Board has engaged in its own equity and inclusion work every year since 2018 during retreats
and public meetings. With guidance from JustLead, the Board has used an organizational race equity
assessment and identified what internal work it needs to engage in to ensure a culture of inclusion.

The ATJ Board recently updated its Operational Rules, which sets out a commitment to diversity in
the Board and Committees and creates a process for new leaders to get involved.

Addressing racial inequities is spotlighted in the State Plan and the Board’s two-year priorities and has
been a focus of the Board’s most recent Access to Justice Conferences. Also, the Board is a leader in
encouraging race equity work among its counterparts in other states.
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Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

The ATJ Board supports the Equal Justice Community Leadership Academy and other trainings that
promote leadership competencies like self-awareness and achieving workable unity in the legal
profession and beyond. As a convener of civil legal aid organizations, the Board facilities how they and
the larger legal community can coordinate and collaborate to create more equitable access to justice.

To the extent that professionalism includes having self-awareness about one’s own biases, the Board
supports JustLead WA, which offers many trainings involving working against implicit bias.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or their
perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

The ATJ Board Manager has given presentations to the New and Young Lawyer Committee and
Leadership Academy cohorts to encourage their participation on the Board and its committees and to
engage in statewide activities like the biennial Access to Justice Conferences. The Board recruited
new and young lawyers to co-chair the 2019 and 2021 Access to Justice Conference Planning
Committee. This is an opportunity to take on a large, visible leadership role and demonstrated the
Board’s commitment to including new and young lawyers in decision making.

Examples of how the Board supports new and young lawyers and law student include the following:
a) the ATJ Board has supported summer orientations, trainings and networking events for public
interest minded-law students; b) the Board supports a discount rate for students to attend the Access
to Justice Conference and works with the law schools to encourage students to attend; and c) the AT)
Board fully welcomes and encourages the involvement and leadership of new and young lawyers and
law students on its various committees.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

The ATJ Board benefits tremendously from having two community representatives on the Board,
currently Esperanza Borboa and Mirya Munoz-Roach. Their voices on the Board have helped in
keeping our work community and public focused.

At the heart of everything the Board does is service to the public and those who face marginalization
and inequities. Through the Board’s support of the Alliance and its advocacy work, the Board is
working to dismantle systems of oppression that lead to inequity and poverty.

Recently, the Board has dedicated time and resources to engage with social service and community
partners who work directly with members of the public who qualify to receive legal aid services as a
means to learn from them and make connections. Time was devoted to listening sessions at the
Access to Justice Conference where attendees had a chance to hear directly from formerly
incarcerated individuals, members of tribal communities and members of immigrant communities to
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learn about their unique experiences with the justice system. Every year the Board holds at least two
meetings around the state where they make an effort to meet with community based programs to
learn about their work and the people they serve.

While the Board does not routinely communicate directly with the public, the Board has facilitated
trainings and resource opportunities so that Alliance providers can better communicate about how to
access and support legal aid services.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (4) Male (4) No Response (2)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent (2)
Native

Asian (2) Hispanic/Latinx (3)
Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (4) Multi-Racial/Biracial

Not Listed No Response

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (2)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (3)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (5)

Disability:
Yes No (10)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: Board of Bar Examiners (BBE)
Chair: Monica Wasson
Staff Liaison: Gus Quiniones
Board of Governors Liaison: Kim Hunter
Size of Committee: 34

Direct Expenses: $28,500
Indirect Expenses: $10,189
Number of Applicants for FY21

(October 1, 2020 — September 30, | n/a

2021)

Purpose:

The Board of Bar Examiners (BBE) derives its authority from the Admission and Practice Rules (APR),
which provide for appointment of BBE members by the Board of Governors.

The BBE grades the Multistate Essay Examination (MEE) and Multistate Performance Test (MPT)
answers for the Uniform Bar Examination (UBE), and produces the content for the Washington Law
Component (WLC) test, in accordance with the APR as approved by the Washington Supreme Court.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The Multistate Bar Examination (MBE) is scored by the National Conference of Bar Examiners (NCBE)
and the MEE and MPT are graded by the BBE. The grading is typically completed over the course of
one long weekend in March and one in August, both in Seattle.

The winter exam requires a total of 10 examiners to grade the MEE and MPT and the summer exam
requires a total of 18 examiners. Each examiner must attend the mandatory scheduled NCBE grading
workshop in person, by teleconference, or by review of the conference video prior to grading the
exams.

The WLC is reviewed and updated by members of the BBE every other year.
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2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

This fiscal year: Conducted a successful grading conference for the grading of February 2020 MEE and
MPT exams. This was the first time grading was done remotely due to COVID-19.

2020-2021 Goals:

1) Continue to encourage BBE members to attend NCBE annual education conference and NCBE
grading workshops.

2) Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the summer 2020 bar exam will be administered in July and
September 2020. Graders will conduct two exam grading conferences in order to grade both
exams. Examiner grading will be done remotely.

3) Beginning with the September 2020 bar exam, graders will be using a new digital grading
software which allows graders to view and score essay answers digitally instead of hard copy
paper answers.

4) Next Fiscal year: Conduct successful grading conferences for the grading of the February 2021 and
July 2021 MEE and MPT exams and begin the process of reviewing the questions, answers, and
outlines for the Washington Law Component Test.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:

How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

The BBE actively seeks to increase diversity among its members with the assistance of the Bar staff to
promote outreach, and to notify minority and specialty bar associations of vacancies on the BBE.

The Board’s goal is to provide Diversity and Inclusion training annually as part of onboarding.

Current members of the BBE include a range of geographic and other facets of diversity; however, the
Board will always look to improve in this area.

BBE leadership places greater consideration on diversity when screening applications to the Board. In
addition, the Board and staff work to ensure that all members are welcomed into the Board and
provided with the training and materials needed to help them be successful in performing this work.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

The exam process for admission to the practice of law covers ethical and legal judgment issues that
lawyers may face when engaging in their chosen profession. Demonstrating knowledge in these areas
should increase the professionalism of applicants who are admitted to practice.

The function of the BBE is to determine which applicants are capable of meeting the high competency
standards of this profession, and this helps to ensure their professionalism.
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Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or their
perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

The BBE continues to make efforts to recruit lawyers who are newer to the profession, although most
current members have been in practice for a number of years.

The BBE recently appointed one member who meets the description of a new and young lawyer.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

The Board of Bar Examiners conducts closed session meetings when grading the MEE and MPT exams.

The work of the BBE in helping to ensure the competency and professionalism of people licensed to
practice law in Washington works to the benefit of the public who may need legal services.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (13) Male (17) No Response (3)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native

Asian Hispanic/Latinx (1)
Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (27) Multi-Racial/Biracial (2)

Not Listed No Response

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (3)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (7)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (17)

Disability:
Yes (2) No (27)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: Character and Fitness Board (CFB)
Chair: Jeremy Rogers

Staff Liaison: Jean McElroy

Board of Governors Liaison: Bryn Peterson

Size of Committee: 15 currently (can vary)
Direct Expenses: $15,000

Indirect Expenses: $111,650

Number of Applicants for FY21 16

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Character and Fitness Board (CFB) derives its authority from the Washington Supreme Court
under APR 20 - 25.6, most recently amended in 2016.

The CFB conducts hearings upon referral from Regulatory Services Counsel to determine: (1) if
applicants to take the Bar Examination have demonstrated current good moral character and fitness
to be admitted or re-admitted to the practice of law, or (2) have met the requirements to be
reinstated after disbarment.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

Upon referral from Bar counsel after review of application materials and supplemental information,
the CFB conducts hearings, prepares written findings, and makes recommendations to the
Washington Supreme Court (which makes the final decision on all admission/licensing
recommendations). The CFB meets as frequently as necessary, generally meeting one day a month for
hearings. Hearings are generally scheduled to last one-half to one day, and the CFB may complete up
to two hearings in one meeting.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:
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Goal: Continue to conduct hearings as necessary, completing all written findings and
recommendations in a timely fashion.

Accomplishments: So far this fiscal year, the Board has met three times — once for an implicit bias
training, and twice to conduct hearings. Board findings and a recommendation have been filed with
and approved by the Supreme Court in one of the two hearings, and are being reviewed by the
Supreme Court in the second hearing. Three other hearings were continued upon request from the
applicants, due to COVID19 restrictions on in-person gatherings, because the applicants preferred to
wait for a hearing date where they could meet in person with the Board rather than have their
hearing by Zoom. The Board is expected to complete two or three more hearings this year.

Goal: Provide additional diversity training at the start of FY'20.
Accomplishment: This was successfully completed during the first CFB meeting.

Goal: Continue to use electronic tools (Box, templates, etc.) and provide Board members with staff
assistance in order to produce written opinions in a timely fashion while ensuring the confidentiality
of the underlying proceedings.

Accomplishments: The CFB is continuing to use the electronic tools for both receiving and reviewing
hearing materials and for producing written opinions in a timely fashion while ensuring
confidentiality. The Board will also be using the electronic tools to provide additional legal and other
research materials to CFB to CFB members.

2020-2021 Goals:

1. Continue to conduct hearings as necessary, completing all written findings and recommendations
in a timely fashion.

2. Learn and recognize the additional functions provided by the new online application system when
that system is functional, in order to understand how that affects applicants’ ability to provide
accurate and up-to-date information in their applications.

3. Provide diversity training at the first CFB meeting, for consideration and reference when
conducting all hearings during the year.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:

How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?
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The CFB is not currently using specific tools provided by WSBA, other than WSBA diversity training.
The CFB discusses diversity issues as they arise in cases.

Yes, the CFB received diversity training from the WSBA diversity specialist.

The CFB’s makeup is governed by Court rule (APR 23(a)). The members of the CFB come from each
congressional district, a wide variety of practice areas and settings, and a variety of ethnic, racial,
gender, sexual orientation, disability, and other diversity factors, and therefore represent broad
geographic, practice, and experiential diversity. The Board also includes community representatives
and it can include additional members from each Congressional district (which occurs sometimes in
order to include additional members from historically underrepresented backgrounds). The Chair
encourages discussion and invites input from all members, and the CFB works cooperatively, even
when there are significant disagreements in particular cases; diversity of viewpoints is paramount to
the deliberative process.

The Chair always ensures that each member in attendance at a particular hearing has an opportunity
to speak during both questioning and deliberations, and encourages thorough discussion of all
viewpoints.

The hearings involve applicants who come from a wide range of backgrounds and experiences, many
of whom have overcome very difficult personal, societal, and institutional obstacles in order to reach
the point of applying for admission. The Board recommends the admission of many of these
applicants after consideration of their individual circumstances, thereby helping applicants from
historically underrepresented groups enter the profession (if the Court approves the Board’s
recommendation for admission). C&F hearings, by design, require a holistic view of the individual
applicant; such a view necessarily requires the Board to take account of each applicant’s individual
circumstance.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

Among other considerations, the CFB may consider factors that affect and relate to respect and
civility within the legal community. (APR 21(a)(5), (6), (8) and (9).) The CFB also demonstrates respect
and civility within the legal community by how it conducts its hearings and treats applicants
appearing before it.

Among other considerations, the CFB may consider factors that affect and relate to relationships
between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients. (APR 21(a)(5), (6), (8) and (9)).

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or their
perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?
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In order to reduce the need for recusals by CFB members, and to ensure that Board members have an
adequate understanding of the stresses associated with practicing law once removed from any
supports that might be provided by law schools for new grads, the rules governing the Board require
lawyer members to have been admitted for at least 5 years. Nevertheless, the CFB continues to make
efforts to recruit lawyers who are newer to the profession.

The CFB directly or indirectly helps some young lawyers, because going through the C&F hearing
process may encourage or require applicants to have, and provide evidence to the CFB about, among
other things, debt management or the supports applicants have in place to assist them in maintaining
the fitness to practice law despite obstacles and stressors in an actual practice setting.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

The public is directly impacted by the character and fitness of persons admitted to the practice of law
in this state; therefore, attempting to ensure that applicants are of current good moral character and
have the fitness to practice law serves a direct public protection function.

By Court rule, the Board has three public members that serve on it. These public members play an
active role in the hearings and deliberations, and assist with writing findings and recommendations.
The CFB very highly values the input it receives from the public members.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:
Female (6) Male (6) No
Response(3)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed
Ethnicity:
American Indian/Native Black/African-American/African
American/Alaskan Native Descent (1)
Asian (1) Hispanic/Latinx
Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (9) Multi-Racial/Biracial (1)
Not Listed No Response (3)
Sexual Orientation:
Asexual (1) Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (1)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (3)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed
No Response (10)
Disability:
Yes No (12)
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2020 ANNUAL CHIEF HEARING OFFICER REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

[. INTRODUCTION
The Washington Supreme Court appointed! me to serve as chief hearing officer
for a two year term beginning October 1, 2019. WSBA compensates the chief
hearing officer $30,000.00 per year through an independent contractor contract.
This report, required by the contract, covers the time period October 1, 2019
through August 20, 2020.

II. DUTIES OF THE CHIEF HEARING OFFICER
Rules for Enforcement of Lawyer Conduct Rule 2.5(¢)(2) sets out the chief
hearing officer’s duties and authority. The chief hearing officer also attends the
Discipline Advisory Round Table Meetings and participates as an ex-officio
member of the Disciplinary Selection Panel. This report summarizes the chief
hearing officer’s ELC 2.5 duties.

A. HEAR MATTERS
The chief hearing officer can hear matters. I conducted four hearings during this
fiscal year.

B. ASSIGN CASES
The chief hearing officer assigns hearing officers and settlement hearing officers
to individual proceedings from those the Washington Supreme Court appoints to
the list. I have appointed 28 hearing officers and 21 settlement hearing officers
between October 1, 2019 and August 20, 2020. There are no proceedings
currently waiting for hearing officer appointments.

I receive a weekly report listing the cases needing hearing officer and settlement
hearing officer assignments. The Formal Complaints are placed in a Box folder
so I can access them as needed. I review the information and contact hearing
officers who do not have current assignments. I have not had any difficulty
finding hearing officers willing to accept new assignments. In fact, several
consistently volunteer for more work. I have attempted to broaden the experience
of all hearing officers by assigning them equally to settlement conferences, as
well as to disciplinary and disability proceedings. To this extent I feel I have been
successful. Fortunately, most disciplinary hearings only require 2-3 days, which
is easier for hearing officers to accommodate. I will be challenged finding and
assigning hearing officers to longer proceedings (in excess of one week), and may
need to explore bifurcating proceedings, so as to not create an undue hardship on

1 The Supreme Court, upon recommendation of the Board of Governors in consultation
with the Disciplinary Selection Panel, appoints a chief hearing officer to an initial two
year term, followed by renewable five year terms. ELC 2.5(e)(1).
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the hearing officer. (This is something commonly done in workers’ compensation
cases at the administrative level with the Board of Industrial Insurance Appeals).

MONITOR AND EVALUATE HEARING OFFICER PERFORMANCE

I monitor and evaluate hearing officer performance through frequent contact with
the hearing officers and through review of written orders and decisions. Hearing
officers frequently contact me with questions about hearing procedures.

HEAR MOTIONS FOR HEARING OFFICER DISQUALIFICATION

The parties can request hearing officer removal without cause once in each
proceeding.? In addition, the parties may move to disqualify a hearing officer for
cause.’ I have appointed a new hearing officer two times when a party requested
removal without cause. I decided one motion requesting for cause removal.

HEAR PRE-HEARING MOTIONS WHEN NO HEARING OFFICER
ASSIGNED

I have decided motions for orders of default, motions deferring discipline
proceedings, motions objecting to investigative inquiries and investigative
subpoenas, and approved stipulations. I have entered approximately two of these
orders.

HEAR MOTIONS FOR PROTECTIVE ORDERS UNDER RULE 3.2(e)
I have decided no motions for protective order this year.

HEAR MOTIONS PRIOR TO MATTER BEING ORDERED TO HEARING,
INCLUDING WHILE A GRIEVANCE IS BEING INVESTIGATED
I did not receive any of these motions this fiscal year.

HEAR REQUESTS FOR AMENDMENT OF FORMAL COMPLAINT UNDER
RULE 10.7(b)
I have not decided any motions under this rule.

APPROVE  STIPULATIONS TO DISCIPLINE NOT INVOLVING
SUSPENSION OR DISBARMENT AS PROVIDED BY RULE 9.1(d)(2)

The chief hearing officer approves stipulations when a hearing officer has not
been appointed. I approved approximately four stipulations during this fiscal
year.

RESPOND TO HEARING OFFICER REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR
ADVICE RELATED TO THEIR DUTIES.

I responded to frequent requests for hearing officer information or advice relating
to their duties. Many of the questions lead to topics for next year’s training.

2ELC 10.2(b)(1).
3ELC 10.2(b)(2).
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SUPERVISE HEARING OFFICER TRAINING IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ESTABLISHED POLICIES

Hearing officer training is provided annually in the fall and includes CLE credit.
We usually provide a five or six hour program in Seattle and provide Zoom to
facilitate attendance by those outside of Seattle. Topics vary, but include changes
to rules or procedures, Supreme Court cases decided over the last year, settlement
skills, writing skills, diversity training and accessibility training. The most recent
training was in November 2019. Our next training is targeted for November 2020.

III. HEARING OFFICERS

We have 33 hearing officers. Hearing officers are appointed by the Supreme
Court of Washington for initial two year terms, followed by five year terms.
There is no limit on the number of 5 year terms. Hearing officer initial and re-
appointment applications are reviewed by the Discipline Selection Panel (DSP),
including receiving input from the chief hearing officer, Office of Disciplinary
Counsel and a representative from the respondent’s counsel community. The DSP
makes a recommendation to the WSBA Board of Governors. The Board forwards
a recommendation to the Court.

IV. STAFF
Allison Sato and Lisa Amatangel assist the chief hearing officer with his duties
when needed.

V. CONCLUSION
I thank you all for the support I have received during my term as chief hearing
officer. Please let me know if you have any specific questions.

Respectfully submitted this 21% day of August, 2020.

Randolph O. Petgrave III
Chief Hearing Officer
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of

the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Client Protection Board
Chair: Carrie Umland

Staff Liaison: Nicole Gustine and Brenda Jackson
Board of Governors Liaison: Carla Higginson

Size of Committee: 13

Direct Expenses: $1,200

Indirect Expenses: $130,396

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 7

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Client Protection Board derives its authority from Admission and Practice Rules (APR) 15. The
WSBA Board of Governors (BOG) serve as trustees of the Fund, while the CP Board, working with
WSBA staff, administers it. The Washington Supreme Court has ordered an annual assessment on all
active lawyer and LLLT members, to be held in trust for the purposes of the fund.

The CP Board helps relieve or mitigate pecuniary losses sustained by clients by reason of the
dishonesty of, or failure to account for money or property entrusted to, their lawyers. The CP Board
reviews fund applications investigated by WSBA staff. Under APR 15, a decision by the CP Board to
make a payment on an application for $25,000 or less is final; a decision on an application for above
$25,000 is a recommendation and must be approved by the BOG.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The CP Board has a staff analyst and counsel/liaison in the WSBA Office of General Counsel. The CP
Board meets four times per year to review applications. In accordance with APR 15, the CP Board
provides a detailed report to the BOG and the Washington Supreme Court annually.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

123



2019-2020

1) Continue to educate WSBA members about the CP Board.
2) Increase the public awareness of the CP Board.

3) Continue to operate a fiscally responsible fund.

4) Continue to work to decide difficult claims.

2020-2021 Goals:

1) Continue to educate WSBA members about the CP Board.
2) Increase the public awareness of the CP Board.

3) Continue to operate a fiscally responsible fund.

4) Continue to work to decide difficult claims.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The CP Board is not using specific tools; however it is cognizant of diversity and prioritizes it.

2) The CP Board has been trained by the Diversity Specialist.

3) The CP Board actively recruits members from different backgrounds and areas of the state. It
includes members who work in government, solo practice and in larger firms, as well as two
community members.

4) The CP Board respects the voice and vote of each member. Each application is discussed
extensively before a vote is taken.

The CP Board consists of eleven lawyers and two community members. It currently has a diverse

membership.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The CP Board promotes respect for the legal profession by relieving or mitigating losses
caused by those few lawyers who betray the trust of their clients. Applicants (and lawyers
who assist them in filing applications) frequently express appreciation for the CP Board’s role
in restoring some degree of trust in the legal profession by those injured.

2) See (1) above.

The CP Board promotes professionalism by righting wrongs of members of the legal profession who
dishonestly deprive clients of their funds. The Board issues an annual report which details the
amounts paid out to applicants, and the lawyers involved.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?
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1) The CP Board encourages the application and appointment of newer lawyers.
APR 15 does not have a minimum number of years of admission requirement for lawyer members.
The Board is well suited to integrating young lawyers, and continues to do so. Younger lawyers can
apply to be Chair or Vice-Chair.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) The CP Board promotes public confidence in the administration of justice and the integrity of the
legal profession. Relieving or mitigating the pecuniary loss of injured members of the public often has
a deep impact on their lives, and their view of the legal profession.

2) The CP Board actively recruits community or public members from different backgrounds and
areas of the state. One of the CP Board’s goals is to increase public awareness of its work.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (7) Male (4) No Response (2)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent (1)
Native

Asian Hispanic/Latinx (2)
Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (6) Multi-Racial/Biracial (2)

Not Listed No Response (2)

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (3)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (6)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (4)

Disability:
Yes No (10)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Committee on Professional Ethics (CPE)
Chair: Don Curran

Staff Liaison: Jeanne Marie Clavere and Darlene Neumann
Board of Governors Liaison: Kyle Sciuchetti

Size of Committee: 2

Direct Expenses: $5,000

Indirect Expenses: $44,120

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 15

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Committee on Professional Ethics (CPE) prepares advisory opinions addressing recurring or
emerging ethics issues facing WSBA members. The advisory opinions cover a broad context and
provide in-depth guidance on the Rules of Professional Conduct (RPCs) as applied to a wide variety of
practice areas. The CPE also prepares recommendations for amendments to the RPCs and reports to
the WSBA Board of Governors when requested regarding stakeholder proposed RPC and GR
amendments submitted to the Supreme Court.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The CPE meets six times a year to review and edit draft advisory opinions and potential RPC
amendments. In addition, subcommittees tasked with researching and developing drafts in particular
areas spend significant time between meetings on their assignments. Committee work on proposed
advisory opinions includes a review of considerations related to the North Carolina Dental Board case
to be mindful of maintaining and promoting freedom of competition in the ethical practice of law.
Moreover, advisory opinions are now provided to the Board of Governors (BOG) for information
purposes before posting on the WSBA website.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:
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RPC Amendments Proposed by the CPE

An amendment to RPC 1.15A(h)(9) to allow LLLTs who work in a firm with lawyers to sign
trust account checks without requiring a second signature by a lawyer. In November 2019,
the Court published the suggested amendment for comment. The comment period expired
September 30, 2020.

A typographical correction to RPC 6.1(a)(2) was adopted by the Court in November 2019.

Supreme Court Requests to the CPE

The committee reviewed the proposed amendments to the lawyer advertising rules (RPC 7.1
to 7.5 and RPC 5.5) to ensure integration with the ABA Model Rules. The amendments were
proposed by the committee, approved by the BOG, and published for comment by the Court
in November 2018. The comment period expired April 30, 2019.

The committee reviewed and responded to a public comment the Court received on
suggested new comment [13] to RPC 4.2, which had been published for comment on the
court's website.

Board of Governors Requests to the CPE

The committee reviewed an amendment to comment [4] to RPC 4.4 and new GR 38
regarding immigration status reporting as proposed by several stakeholder groups. The BOG
adopted the CPE recommendation, which the WSBA president submitted as public comment
in January 2020. The Court adopted the CPE recommended amendments to the rule on April
1, 2020.

The committee reviewed an amendment to RPC 6.5 pending at the Supreme Court
concerning conflict of interest notice requirements proposed by several stakeholder groups.
Members of a CPE subcommittee provided guidance to the stakeholders to help refine the
proposal and planned to present its recommendation to the BOG on April 17, 2020. However,
the stakeholders decided to withdraw their proposal, citing the COVID-19 public health
emergency and other pressing issues. The CPE supported the action and will remain available
for technical assistance to the stakeholders when the proposal is resubmitted in the future.
The committee analyzed a revised draft amendment to RPC 7.3 proposed by the Supreme
Court that would exempt certain practice areas. The CPE presented its recommendation to
the BOG on April 17, 2020, which it adopted and forwarded to the Court as comment.

Completed Work of the CPE

Review of Advisory Opinion 2223 (2012). The opinion concerns the ability of lawyer-
mediators to draft and file legal documents for unrepresented parties in mediation. In August
2019, the CPE issued Advisory Opinion 201901 that provided greater clarity on the issue.
Advisory Opinion 2223 was withdrawn.

Lawyer Referral Services and Fee Sharing. Washington's RPC contains a unique provision in
RPC 1.5(e)(2) which allows lawyer referral services authorized by WSBA and county bar
associations. The CPE analyzed the issue and proposed amendments to RPC 7.2(b), comment
[6] to RPC 7.2, new Additional Washington Comment [5] to RPC 5.4, and the deletion of RPC
1.5(e)(2). All proposed amendments were adopted by the BOG in May 2020 and submitted to
the Court.

Special Assistant Attorney General Conflicts of Interest. The committee reviewed conflict of
interest issues regarding the duty of a contract SAAG attorney to a worker in an third party
worker's compensation claim. The CPE issued Advisory Opinion 201902 in Oct. 2019.

Trust Account Following Retirement. The committee reviewed whether a retired lawyer may
keep the trust account open to disburse client funds that are received over a period of time
from settled cases. The CPE issued Advisory Opinion 201903 in October 2019.
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In-house Counsel Claims. The CPE proposed amendments to comment [4] to RPC 1.16 and
new Additional Washington comment [16] to RPC 1.13, to cite to Karstetter v. King County
Corrections Guild, 193 Wn.2d 672, 444 P.2d 1185 (2019), regarding in-house counsel and
similarly situated lawyers with regard to wrongful termination claims. The BOG approved the
proposed amendments in May 2020, and the submitted the proposed amendments to the
Court.

Work in Progress

Ghostwriting. The committee is working on a draft advisory opinion to provide member
guidance on the issue of ghostwriting and limited scope representation.

Lawyer Mediator Practices. The committee is drafting a comment to RPC 2.4 regarding
lawyer mediators in family law who prepare legal documents for unrepresented parties.
Multiple Client Representation in Wrongful Death Cases. The committee has completed its
drafting of a proposed advisory opinion and is submitting it to the Board of Governors for
approval.

Disclosure of Client Civil Commitment. The committee is drafting an advisory opinion on the
issue of disclosure of a client’s civil commitment in court proceedings.

Proposed amendment to comment [2] to RPC 1.11 to cite State v. Nickels, 195 Wn.2d 132,
456 P.3d 795 (2020), regarding disqualification of an entire elected county prosecutor’s office
when the prosecutor had previous involvement representing the defendant.

Potential amendments to RPC 1.8(e) concerning limited exceptions to the prohibition against
providing financial assistance to the client due to the extraordinary circumstances caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Other Issues Reviewed by the CPE

Compensation of attorney administrator of decedent’s estate by hired by same firm with a
creditor’s action against the estate.

Notification of material errors: current and former clients

Lawyer well-being amendments to RPC

RPC 4.2: communication with government employee represented by counsel for the
government entity.

Currency of Advisory Opinion 201501 (lawyer representing marijuana enterprise clients under
state law legalizing marijuana) following the Court's amendment to comment [18] to RPC 1.2.

2020-2021 Goals:

vk wnN

Continue with its objective to address recurring or emerging ethics issues to provide in-depth
guidance on the Rules of Professional Conduct in the form of advisory opinions;

continue to review and evaluate amendments to the RPC;

continue to respond to member inquiries regarding broader ethical issues;

to implement compliance with the letter and spirit of the Open Public Meeting Act; and

to continue its tradition of collegiality and collaborativeness among committee members and
with staff.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
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committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession ?

1) How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? The
committee actively seeks input from interested stakeholders and bar members on proposed
rule changes or draft opinions.

2) What have you done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee? At
nine members, the committee is fairly small, includes one third women, and members of
varying backgrounds. Each member brings a unique and valuable perspective to the
discussions and work of the committee.

3) What has your committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from
historically underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the
profession? Through its advisory opinions and analysis of the Rules of Professional Conduct,
the CPE assists members of all backgrounds in clarifying their ethical duties under the rules
thereby helping them to maintain their practices and thrive in the profession.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community?
The CPE promotes and supports professionalism in the legal profession through advisory
opinions and analysis of legal ethical practice for members.

2) Does it seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients?
N/A

3) Does it raise awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior?
Through its advisory opinions, the CPE helps to educate members about ethical conduct and
provides guidance on ethical dilemmas to encourage professional behavior.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? The CPE
includes younger members within its ranks and takes into account the practices of all
members when formulating advisory opinions.

2) Has the committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find
and prepare them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community,
and providing leadership opportunities? N/A

3) Other? Ethics Advisory Opinions promulgated by the CPE are specifically helpful to new and
young lawyers as they transition from academic classroom discussions of the RPC to the real
time application of the RPC to their practices.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?
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1) How is the public impacted by your work? Lawyers practicing ethically enhance the public
image of our noble profession resulting in increased public trust. Understanding clearly
articulated advisory opinions and rules of professional conduct empower the lawyer to deal
competently, confidently, and honestly with peers and the public.

2) Has the committee/board sought input from the public, and/or communicated its work to the
public? During its review of AO 2223, the committee sought input from the public on lawyer
mediator issues and distributed a proposed draft opinion to county bars, mediators, and
numerous sections. It sought input from the parties in mediation and nonprofit mediation
organizations. The lawyer mediator practices subcommittee has met with an expert on
domestic violence issues to learn more about the impact on family law mediations.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (3) Male (5) No Response (1)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native

Asian (1) Hispanic/Latinx

Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (7) Multi-Racial/Biracial

Not Listed No Response (1)

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (5)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (4)

Disability:
Yes No (8)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Continuing Legal Education (CLE) Committee
Chair: Wil Miller
Staff Liaison: Shanthi Raghu
Board of Governors Liaison: Kim Hunter
Size of Committee: 18

Direct Expenses: $250
Indirect Expenses: $12,266
Number of Applicants for FY21 | 2

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The purpose of the Continuing Legal Education (CLE) Committee is to support the Washington State
Bar Association’s (WSBA) development of continuing legal educational programming that ensures
competent and qualified legal professionals, supports member transitions throughout the life of their
practice, and helps to prepare members for the future with skills required for the 215 century
practice of law.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The CLE Committee provides input to the WSBA CLE Team in fulfilling its mission of serving the
ongoing education needs of Washington legal professionals. The CLE Committee maintained two
subcommittees in FY19: Marketing Intelligence and Programming.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

This year the committee convened three times, and focused on generating ideas for future CLE
programming. The committee also developed two questions to include in Member Perception Survey
callsin Q3 and Q4.

2020-2021 Goals:
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Identify new areas of programming for WSBA presents CLE programs

Identify potential speakers and chairs

Review member perception responses to help inform future delivery of CLE program
Help inform marketing strategies for WSBA CLE

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

The CLE committee encourages WSBA CLE staff to engage with a wide range of stakeholders in
program development. In an effort to develop relevant and timely content, the WSBA CLE engages
with a wide range of stakeholders including the WSBA Practice Sections, the DMCJA, the WSBA
Diversity Committee and Public Service Committees, the WYLC and a variety of outside nonprofit
organizations and local and minority bar associations.

The CLE Committee works affirmatively to identify and recruit a diverse group of committee
members.

Additionally, this year, the CLE Committee provided comment on the MCLE Board’s recent
preliminary suggested amendment to APR 11.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

The CLE Committee continues to address professionalism throughout all of its work by ensuring the
most timely and relevant legal education is delivered to Washington legal professionals.

Content developed by WSBA CLE promotes professional and personal development which in turn aids
in civility and professionalism. WSBA CLE offers an annual Ethics, Professionalism and Civility
program that directly deals with the topics of civility and professionalism along with ethics issues
associated with those topics.

WSBA CLE delivers many programs that deal directly with the consequences of unprofessional or
unethical behavior within the profession. In FY20 WSBA CLE delivered many seminars related to this
specific topic including Ethical Dilemmas, Ethics for Non-Attorneys, ALPS Ethics, Ethics Booster, and
ethics related to practicing during a pandemic.

Many of the CLE programs that the CLE Committee supports specifically address relationships
between lawyers and judges and professionalism in the legal profession. Law of Lawyering is an
annual program that addresses these specific topics. This program was delivered in December, 2020
and is also available on-demand.

This year, the BOG elected for the WSBA to provide three free ethics credits (live and on-demand) for
the members. The free ethics credits were developed in the following categories:
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1) equity, inclusion and the mitigation of bias, 2) mental health, addiction, and stress, and 3)
technology education focusing on digital security.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

In conjunction with the WSBA New Lawyer Program, WSBA CLE develops a Trial Advocacy Program
that specifically assists new lawyers in learning and developing trial skills. This program is scheduled
to deliver in August and September 2020.

In association with the WSBA New Member Education, the CLE team develops a Practice Primer
Series which take a substantive area of law and build out a full curriculum from introductory to more
advanced topics over the course of three learning tracks and approximately 21 hours of education.
The goal of this programming is to provide new members (or transitioning members) a foundational
education to jump start their entry into the substantive area of practice. New Member programming
is deeply discounted for members who have been licensed for less than five years. In FY20 the
Practice Primer Series focused on the area of Criminal Law. Attendees may join the Practice Primer
Series live. The content is also made available as an on-demand seminar for purchase on the WSBA
CLE Store. The Criminal Law Practice Primer Series was delivered in the months of February, March,
April and September of 2020.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

The mission of WSBA CLE is to ensure the competency of the profession through education. By
providing education that is relevant, timely and in demand by the membership, WSBA CLE helps to
protect the public by ensuring competent legal professionals. That said, the committee has not done
any specific outreach to the public. WSBA CLE does engage with various sectors of the public when
developing various CLE programs because many of our faculty are non-WSBA members and members
of the public.

Additionally, this year, in light of the COVID-19, WSBA CLE developed a webinar series covering issues
specific to navigating legal practice during the pandemic. Free CLEs (live and on-demand) were made
available from April through the end of June. The content was vital to providing members with CLE
content to better serve clients — the public - during a time of uncertainty, stress and challenge.

Since March, WSBA CLE has moved to mostly remote operations, leveraging technology to continue
to deliver programs virtually. The CLE Committee continued to help inform the CLE content to be
developed.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:
Female (1) Male (5) No Response (1)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
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Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan
Native

Asian

Middle-Eastern Descent

White/European Descent (4)

Not Listed

Sexual Orientation:

No Response (4)

Disability:
Yes No (6)

Black/African-American/African Descent

Hispanic/Latinx

Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
Multi-Racial/Biracial (1)

No Response (2)

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (3)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual
Multiple Orientations Not Listed
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Council on Public Defense (CPD)
Chair: Daryl Rodrigues

Staff Liaison: Diana Singleton and Bonnie Sterken
Board of Governors Liaison: Vacant

Size of Committee: 23

Direct Expenses: $7,000

Indirect Expenses: $38,035

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 16

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Council on Public Defense (CPD) was established in 2004 to implement recommendations of the
Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) Blue Ribbon Panel on Criminal Defense for maintaining and
improving constitutionally effective public defense services in Washington. The WSBA Board of
Governors (BOG), finding that the CPD provided a unique and valuable forum for bringing together
representatives across the criminal justice system, subsequently established the CPD.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The CPD unites members of the public and private defense bar, the bench, elected officials,
prosecutors, and the public to address new and recurring issues impacting public defenders, the
public defense system and the public that depends upon it. The CPD, after review of its Charter
obligations, has recently worked on six issues in which it has the expertise to provide assistance to
public defenders and formed the Pre-Trial Reform Committee, Legal Financial Obligations (LFO)
Committee, Standards Committee, Mental Health/Involuntary Treatment Act Committee, Public
Defense and Independence Committee, and Public Defense Structure Committee.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

1. The Pre-Trial Reform Committee distributed and promoted the Defender Resource Packet. 135
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Guidelines for Criminal Appellate Performance were advanced to the WSBA BOG for approval
for submission to the WA Supreme Court.

The Council’s Standards Committee completed revisions to the Performance Guidelines for
Criminal Defense Representation to include persistent offender cases.

The Council released a racial justice statement in response to the Court’s Call to Action after
the death of George Floyd. The statement emphasized public defense’s role in in embracing
anti-racism, eliminating explicit and implicit biases, and dismantling white supremacy in the
justice system.

The Council submitted comments in support of proposed amendments to CrR 3.1, CrRLJ 3.1
and JuCR 9.3.

The Council’s Independence Committee continued work on proposed revisions to Standards
18 and 19.

The Council provided guidance to the Office of Public Defense and the State Supreme Court
on revisions needed to the Indigent Defense Standards.

2020-2021 Goals:

6.

Update persistent offender guidelines and review standards for public defenders
assigned a persistent offender caseload.

Draft proposed revision to Standards 18 and 19 of the Indigent Defense Standards to
include language on the need for independence in the selection and continuance of
public defenders and other assigned council.

Provide guidelines and examine the impact of Covid-19 on the Indigent Defense
Standards.

Address how to reduce the role of bias in the delivery of indigent defense services
and work to improve diversity in the public defense offices and other indigent
defense delivery systems.

Research improvements to delivery of public defense services in rural and small
communities.

Support improvement of public defender services and accountability.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

Robin Nussbaum, Inclusion and Equity Specialist, conducted a Diversity in Decision Making training in
February 2019. As a product of this training the Chair and Vice Chair resolved as follows:

To Seek input from all CPD members not just those who volunteer input.

To be mindful of geographic, age, race and other factors in making recommendations
for appointments to the CPD.

To begin meetings with short centering exercises to enable participants to be more
fully present for meetings.

To continue to stream meetings to provide broader access to those who cannot
attend in person
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The Chair and Vice Chair have emphasized that during discussions all CPD members will be asked for
their input, not only those who volunteer input.

The CPD pays attention to issues of diversity and inclusion as it relates to recruiting and filling
positions. The CPD takes diversity, including geographic diversity, into account when making its
recommendations about appointments. The CPD has continued to focus on bringing together a broad
group of criminal justice system stakeholders.

The Chair and VC have discussed the lack of generational diversity in the Council. In part it is logical
that experienced policy makers/practitioners are older, however, on numerous occasions we
experienced a differing perspective when we seek and take input from more diverse participants. We
will continue to seek participation from younger members.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1. The CPD unites diverse members of the legal community and public in a shared project of the
WSBA to support work of public defenders to provide their clients with strong and accessible
public defense services. The CPD has worked to include prosecutors and city attorneys as
members in order to assure all voices and perspectives are at the table and engaged in the
Council’s discussions.

2. The CPD actively promotes professionalism so all members can express, debate, and consider
competing views respectfully and productively to fulfill this shared WSBA mission.

3. The CPD makes an effort to have discussions about ethical practices, which includes
professionalism.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1. The CPD reaches out to younger members of the bar and law school students to participate in its
work, both as active members and as interested parties. Some members, particularly those who
teach at the Washington law schools, invite students and new and young lawyers to attend
meetings. To the extent possible we encourage these individuals to attend meetings and always
invite them to contribute to the conversation.

2. New and young lawyers are invited to attend meetings and find ways to get involved. New and
Young Lawyers are encouraged to voice their opinions in meetings and actively participate in the
work of the committees. Staff has presented to the New and Young Lawyers Committee about
the work of the Council.

3. A major factor in non-participation from younger people is the fact that most younger lawyers
are caseload carrying — and most Chief Defenders have little ability to provide caseload credit for
participation and attendance. We are working with the larger PD offices to find ways to provide
caseload relief so younger lawyers can participate actively.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
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How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1. Members of the public are all subject to being criminally charged. Our efforts raise the

standards for public defense Statewide.

2. We have one membership position for the general public.
3. We release our work through public comment (court rules) proposed guidelines (standards)

and materials (e.g., pretrial checklists)

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (3) Male (6)
Transgender Two-spirit
Non-Binary Not Listed
Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan
Native

Asian

Middle-Eastern Descent

White/European Descent (8)

Not Listed

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual

Two-Spirit

Multiple Orientations Not Listed
No Response (10)

Disability:

Yes No (9)

No Response (9)
Multi

Black/African-American/African Descent (1)

Hispanic/Latinx

Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
Multi-Racial/Biracial

No Response (9)

Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (2)
Heterosexual (6)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Court Rules and Procedures Committee
Chair: Isham Reavis

Staff Liaison: Nicole Gustine and Kyla Jones
Board of Governors Liaison: Brian Tollefson

Size of Committee: 28

Direct Expenses: $3,000

Indirect Expenses: $40,948

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 22

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Court Rules and Procedure Committee (Committee) studies and develops suggested amendments
to designated sets of Washington court rules on a regular cycle of review established by the
Washington State Supreme Court. It occasionally responds to requests for comment from the
Supreme Court on proposals developed by others. The Committee performs the rules-study function
outlined in General Rule 9 and reports its recommendations to the BOG.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The Committee consists of several subcommittees that review the court rules and obtain input from
stakeholders as to possible amendments. Evolution in case law, changes in statutes, or other new
developments since last amendment drive amendments to rules. The subcommittees vet, draft, and
discuss proposed amendments and submit them to the full Committee for discussion and approval.
Proposed amendments approved by the Committee are forwarded to the BOG for approval. If the
BOG approves, the proposed amendments are forwarded to the Supreme Court in accordance with
General Rule 9.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:
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To continue to carefully vet new proposals. In 2019-2020 the Committee reviewed the Civil Rules for
Superior Courts and Civil Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction.

2020-2021 Goals:

According to the schedule for review, the Rules of Appellate Procedure and the Rules for
Appeal from Decisions of Courts of Limited Jurisdiction will be reviewed in 2020-2021.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The Committee is cognizant of diversity in selecting its members. It is an important factor in
recruitment and consideration of applicants.

2) The Committee has received training from the Diversity Specialist.

3) The Committee seeks input from a wide variety of stakeholders before finalizing proposals,
including reaching out to several minority bar associations. The Committee also reaches out
to organizations that represent minority viewpoints that might not normally be aware of the
Committee’s work.

4) During the application period, the current Chair reached out to the leadership of several
specialty and minority bar associations to encourage their membership to apply to be on the
Committee.

5) The Committee is composed of members with a wide range of backgrounds, experiences, and
identities.

6) The current chair has attempted to spread subcommittee chair assighments across the state
to ensure broad, geographic representation.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The Committee seeks to engage members and the wider legal community in the process of
studying and reviewing court rules. It promotes respect and civility by encouraging vigorous but
civil debate even when members and/or stakeholders have strongly held but opposing views.

2) By engaging WSBA members and stakeholders outside of the Committee in the rule review
process, the Committee’s work seeks to improve relationships among lawyers and judges. The
Committee includes three judges who serve as liaisons (non-voting), one each from the Superior
Court, Court of Appeals, and District/Municipal Court. In addition, the Supreme Court Rules
Committee seeks input from the WSBA Court Rules Committee, which furthers dialogue between
WSBA lawyers and Justices of the state’s highest court.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?
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1) The Committee does not have a minimum number of years of admission requirement to serve.
Its lawyer members have a wide range of years of experience, including members who have only
a few years of practice experience. The Committee often attracts applicants who are newer to
the profession, some of whom are selected to serve.

2) The Committee provides opportunities for all members, including young lawyers, to chair
subcommittees and the larger Committee. It provides opportunities for younger members to
meet and be mentored by experienced members, as well as judges.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) The committee vets and crafts rule language that impacts the justice system and the public
accessing that system.

2) Pursuant to court order, the committee publicizes suggested rule changes for public comment
before finalizing its recommendations. Members of the bar, bench, and public are encouraged to
review these proposals and send comments to the committee.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (11) Male (12) No Response (4)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native

Asian Hispanic/Latinx

Middle-Eastern Descent (2) Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (18) Multi-Racial/Biracial (1)

Not Listed No Response (6)

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (4)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (14)

Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (9)

Disability:
Yes No (9)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Disciplinary Board
Chair: Jeffrey Gates
Vice-Chair Elizabeth Rene
Staff Liaison: Nicole Gustine and Allison Sato
Board of Governors Liaison: none

Size of Committee: 14

Direct Expenses: $4,000

Indirect Expenses: $99,311
Number of Applicants for FY21

(October 1, 2020 — September 30, 8

2021)

Purpose:

The Disciplinary Board (D-Board) derives its authority from the Supreme Court (see ELC 2.3). The D-
Board performs an important role in the disciplinary/regulation process by: (1) serving as an
intermediate appellate body for contested disciplinary and disability matters; (2) approving,
conditionally approving or rejecting certain stipulations negotiated by the Office of Disciplinary
Counsel (ODC) and respondents; and (3) through its review committees, acting on requests from the
ODC to order matters to hearing, and on requests from grievants for review of matters that have
been dismissed by ODC.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The D-Board is made up of the board chair and vice-chair, plus 12 members composing four review
committees, one of which meets every three weeks. The D-Board meets six times each year as a full
board. At these meetings, the D-Board reviews hearing officer recommendations for suspension and
disbarment when a timely request for review/appeal is filed (or sua sponte review is ordered by the
Board), and automatically reviews stipulations for suspension or disbarment. The D-Board issues a
written recommendation to the Supreme Court in contested matters. The D-Board holds oral
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arguments in some cases, which are open to the public. The four review committees meet in person
or by telephone to review requests for hearings and grievant appeals from dismissals. The review
committees’ work is confidential and not open to the public.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

In 2019, the review committees of the Disciplinary Board met 16 times to consider 449 matters. They
issued 357 dismissals, ordered 52 matters to hearing, ordered investigation in 13 matters, issued two
advisory letters and three admonitions, and decided 22 other non-routine matters, such as orders on
deferrals, costs, etc. In 2019, the full Disciplinary Board considered 25 disciplinary and disability
matters and ordered the transfer of five lawyers to disability inactive status. The full board reviewed
and issued orders on one case on appeal, and on 23 stipulations, and heard one oral argument. Per
court rule, they considered whether to order or deny sua sponte review in eight cases involving a
recommendation of suspension or disbarment.

The chair and vice-chair participated in feedback to the WSBA drafting work group on the new draft
Rules for Discipline and Incapacity.

As of August 2020, the COVID-19 public health emergency has not adversely impacted the D-Board'’s
functions. WSBA staff continues to upload case files and coordinate meetings. The D-Board is
conducting its full board meetings and review committee meetings by telephone and video-
conference. Pursuant to temporary authority granted by the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court, the
chair was involved in the issuance of emergency orders for the administration of the discipline and
disability system.

2020-2021 Goals:

The Disciplinary-Board’s work is determined by Court Rule (Rules for Enforcement of Lawyer
Conduct). The goal is to continue to perform high quality work in a timely manner in
accordance with Court Rules.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The Disciplinary Selection Panel (DSP), which is a separate entity from the D-Board, makes
nominations to the BOG for members to serve on the Board. Under ELC 2.2(f), the DSP
considers diversity in gender, ethnicity, disability status, sexual orientation, geography, area
of practice and practice experience.

2) The D-Board has been trained by the Diversity Specialist.

3) The D-Board seeks input from all of its members, who must vote on each order/decision in
matters involving the full Board. The D-Board has four public members, who each provide
different perspectives. One public member serves on each review committee.

4) By court rule, the D-Board has ten lawyer members and four community representative
members. The current D-Board includes members self-identified as from several different
races/ethnicities. The DSP interviews prospective members and makes nominations to the
BOG. As noted above, ELC 2.2(f) states that in making selections, the DSP and the BOG
consider diversity.
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5) The D-Board provides many leadership opportunities for interested Board members to serve,
as Chair or Vice-Chair of the full Board, or as Chairs of each of the four review committees.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The D-Board adjudicates cases in which lawyers have behaved both unprofessionally and
unethically. These issues are often raised in oral arguments and briefs, which are part of the public
record.

2) Although not directly part of its mission, the D-Board is mindful of the need to conduct itself in a
manner that models cooperative and respectful relationships, even if people disagree.

3) The D-Board serves important functions in the disciplinary process. In performing its court
mandated functions, the D-Board raises awareness of ethical rules and of the consequences of
unprofessional behavior. Most oral arguments in discipline cases before the D-Board are open to
the public. In addition, the D-Board issues public orders and decisions in most of the matters
that come before it (certain matters are nonpublic by court rule).

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) Per court rule, the D-Board’s lawyer members must have been WSBA members for at least five
years.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) The D-Board serves important functions in the disciplinary process, and protects the public by
upholding professionalism and ethical conduct among legal practitioners.

2) Four public members each serve three year terms on the D-Board, bringing their valuable
experience and perspective to the decisions that the Board makes in discipline review cases. Most
oral arguments in discipline cases before the D-Board are open to the public. In addition, the D-Board
issues public orders and decisions in most of the matters that come before it (certain matters are
nonpublic by court rule).

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (9) Male (6) No Response (1)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi

Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native
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Asian

Middle-Eastern Descent
White/European Descent (14)
Not Listed

Sexual Orientation:
Asexual

Two-Spirit

Multiple Orientations
No Response (3)

Disability:
Yes (3)

Hispanic/Latinx (1)

Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
Multi-Racial/Biracial

No Response (1)

Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (1)
Heterosexual (12)
Not Listed

No (13)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Diversity Committee
Chair: Laura Wulf and Governor Jean Kang
Staff Liaison: Dana Barnett

Board of Governors Liaison: n/a

Size of Committee: 14 (+4 BOG Members)
Direct Expenses: $21,250

Indirect Expenses: $52,047

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 15

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Washington State Bar Association’s Diversity Committee (Committee) is dedicated to
implementing WSBA'’s Diversity and Inclusion Plan. The work of the Committee promotes historically
underrepresented groups to enter and stay in the profession of law.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The Diversity Committee fulfills its purpose through collaborative relationships and community
building activities, which highlight the numerous societal benefits of a diverse law profession.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

1. Hosted programs with students at UW Law School to assist them with their Diversity
Fellowship applications, and to provide mentorship for students from
underrepresented groups about entering the practice of law.

2. Advocated to ensure that Diversity, Equity and Inclusion and Access to Justice
programming are part of the mandatory Bar to the Bar Structure Workgroup.

3. Increased the opportunities for interaction and collaboration between the WSBA
Diversity Committee and MBAs by attending MBA annual events.
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4.

Continued to follow and support the passing of MCLE rule change proposal in
collaboration with the MBAs and the MCLE Board.

Published pieces in NWLawyer that relate to Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion.
Continued to work with school programs and community partners to explore new
avenues to support students and new and young lawyers from underrepresented
groups.

Worked with the Board of Governors to amend the bylaw related to the election
process for At-Large Governors.

Submitted a letter to the Board of Governors to provide recommendations in support
of the WSBA taking an “inside out” approach to equity and inclusion.

Approved a proposal to redistribute funds unused by the Diversity budget, due to
COVID-19, to create a grant for MBA scholarships.

10. Developed topics and presented CLEs in three diversity, equity and inclusion areas.

Please note: The Diversity Committee had several in-person programs scheduled with law
schools, undergraduate programs and community organizations for the year, most of which
were canceled due to COVID-19.

2020-2021 Goals:

1. Work with Law Schools and other educational partners to re-imagine partnerships
and support for underrepresented students within the virtual sphere.

2. Review and make decisions on scholarships for the Judge Pro Tem CLE.

3. Work collaboratively with the WYLC and the Board of Governors to develop a
process for At-Large Governors elections.

4. Revisit the bylaw definition of “diversity” and the roles and responsibilities of the
At-Large diversity positions.

5. Support the MCLE rule change proposal regarding one mandatory ethics credit in
elimination of bias.

6. Continue to support the WSBA in reaching its stated goals and commitments
around diversity, equity and inclusion.

7. Work to increase participation and leadership of historically marginalized groups
in WSBA volunteers, committees, and boards.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The committee is staffed by the Equity and Justice Program Manager, and the Equity and

Justice Lead, both of whom have educational experience and expertise in diversity topics,
both lead regular workshops and training with committee members throughout the year. This
year we also conducted an equity assessment of our committee dynamics.
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2) We have integrated more group discussion and collaboration in decision making, as well as
supported committee members with resources, tools and training to be confident
ambassadors about the work of diversity and inclusion at WSBA.

3) Training, education and awareness building activities on diversity and inclusion are all
consistent elements integrated in and throughout our meetings, events and programming.

4) All our programming and work is focused on these goals, the committee has also acted to
support the Board of Governors in pursuing equity and inclusion goals.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The Committee integrates and connects a focus on professionalism throughout its programming.
The substantive content of workshops, seminars, etc. provide interpersonal and organizational
skills necessary to support the professional development of attorneys.

2) The Committee seeks to educate the legal community on diversity issues through legal
lunchboxes and town halls.

3) The Committee raises awareness of the consequences of unprofessional behavior that are
rooted in personal bias and systemic inequity.

4) Committee members mentor new attorneys and students, advising on issues of professionalism.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) We have new and young lawyers on our committee.

2) We offer WYLC members the opportunity to partner on our community networking events and
to speak publicly to represent the committee.

3) This year we had members attend WYLC meetings and invited representatives to our meeting to
discuss court dress code policy.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

The Diversity Committee invites community organizations and members of the public to attend our
Community Networking Events. The committee sees acknowledges that the public are stakeholders in
the work of equity in the legal profession and creates this opportunity for partnership, education, and
dialogue with the public and the committee. This year we were unable to hold these events due to
COVID-19.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:
Female (11) Male (3) No Response (1)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
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Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent (3)
Native (1)

Asian (3) Hispanic/Latinx (3)

Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (4) Multi-Racial/Biracial (1)

Not Listed (1) No Response

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (3)

Two-Spirit

Multiple Orientations Not Listed
No Response (4)

Disability:

Yes (1) No (10)

Heterosexual (9)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: Editorial Advisory Committee
Chair: Ralph Flick

Staff Liaison: Kirsten Abel

Board of Governors Liaison: Sunitha Anjilvel

Size of Committee: 12

Direct Expenses: $800

Indirect Expenses: S4,764

Number of Applicants for FY21

(October 1, 2020 — September 30, | 6 (1 returning, 3 new)
2021)

Purpose:

The Editorial Advisory Committee (EAC) derives its authority from the WSBA Bylaws.

Members of the Editorial Advisory Committee work with the editor and WSBA staff overseeing
publication of the WSBA’s official magazine, Washington State Bar News. This may include
establishing guidelines and editorial policy, maintaining an editorial calendar, writing articles, securing
content, identifying topics and issues relevant to members, identifying authors for content, reviewing
articles, and advising on issues related to content. The magazine’s mission statement is: Washington
State Bar News will inform, educate, engage, and inspire by offering a forum for members of the legal
community to connect and to enrich their careers.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

EAC members consult with WSBA staff regarding content selection, recruiting of authors or writing
articles themselves, and providing suggestions for feature stories and columns that will provide
readers with information about other Bar members and their practices, current events and trends of
interest to the legal community, career advice and other practice-oriented topics, programs and
services provided to members by the WSBA, and the work of the Board of Governors.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:
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1.

2.

3.

Continue to increase reader interest and engagement/response with timely, relevant, and
provocative articles.
0 Progress: We have published a number of timely, relevant, and provocative articles in our
2019-2020 issues, including articles on:
= (1) Cybersecurity considerations for lawyers working from home during the COVID-
19 pandemic (July/August 2020);
= (2) Washington’s recently passed first-in-the-nation state law regulating
governmental use of facial recognition technology (July/August 2020);
= (3) What businesses and the lawyers who represent them should know about
business interruption insurance coverage during the COVID-19 pandemic (June
2020);
= (4) The first WSBA member to win a MacArthur Genius Grant—Seattle lawyer Lisa
Daugaard, in 2019 (November 2019); and
= (5) What employers, employees, and lawyers need to know about Paid Family
Medical Leave that went into effect in Washington on Jan. 1, 2020 (February 2020).

In the September 2020 issue, we will be publishing an article that explores the recent
Washington Supreme Court decision in Yim v. Seattle, and we will be launching a new
semi-regular column called “From the Spindle” that will highlight significant recent
Washington Supreme Court opinions.

In addition, in response to a suggestion from the Board of Governors, we are revamping
our “Section Spotlight” series with a questionnaire that focuses on section
accomplishments, member benefits of joining a section, opportunities for mentorship,
and career advice for building a successful practice in the area of law related to each
section. The EAC is taking the lead on sending the questionnaire out to the chairs of each
of the WSBA’s 29 sections. The responses to the questionnaire will be published in
upcoming issues as “Section Spotlights.”

Continue to work to include voices from divergent backgrounds and areas of practice, with a
variety of views and perspectives.

0 Progress: One way in which we are fulfilling this goal is through the “Guest Column,” a
new feature implemented in the magazine at WSBA President Rajeev Majumdar’s
suggestion. This column allows us to publish a wide variety of voices including those of
leadership from the Loren Miller Bar Association, Washington Women Lawyers, the
Indian Law Section, Northwest Indian Bar Association, the South Asian Bar Association of
Washington; QLaw Foundation, Latina/o Bar Association of Washington, Sexual Violence
Law Center, and LAW Advocates. In addition, we have also made progress on this goal by
creating themed issues such as the February 2020 Black History Month issue, the
April/May 2020 issue focusing on the 100th anniversary of the 19th Amendment, and the
June 2020 issue focusing on LGBTQ rights.

Work to establish relationships with new authors.

O Progress: The 2020 issues of Bar News have featured more than 20 first-time authors. In
addition, we created an “Author Recruitment” Google form (located here) that we share
with the WSBA membership via social media, Take Note (the WSBA’s twice-a-month
electronic newsletter), the magazine, and the WSBA website. The form allows people to
provide their name, contact information, practice area, and other information to help us
build up a database of potential authors from all over the state. More than a dozen
members have responded via the Google form so far.

151


https://forms.gle/MMsZyzKbe4vbx6G2A

2019-2020

4. Work to include member-authors from all parts of the state, as well as topics important to areas
other than the Seattle metropolitan corridor.

O Progress: In the last several issues, we have featured articles like “Creative Counsel”
(July/August 2020), which features six lawyer-artists from around the state; “Words of
Wisdom From 3 Law School Deans” (March 2020), which includes short interviews with
the deans from all three of Washington’s law schools; “Around the World” (Nov. 2019),
which includes nine WSBA members who live and practice law overseas; as well as other
content from authors outside of the Seattle area. Our new “Author Recruitment” Google
form is also helping us to find new authors in other parts of the state. In addition, many
of our EAC members live and work outside of the Seattle area, and therefore have close
contacts in other parts of the state.

5. Continue to increase ad sales revenue and bring the magazine closer to revenue-neutral status.
O Progress: We are working with our ad sales partner, SagaCity Media, to continue to

develop relationships with additional advertisers and increase revenue. Our goal for the
2020 fiscal year was to cover all direct costs of the magazine through ad sales. We made
significant headway toward that goal—with upward trends in ad sales compared to
previous years—through March 2020 when the global pandemic disrupted many
businesses, including SagaCity and our current and potential advertisers. The COVID-19
crisis has affected advertising revenue, and the impact over the next year is uncertain.
Our work toward a new online platform for Bar News, which we hope to launch in the
coming year, will create an additional revenue stream from online advertising.

6. Smoothly transition the magazine name from NWLawyer to Washington State Bar News.

0 Progress: We successfully implemented and executed a plan for the name change. The
plan included communicating the name change to members and advertisers, working
with the company that hosts the online version of the magazine to create and move all
content to a new URL, updating our email inbox and signatures, and more. The
Washington State Bar News name launched with the April/May issue of the magazine.

2020-2021 Goals:

1. Continue to increase reader interest and engagement/response with timely, relevant, practical,
and provocative articles.

2. Increase opportunities for the magazine (within the parameters of GR 12.2) to be a civil, thought-
provoking forum for dialogue among members about current issues relating to the legal system
and access to and administration of justice.

3. Continue to work to include voices from divergent backgrounds and areas of practice, with a
variety of views and perspectives.

4. Continue to establish relationships with new authors.

5. Continue to include member-authors from all parts of the state, as well as topics important to
areas other than the Seattle metropolitan corridor.

6. Continue to increase ad sales revenue and bring the magazine closer to revenue-neutral status.

7. Build a new, modern, more accessible website for Bar News online content. This site will allow for
more visibility for authors, better content-sharing capabilities, an overall more modern look and
feel, online advertising capabilities, and eventual substantial reduction in online web hosting fees.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
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committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity:

1) Robin Nussbaum, former WSBA Senior Inclusion and Equity Specialist, attended our annual
planning meeting on May 7, 2019, and gave committee members and Bar News staff a 75-minute
diversity training. We plan to continue to work with the WSBA Equity and Justice Team to
implement additional tools and trainings related to implicit bias and diversity in 2020 and 2021.

2) There is diversity in background, years in practice, areas of practice, and perspectives among the
EAC members who weigh in on story ideas and unsolicited submissions. We are in regular
dialogue with the WSBA Equity and Justice Team regarding language and images used in the
magazine. The WSBA Equity and Justice Team also reviews the Bar News six-month editorial
calendar every month and provides feedback and suggestions.

3) We encourage EAC members to help us, by reaching out through their networks and soliciting
authors, to include within the magazine voices that are not as frequently heard from, so that
many different points of view are expressed.

4) We have worked to ensure that members with diverse backgrounds and perspectives are well
represented in the magazine, via solicitation of “Beyond the Bar Number” members to feature, as
well as through WSBA President Rajeev Majumdar’s “Guest Column,” a new feature implemented
in the magazine at President Majumdar’s suggestion. This column has allowed us to publish a
wide variety of voices including those of leadership from the Loren Miller Bar Association,
Washington Women Lawyers, the Indian Law Section, Northwest Indian Bar Association, the
South Asian Bar Association of Washington; QLaw Foundation, Latina/o Bar Association of
Washington, Sexual Violence Law Center, and LAW Advocates.

5) In addition, we have created themed issues such as the February 2020 Black History Month issue,
the April/May 2020 issue focusing on the 100th anniversary of the 19th Amendment, and the
June 2020 issue focusing on LGBTQ rights.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

The following are relevant to all the questions above:

1) Mark Fucile, former chair of the Committee on Professional Ethics, writes a column called “Ethics
and the Law” for every issue that addresses not just avoiding violations of the RPCs but issues of
professionalism and civility.

2) Additional articles promoting civility and professionalism: “Possible Risk with Online Advertising,”
(June 2020); “Systemic Advocacy: Principles and examples from Columbia Legal Services,” and
“The Power of Pro Bono,” (October 2019) (promoting pro bono volunteering); “Leave a Legacy as
a Steward of Justice,” (December/January 2020)(a column by former Chief Justice Mary
Fairhurst); and “2019 WSBA Apex Awards,” December/January 2020 (highlighting the 2019
winners and acknowledging professional excellence).

3) Everyissue includes current disciplinary notices. Starting with the April/May 2020 issue, the
published disciplinary notices were expanded somewhat to include more detail. This is
something members have been requesting for years. In addition, every year we publish the
“WSBA Discipline System Annual Report Snapshot.” This year’s snapshot ran in the June 2020
issue and includes information about how the lawyer discipline system works, the number and
nature of grievances filed, and the number of disciplinary actions taken.
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Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or their
perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) Four 2019-2020 members of the EAC are new/young lawyers (admitted fewer than five years
ago). In addition, two new members nominated to the committee for the 2020-2021 year are
new/young lawyers.

2) The committee is intentional about developing article ideas for the magazine that will be of
interest and useful to new and young lawyers. We publish regular and semi-regular columns that
address topics of relevance to new and young lawyers including our “Innovation in the Law”
column on technology and innovation in the legal field written by WSBA member Jordan Couch,
a legal writing column authored by University of Washington School of Law professors entitled
“Write to Counsel,” and our “Ask a Law Librarian” column written by Gonzaga Law Librarian
Ashley Sundin. Other individual articles of relevance to new and young lawyers include
“Technically Speaking: A WSBA practice management advisor shares considerations and tips for
choosing your law firm technology” (December/January 2020) and “Law School Deans Offer
Words of Wisdom” (March 2020).

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

e By educating legal professionals about important topics such as ethics, practice management, pro
bono opportunities, and other significant news, we are helping to ensure the competency and
integrity of the legal profession on behalf of the public.

e We occasionally include articles by non-members, such as Lucien Dhooge, George Institute of
Technology professor of law and Washington resident, who wrote about the Washington
Supreme Court’s decision in State v. Arlene’s Flowers (June 2020); Mar Brettman, Ph.D., executive
director of Businesses Ending Slavery and Trafficking, who wrote on how lawyers can help
businesses develop policies and practices to eliminate the risk of sex trafficking occurring on
business premises (May 2019); and Gonzaga University School of Law student Sara Wilmot, who
wrote about the Myra Bradwell Award (April 2019).

e |n addition, our March 2020 issue focused on legal education, including an article about the Legal
Pathways program at the University of Washington Tacoma; an article featuring advice from all
three of Washington’s law school deans; and an article about Washington’s alternative pathways
into the legal profession, including the Law Clerk program and the Rule 9 Licensed Legal
Internship.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (6) Male (4) No Response (2)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi

Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native (1)
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Asian Hispanic/Latinx
Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (7) Multi-Racial/Biracial

Not Listed (1) No Response

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (8)

Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (4)

Disability:

Yes No (9)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Judicial Recommendation Committee (JRC)
Chair: Michiko Fjeld

Staff Liaison: Sanjay Walvekar

Board of Governors Liaison: Alec Stephens, Jean Kang
Size of Committee: 22

Direct Expenses: $2,000

Indirect Expenses: $2,436

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 12

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Judicial Recommendation Committee (JRC) derives its authority from the Bylaws of the WSBA.
The JRC screens and interviews candidates for state Court of Appeals and Supreme Court positions.
Recommendations are reviewed by the WSBA Board of Governors (BOG) and referred to the
Governor for consideration when making judicial appointments.

Per the JRC Guidelines, “[t]he proceedings and records of the committee, including the comments of
applicants, committee discussions, and committee votes, shall be kept strictly confidential.”

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The JRC screens and interviews candidates for the state’s appellate courts, the Washington Supreme
Court and the Washington State Court of Appeals. Thereafter, it makes recommendations to the BOG.
Following Board approval, the recommendations are sent to the Washington State Governor's Office
as part of the committee’s role of preparing and maintaining a list of individuals who are well-
qualified for and interested in appointment to the appellate bench.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:
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The Committee has been on hiatus since May 2019, pending the Supreme Court’s decision regarding
OPMA applicability to the WSBA.

2020-2021 Goals:

The main goal of the Committee is to begin meeting and working again as soon as possible.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity:

1) A diversity of perspectives is embedded in the JRC Guidelines under “Composition,” for
selection of committee members.

2) The committee received a training from the Senior Inclusion & Equity Specialist at the JRC’s
first meeting.

3) Without going into too much detail due to confidentiality of the process, some of the criteria
the committee considers when recommending a candidate are related to a commitment to
diversity.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

Without going into too much detail due to the confidential nature of this committee, some of the
criteria the committee considers when recommending a candidate are related to aspects of
professionalism.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

While there are several new and young lawyers on the committee who have an equal say in the
vetting process (e.g., voting), the nature and work of this committee is most suited to those who have
familiarity and experience with the appellate bench.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

e The JRC’'s work directly benefits the public by providing the Governor’s office with
recommendations that help it make informed and quality judicial appointments.

e Columbia Legal Services and Disability Rights Washington recommended that the WSBA reach out
to the Bazelon Center for Mental Health in New York for confidential feedback on the JRC's
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guidelines and processes. The feedback received from the Bazelon Center led to changes to the
committee guidelines approved by the Board of Governors in September 2018.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (5) Male (14)
Transgender Two-spirit
Non-Binary Not Listed
Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan
Native

Asian

Middle-Eastern Descent

White/European Descent (18)

Not Listed

Sexual Orientation:

No Response (3)
Multi

Black/African-American/African Descent (1)

Hispanic/Latinx

Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
Multi-Racial/Biracial

No Response (3)

Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (1)

Asexual

Two-Spirit Heterosexual (7)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (12)

Disability:

Yes (2) No (17)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Law Clerk Board
Chair: Benjamin Phillabaum
Staff Liaison: Katherine Skinner
Board of Governors Liaison: Dan Clark

Hunter Abell
Size of Committee: 9
Direct Expenses: $6,000
Indirect Expenses: $34,945
Number of Applicants for FY21 | 7
(October 1, 2020 — September 30,
2021)
Purpose:

The Law Clerk Board (LCB) derives its authority from Rule 6 of the Admission and Practice Rules (APR).
The Board of Governors (BOG) appoints the members of the LCB.

The purpose of the LCB is to assist the WSBA in supervising the APR 6 Law Clerk Program (Program).

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The LCB considers applications for enrollment in the Program, interviews and evaluates law clerks and
tutors before and during the course of study to ensure they are meeting the requirements of the
Program.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

Process Improvement: The LCB continues to streamline processes and delegate tasks to staff as
appropriate.
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Outreach: The LCB, in collaboration with staff, is promoting the Program to primary, secondary and
college students. Information about the Program has been included in presentation materials
regarding innovative pathways to the practice of law.

Events and Meetings: In January 2020, WSBA staff attended the Access to Justice Board’s Delivery
System Committee meeting to provide information about the Program and discuss how the Program
can assist legal aid providers in rural areas with recruitment and retention. In February 2020, staff
presented to Legal Pathways students at UW Tacoma. (Legal Pathways is a new initiative funded by
the legislature to support law-related opportunities and promote the success of students interested
in pursuing law school, professional studies related to law, and law-related careers.) In an effort to
strengthen outreach to underrepresented groups, staff also gave a presentation to the WSBA
Diversity Committee to share information about the Program and seek input.

Materials: Developed two law clerk promotional videos. The videos capture unique stories of two law
clerks and their time in the law clerk program. Developed rack cards and flyers that provided all
information a perspective clerk or tutor would need to get started in applying for the law clerk
program.

Law Clerk Certificate: The Board redesigned the law clerk certificate. The new certificate can be
printed in-house which eliminates the need for certificates to be sent out to a calligrapher simplifying
the process while reducing costs.

2020-2021 Goals:

1) Continue to find ways to improve efficiency of the LCB to accommodate potential increase in
the number of law clerks.

2) Increase the public’s knowledge of the program through outreach events and
communications.

3) Review Law Clerk Board Policies as needed.

4) Propose amendments to APR 6 to improve program efficiency and clarify certain processes
including advanced standing and re-enrollment requests.

5) Continue conversations in strategizing reaching out to rural counties in the state to increase
access to justice.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The LCB continues to seek board members who represent diversity in geography as well as
members who self-identify as individuals that are underrepresented in the legal profession.

2) Yes. The LCB received training from WSBA's Inclusion and Equity Specialist in FY 2019. The goal is
offer this training on an annual basis as part of the New Board Member Orientation.

3) The LCB seeks to have a diverse group of board members in order to bring a variety of
perspectives to the table.

4) The equity and inclusion training provided board members with tools to promote a culture of
inclusion within the board.

5) The Program itself provides an alternative to law school for legal education for those who may
have barriers to attending law school. Through continuous outreach, the LCB hopes to increase
the diversity of the law clerks enrolled in the Program.
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Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) Clerks participating in the Program learn about professionalism during the course of their
education. The LCB raises issues of professionalism during interviews and evaluations when

necessary.

2) No

3) Clerks are required to take a Professional Responsibility course in order to complete the
program.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) Lawyers who have recently completed the Law Clerk Program serve on the LCB. While there are
limited positions available, clerks who are about to complete the Program and take the bar exam
are encouraged to participate with other WSBA Boards and Committees to share the Program
perspective with the broader WSBA community.

2) The Law Clerk Program is an affordable alternative to law school. It allows new and young
lawyers to start their careers without having to worry about student loan debt. In addition, clerks
are required to work during the Program which means that they have already begun making
connections within the legal community.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) The Program seeks to increase access to legal education for those who may not be able to
afford law school.

2) The LCB is collaborating with WSBA staff on outreach efforts to increase knowledge of the
Program.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff
Gender:
Female x Male x Multix Non-Binary x Transgender x Two-spirit x Not Listed x No response x

Ethnicity:
American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Native x Asian x
Black/African-American/African Descent x Hispanic/Latinx x
Middle-Eastern Descent x Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian x
White/European Descent 10 Multi-Racial/Biracial x
Not Listed x

No response 1

Sexual Orientation:
Asexual x Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer 2 Heterosexual 4

161



2019-2020

Two-spirit x Multiple orientations x Not Listed x No response 3

Disability:
Yesx No1ll Noresponse x

New/young lawyer:
Yesx Nox
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board:

Legislative Review Committee

Chair:

Kyle Sciuchetti

Staff Liaison:

Sanjay Walvekar

Board of Governors Liaison:

Kyle Sciuchetti

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,
2021)

Size of Committee: 26
Direct Expenses: $3,000
Indirect Expenses: $24,363
Number of Applicants for FY21 | 26

Purpose:

The WSBA Legislative Review Committee (Committee) reviews internal legislative proposals before
making a recommendation for sponsorship or support to the Board of Governors (BOG). The
Committee’s primary purpose is to ensure that WSBA-request legislation fulfills GR12 and is vetted
both internally and externally. The Committee may also consider non-WSBA proposals submitted to
the Committee for the purpose of seeking WSBA input and support. WSBA-request bills approved by
the BOG are introduced in the upcoming legislative session.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

broad stakeholder network.

The Committee determines if a legislative proposal fulfills GR 12.2. If the Committee determines a
legislative proposal fulfills GR 12.2, the Committee conducts a thorough analysis of the issue,
discusses details with the WSBA entity offering the proposal, and ensures input is included from a

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

The Committee met three times and reviewed three legislative proposals for the 2020 legislative
session. One of these proposals became SB 6037 which passed both houses and was signed into law
on 3/27/2020. This law went into effect on 6/11/2020. The two other proposals that the Committee
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received were carefully reviewed but were ultimately withdrawn from consideration by their entity
sponsors. To ensure proper vetting of proposed legislation by a wide variety of practitioners and
stakeholders around the state, the Committee’s policies and procedures were modified by the Board
of Governors in January 2020 to expand the Committee’s membership from nine members to up to
thirty five members.

2020-2021 Goals:

The Committee will continue to work collaboratively with WSBA entities to thoroughly vet and
analyze legislative proposals impacting the practice of law and our justice system.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

The Senior Inclusion & Equity Specialist led the Committee members in a discussion and training
regarding WSBA inclusion and equity policies and procedures during the Committee’s first meeting.

Committee appointments follow WSBA'’s diversity guidelines and the Committee includes
representatives from multiple districts, a variety of practice areas, new/young lawyers, gender,
race/ethnicity and other factors.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The Committee practices a team-based approach in executing its charge: proposals are created
in collaboration with various WSBA entities and external stakeholders throughout the broader
legal community. In addition to the Committee playing a critical role within the organization,
individual members also play a critical role in reviewing legislative proposals from their own
unique perspective, area of practice, professional experience, and knowledge of the legislative
process (including key legislative stakeholders). Professionalism is a cornerstone of relationship
building and, ultimately, legislative success.

2) The work of the Committee is grounded in relationship building; similar to Washington’s
Legislature. The Committee continues to promote professionalism through various
communication mechanisms including its annual fall meetings and member training
opportunities.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?
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With a changing profession and evolving legislative dynamics, the Committee recognizes the critical
role new/young lawyers play in the long-term success of the Bar and WSBA'’s legislative agenda. The
Committee strives for institutional knowledge to be passed from longer-serving committee members
to new members such as new/young lawyers. The knowledge shared is not only related to legislative
and public policy issues, but also information related to the profession itself.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) Legislation recommended by the Committee and supported by the BOG that passes through the
legislature, such as the many Corporate Act Revisions Committee recommendations, directly
impact the public as they become state laws. These legislative proposals are carefully vetted to
best ensure that they will positively impact both the legal community and the public.

2) The Committee works to ensure that any legislative proposal it receives has been properly vetted
by stakeholders, often in the public, that will be affected by, or be able to offer feedback and
suggestions to, the proposed legislation.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (11) Male (13) No Response (2)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native (1)

Asian (3) Hispanic/Latinx

Middle-Eastern Descent (1) Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (18) Multi-Racial/Biracial

Not Listed No Response (3)

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (1)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (18)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (7)

Disability:
Yes (2) No (21)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Limited License Legal Technician (LLLT) Board
Chair: Steve Crossland
Staff Liaison: Renata Garcia
Board of Governors Liaison: Peter J. Grabicki
Size of Committee: 15

Direct Expenses: $14,000
Indirect Expenses: $88,057
Number of Applicants for FY21 | 7

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Limited License Legal Technician (LLLT) Board derives its authority from the Washington Supreme
Court under Rule 28 of the Admission and Practice Rules (APR), adopted effective September 1, 2012.
By order of the Court, the WSBA is to administer and fund the LLLT Board and the program.

APR 28 authorizes persons who meet certain educational and licensing requirements to advise clients
on specific areas of law. The only currently approved practice area is domestic relations (family law).
The Supreme Court established the LLLT Board to oversee the LLLT license.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

From 2013-2016, the LLLT Board concentrated on creating the operational details for the LLLT license;
the LLLT Board is now focusing on the promotion, expansion, and development of the license.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

New Practice Areas
Two new practice areas were recommended to the Supreme Court for approval: (1) Administrative
Law and (2) Eviction and Debt Assistance.
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Licensing Barriers

In an effort to address many of the licensure barriers identified by LLLTs and LLLT candidates, the LLLT
Board recommended several amendments for the Court’s consideration, including reduction of the
years of substantive legal experience required for licensure.

Working Toward Self-Sufficiency/Business Plan

The LLLT Board developed a 10-year business plan that aligns its goal to achieve self-sufficiency with
its original Court mandate to recommend new practice areas to address unmet civil legal needs in the
state.

Mandatory Supplemental Education

The LLLT Board successfully developed the required training for currently licensed LLLTs and
prospective LLLTs who wish to get a head start on this supplemental requirement. The required
training was offered in July 2019 (online sessions) and August 2019 (in-person sessions). LLLTs and
candidates may complete the online sessions on demand, as needed. Another opportunity to obtain
the required in-person sessions was scheduled to take place in June 2020. Due to COVID-19, the in-
person requirement was lifted and the sessions were offered synchronously online.

Core Education Accessibility

The LLLT Board has worked with representatives from community colleges that offer the LLLT core
curriculum in hopes of developing a standard curriculum for the LLLT courses that can be shared
between colleges including Wenatchee Valley College and Yakima Valley College. South Puget Sound
Community College also expressed interest in applying to teach the LLLT core education and was
provided with an application in spring 2020.

Outreach
The LLLT Board worked with staff to create additional outreach materials about the license including
rack cards to be distributed to the general public.
e The LLLT license has been included in presentation materials regarding innovative
pathways to the practice of law. In February 2020, staff and a volunteer LLLT presented to
Legal Pathways students at UW Tacoma. (Legal Pathways is a new initiative funded by the
legislature to support law-related opportunities and promote the success of students
interested in pursuing law school, professional studies related to law, and law-related
careers.) In an effort to strengthen outreach to underrepresented groups, staff also gave
a presentation to the WSBA Diversity Committee to share information about the license
and seek input.
e InJune 2020 the LLLT Board started hosting virtual roundtables as a way to connect with
LLLT candidates and educators, answer questions, and engage in thoughtful discussions
regarding the license.
e Bench Card: The LLLT Board in collaboration with staff and judicial officers developed a
LLLT bench card for distribution to judicial officers across the state. The bench card’s
content was reviewed by multiple stakeholders and approved by AOC legal services in
June 2020.

Outreach efforts to increase the LLLT pipeline will not resume unless the Court decides not to sunset
the program or extends the timeline for licensure. Instead, the LLLT Board will continue to reach out
to those already in the pipeline and, to the extent possible, support their efforts to achieve licensure
before the deadline established by the Court.
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Addressing the Court’s decision to sunset the LLLT Program

The LLLT Board recently asked the Court to reconsider its decision to sunset the LLLT program or, at a
minimum, extend the deadline to provide those in the pipeline sufficient opportunity to complete all
licensing requirements. The Court then ordered the following changes.

e The substantive law-related work experience requirement for licensing has been reduced
from 3,000 to 1,500 hours.

e Candidates who have met all other requirements by July 31, 2021 now have until July 31,
2022 to complete their substantive law-related work experience under the supervision of a
lawyer.

The LLLT Board submitted an additional request to the Supreme Court which asked that candidates
be allowed to take the LLLT core education courses out of sequence, so that they have the
opportunity to enroll in the last cohort of Family Law courses offered in fall 2020 at Whatcom
Community College.

On August 6, 2020, the Washington Supreme Court entered an Order suspending APR 28 Regulation
3(B)(1)(a) which requires that the prerequisite core education courses be completed prior to enrolling
in the Family Law practice area courses.

2020-2021 Goals:

Reduce barriers to LLLT licensure

In light of the Court’s decision to sunset the LLLT program, the Board will continue to assess barriers
to LLLT licensure so that more candidates might have the opportunity to obtain their license by July
31, 2022.

In August, the LLLT Board submitted a request that the Court eliminate the requirement that
candidates pass the PCC exam in order to obtain their LLLT license. The LLLT Board recommended
that the Court either 1) waive the PCCE requirement entirely or 2) allow an LLLT candidate to present
proof of passing the PCCE as a requirement of licensing rather than a qualification to sit for the LLLT
examination. If the Court chooses the second option, the LLLT Board recommends giving LLLT
candidates until July 2022 to complete this requirement as they may need to obtain up to one year of
legal experience prior to sitting for the PCCE under the FastTrack program.

The LLLT Board also requested that the Court consider removing the PCCE requirement for those who
have passed the Paralegal Advanced Competency Exam (PACE). The PACE is a higher-level, duplicative
exam.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The LLLT Board seeks members from different backgrounds and experiences and work together
to foster a positive work environment in concert with WSBA’s commitment to diversity and
inclusion.
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2) Yes, the LLLT Board received training from WSBA'’s Diversity Specialist. The goal is to offer the
training on an annual basis.

3) The LLLT Board seeks input from all WSBA members as well as the legal community in general
when making important decisions such as developing a new practice area.

4) APR 28 has been amended at the request of the LLLT Board to allow LLLTs and LPOs as well as
attorneys with judicial and emeritus pro bono status to serve as Board members, to apply for
Board positions.

5) The core curriculum educational approval process reflects the LLLT Board’s commitment to
diversity in that it requires any institution offering the core curriculum to have diversity, inclusion,
and equal access policies and practices in place. The LLLT Board also sought to increase diversity
within the LLLT profession by extending the limited time waiver (see APR 28 Regulation 4) to
December 31, 2023 in order to allow a group of candidates qualified by work experience rather
than by education to enroll in the practice area classes. This increases access to justice by
removing some of the barriers that may prevent qualified potential LLLTs from entering into the
profession. The ongoing effort to provide a pathway to financial aid for the practice area classes
also aims to provide more opportunities to join the LLLT profession to prospective applicants
from diverse socio-economic backgrounds.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The LLLT Board has set up rules of professional conduct and a disciplinary system for LLLTs. The
Board also requires LLLTs to carry malpractice insurance and conform to the same rules as
lawyers regarding IOLTA accounts.

2) The LLLT Board has worked to promote LLLTs in the legal community and educate all legal
professionals about the permitted scope and models for LLLT practice, as well as highlighting the
ways in which collaboration with LLLTs can contribute to the efficiency and accessibility of any
legal practice.

3) See answer 1 above. LLLTs must abide by the LLLT rules of professional conduct and are subject
to professional discipline.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) All WSBA members are invited to provide comments on rules and new practice area suggestions
and development, including new and young lawyers.
2) N/A

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) The creation of LLLTs increases access to justice by providing affordable legal services at
significantly lower rates than attorneys. Those in need of legal help, who may not be able to
afford an attorney, now have the option of hiring a LLLT at a reduced cost. The LLLT pathway also
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increases access to justice for those interested in joining the legal profession without the high
cost of law school.

2) The Board invited public comment regarding the Consumer, Money, and Debt practice area that
is under consideration. It has also spread awareness about the LLLT license and services through
an informational video and outreach events throughout the state.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (10) Male (1) No Response (2)
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native

Asian Hispanic/Latinx

Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (10) Multi-Racial/Biracial

Not Listed No Response (3)

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (4)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (9)

Disability:
Yes (1) No (9)

170



2019-2020

WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Limited Practice Board
Chair: David Bastian
Staff Liaison: Renata Garcia
Board of Governors Liaison: Carla Higginson
Size of Committee: 9

Direct Expenses: $3,00.00
Indirect Expenses: $31,833
Number of Applicants for FY21 | 6

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Limited Practice Board (LPB) derives its authority from the Washington Supreme Court under rule
12 of the Admission and Practice Rules (APR). The purpose of the LPB is to oversee the Limited
Practice Officer (LPO) license program.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The LPB will meet four to six times a year to develop and grade the LPO exam and discuss issues and
items of concern or that are relevant to the LPO license.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

1) Outreach: The LPB is working with staff to create outreach materials for the program
including rack cards and a promotional video. The LPO license has been included in
presentation materials regarding innovative pathways to the practice of law. In
February 2020, staff and a volunteer LPO presented to Legal Pathways students at UW
Tacoma. (Legal Pathways is a new initiative funded by the legislature to support law-
related opportunities and promote the success of students interested in pursuing law
school, professional studies related to law, and law-related careers.) In an effort to
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strengthen outreach to underrepresented groups, staff also gave a presentation to the
WSBA Diversity Committee to share information about the license and seek input.

2) Practice Questions: The LPB received an inquiry as to whether LPOs are permitted to
select and prepare IRS tax forms necessary for compliance with the Foreign
Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 (FIRPTA). The Board discussed the
question at its October 2019 meeting and determined that LPOs are not authorized to
select and prepare IRS tax forms - including 8288, 8288A, and 8288B - required for
compliance with FIRPTA. A reminder that LPOs are only authorized to select and
prepare forms approved by the LPB was sent to all LPOs. Forms approved by the LPB
are identified on the WSBA website. The Board has received subsequent inquiries
regarding FIRPTA from attorneys and LPOs since then and is welcoming requests for
discussion at future meetings.

3) Request for Support re Legislation Impacting LPO Employment: The Board received requests
from LPOs to support their petition to reconsider House Bill 1450 regarding non-compete
clauses or agreements. It was brought to the Board’s attention that LPOs making over
$100,000 are bound by non-compete clauses making it very difficult for LPOs in remote
locations to find employment or start their own business after leaving “big title companies.”
The issue appears to be worsened by the economic impact of COVID-19. The Board will
discuss the request at its next meeting and would welcome the BOG’s input on this matter.

2020-2021 Goals:

1) Continue to work with Ergometrics to develop the LPO examination.

2) Review and make changes to LPO forms, as needed.

3) Review bank of LPO multiple choice and essay questions to ensure content and
format appropriately assess the required knowledge and skills to practice law as an
LPO.

4) Review APR 12 requirement that all active LPOs, including those who are on Active
status but currently unemployed, demonstrate financial responsibility.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1)
2)

3)
4)

5)

The LPB is dedicated to furthering WSBA’s commitment to diversity and inclusion through Board
recruitment and ongoing interactions with each other, members, and the general public.

Yes, the LPB received training from WSBA’s Inclusion and Equity Specialist. The goal is to have this
training on an annual basis as part of new board member orientation.

N/A

The equity and inclusion training provided board members with tools to promote a culture of
inclusion within the board.

The LPO license provides an opportunity to enter the legal profession, albeit in limited practice,
for those who have had barriers to completing higher education.

172



2019-2020

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) LPB members are invited to speak at LPO Continuing Education seminars; examples of situations
regarding the LPO Rules of Professional Conduct are a popular topic.

2) N/A

3) LPOs must abide by the LPO rules of professional conduct and are subject to professional
discipline.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) There is no “years-of-practice” requirement for the LPB so all are welcome to apply. However,
members of the LPB tend to be more experienced.

2) As members of the bar, new and young LPOs, are now able to take advantage of many WSBA
services including debt management, free and low cost CLEs and leadership opportunities.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) LPOs work directly with members of the public as they are licensed to select, prepare, and
complete approved documents for use in closing a loan, extension of credit, sale, or other
transfer of real or personal property.

2) No, The Board works to ensure that any legislative proposal it receives has been properly vetted
by stakeholders, often in the public, that will be affected by, or be able to offer feedback and
suggestions to, the proposed legislation.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff
Gender:
Female 3 Male 6 Multix Non-Binary x Transgender x Two-spirit x Not Listed x No response 1

Ethnicity:
American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Native x Asian x
Black/African-American/African Descent x Hispanic/Latinx 1
Middle-Eastern Descent x Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian x
White/European Descent 7 Multi-Racial/Biracial x
Not Listed x

No response 1

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual x Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer x Heterosexual 6
Two-spirit x Multiple orientations x Not Listed x No response 3
Disability:
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: | Mandatory Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) Board
Chair: Asia Wright
Staff Liaison: Adelaine Shay
Board of Governors Liaison: Russell Knight
Size of Committee: 7

Direct Expenses: $2,500
Indirect Expenses: $66,684
Number of Applicants for FY21 | 2

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Mandatory Continuing Legal Education Board (MCLE Board) derives its authority from the
Washington Supreme Court under Admission and Practice Rule (APR) 11. The purpose of the MCLE
Board is to oversee the administration of the MCLE program and requirements and ensure compliance
by WSBA members.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The Supreme Court-appointed MCLE Board typically meets five times each year to fulfill its duties as
listed in APR 11. The MCLE Board considers MCLE policy issues, determines and adjusts fees, reviews
and suggests amendments or regulations to APR 11, audits approved courses to ensure compliance
with the standards set forth in APR 11, and approves mentoring programs that meet requirements and
standards established by the MCLE Board for MCLE credit under APR 11.

The MCLE Board considers petitions of undue hardship and determines when to waive or
modify a lawyer’s, LLLT’s, or LPO’s compliance with the requirements of APR 11. The MCLE
Board accredits courses and educational programs that satisfy the educational requirements
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of APR 11. The MCLE Board delegates the initial review of educational activities and undue
hardship petitions to the Bar staff subject to MCLE Board review and approval. The MCLE
Board reviews any determinations or decisions regarding approval of activities made by the
Bar staff that adversely affect any lawyer, LLLT, or LPO or sponsor upon request of the
lawyer, LLLT, LPO, sponsor, or Bar staff.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

1) Completed and resolved by motion 67 petitions from members (through August 7,
2020) for modifications and waivers of one or more MCLE requirements.

2) Audited 14 courses, provided an audit report to the MCLE Board, and provided
detailed reports to each sponsor regarding the strengths and weaknesses of the
course as well as recommendations for improvement.

3) The MCLE Board has started to work on a suggested amendment to the Admission
and Practice Rule (APR) 11 ethics requirement.

2020-2021 Goals:

1) MCLE Board members have a goal of auditing two or more accredited sponsor courses
each.

2) Taking into consideration feedback from the public, licensed legal professionals, and
the WSBA Board of Governors, the MCLE Board will determine whether to
recommend to the WA Supreme Court an amendment to the Admission and Practice
Rule (APR) 11 ethics requirement.

3) Continue to work to increase the diversity of the MCLE Board.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The Board has not attempted to use tools provided by WSBA.

2) Participated in a diversity training presented by the WSBA Inclusion and Equity Specialist in
October 2019.

3) The MCLE Board continues to seek members who represent diversity in geography, and all
other diversity criteria used by the WSBA. In addition, the MCLE Board has done targeted
outreach to members and/or sponsors regarding topics that the Board has considered
during the year. Also, the Board routinely receives and considers input from members
affected by the MCLE rules when considering petitions filed by the members.

4) The MCLE Board fosters an atmosphere of civility and collegiality insofar as how it receives
comments from Bar members, staff, fellow board members and others. This is accomplished
by actively listening to all and engaging in discussions focused on fairness and similar
treatment of issues. Consistency in the application of the rules is maintained by active
discussion on the merits with the goal being consensus.

5) Although this may or may not apply directly or only to members from historically
underrepresented groups, the MCLE rules and the Board’s considerations include requests
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for accommodation of various disabilities as well as consideration of issues causing “undue
hardship” and financial issues.

6) The MCLE Board previously sent a suggested amendment of the ethics requirement to the
Washington Supreme Court in 2019, which the Supreme Court rejected. Now, the MCLE
Board is interested in recommending a related but much narrower amendment to the rule,
to focus on a one-credit equity, inclusion, and mitigation of bias requirement. The MCLE
Board is currently soliciting feedback. The MCLE Board plans to ask the Board of Governors
for support at the September Board of Governors meeting. Taking into consideration
feedback from the public, licensed legal professionals, and the WSBA Board of Governors,
the MCLE Board will determine whether to recommend to the WA Supreme Court an
amendment to the Admission and Practice Rule (APR) 11 ethics requirement in October of
2020.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The MCLE Board is primarily regulatory. However, through auditing courses, the Board is able to
gauge and monitor the level of professionalism presented during seminars. In addition, the
Board treats members with respect and courtesy while enforcing the Supreme Court's MCLE
requirements and ensuring protection of the public.

2) The Board seeks to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, and clients by
reviewing and approving quality continuing legal education courses that provide the skills
necessary for making and maintaining successful relationships.

3) Although the Board itself is not involved in raising such awareness, the Supreme Court's MCLE
rules that are applied by the Board do allow for accreditation of MCLE activities that raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior.

4) The MCLE Board is considering an amendment to require that, of the six required ethics credits
for legal professionals, one credit be required in equity, inclusion, and the mitigation of bias.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) The MCLE Board continues to seek members who represent new and young lawyers.
2) The Board supports new and young lawyers by encouraging mentorship as a tool for professional
and personal development.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) Asstated in APR 11 the purpose of “Mandatory continuing legal education (MCLE) is intended to
enhance lawyers’, LLLTs’, and LPOs’ legal services to their clients and protect the public by
assisting lawyers, LLLTs, and LPOs in maintaining and developing their competence as defined in
RPC 1.1 or equivalent rule for LLLTs and LPOs, fitness to practice as defined in APR 20, and
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character as defined in APR 20. These rules set forth the minimum continuing legal education
requirements for lawyers, LLLTs, and LPOs to accomplish this purpose.”

2) The WA Supreme Court appoints one public member to serve on the MCLE Board. MCLE Board
meetings are open to the public, except for when the MCLE Board is discussing confidential
information as defined in APR 11(k). Additionally all MCLE Board minutes are posted on the WSBA
website.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (4) Male (3) No Response
Transgender Two-spirit Multi

Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent (1)
Native

Asian Hispanic/Latinx

Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian (1)
White/European Descent (4) Multi-Racial/Biracial (1)

Not Listed No Response

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer (1)
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (4)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (2)

Disability:
Yes No (6)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: Practice of Law Board

Chair: Douglas Walsh, Interim Chair.

Staff Liaison: Julie Shankland

Board of Governors Liaison: Sunitha Anjilvel

Size of Committee: 13; minimum of five required to be persons not currently

licensed to practice law.

Direct Expenses: $12,000

Indirect Expenses: $33,386

Number of Applicants for FY21 | 8
(October 1, 2020 —September 30,
2021)

Purpose:

The Practice of Law Board (POLB) was established by the Washington Supreme Court in 2002 and
derives its authority from GR 25 as amended in December 2018, to follow the Court’s 2015 Order
reconstituting the Board and refocusing its mission. In 2015, the Court directed the Board to add a
new focus on educating the public about how to receive competent legal assistance and increase its
focus on considering new avenues for other legal professionals to provide legaland law-related
services.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

In pursuit of the above directive, the POLB seeks to reach beyond the mainstream to identify cutting
edge strategiesthat trackand anticipate developments in the profession, in technology, the market for
legal services, and in consumer needs generally.

The POLB works with strategic affiliatesto develop new ideas on delivering safe, effective and efficient
legal services to everyone in the State of Washington, while assisting with public protection from
unauthorized delivery of legal services, in support of this State's reputation as a national leader in
innovative legal practice. The POLB works with stakeholders to think strategically, creatively and

179



2019-2020

beyond existing models of dispute resolution and legal service delivery, including assisting licensed legal
professionals in integrating new ideas while maintaining effective and successful legal practices.

The POLB appointed a liaison to the Access to Justice Board to ensure that the two boards have
frequent communication and to prevent duplication of effort. The POLB is working closely with the
ATJ Board Technology Committee on a current project and will likely partner on additional projects.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

1.

Developed suggested changesto both GR 25 and GR 24. The changes were withdrawn for
further work and data collection after a stakeholder meeting. The Board made arecords
request to the Washington Attorney General’s Office for complaints relating to public harm
caused by legal services provided by people not licensed to practice law. The Board has
received four installments of records and continues to process the information. Board
member Michael Cherry is leading the Boardin considering ways to develop data driven
models of legal services delivery that will provide an analytical structure to determine how to
move forward with this concept (regulating online legal services). Several Board members
are working with members of the Aces to Justice Board’s Technology Committee on this
concept.

Continued to work, slowly, with a third-party contractor on development of the Legal Health
Check Up App. Discussions with the contractor are ongoing and the Board plans to either
complete the project in the next six months, or reimagine the original ideas based on COVID-
19 related changes in legal needs.

Met with representatives from Legal Shield regarding proposed legislation.

Invited Courthouse Facilitators to attend a future meeting to provide input on the need for
assistance with education resources. The Board will consider this input earlyin the next fiscal
year.

Reviewed and provided input on an Amicus Request related to unauthorized practice of law.
Received 28 complaints alleging unauthorized practice of law. Five of the complaints were
closed without referral; 6 were referred to appropriate investigative agencies; and 17 remain
pending. The Board has received 10 complaints in the last month—explaining the relatively
high number of pending complaints.

2020-2021 Goals:

1.

Complete and launch the Legal Health Check Up Application. (Either using the
original plan or a revised plan based on changes in needrelated to COVID-19). The
Board may work with stakeholders, including the ATJ Technology and Delivery of
Legal Services Committees, and WSBA staff to complete this project.

Continue to analyze and collect information to determine the recommended
approach to encouraging innovation in the delivery of legal services while
protecting the public. Working to use a data driven approach to understanding
whether additional regulations are needed.

Determine what role the POLB should play in assisting Courthouse Facilitator
Programs with access to high quality, affordable educational programming.
Continue to address and refer unauthorized practice of law complaints.

Continue to determine the future of the Practice of Law Board.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity, equity and inclusion:
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How have you elicited input from a variety of perspectivesin your decision-making? What have you
done to promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee ? What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? Other?

1) The Boardand staff consult the Diversity Dictionary and the Accessible Event Planning Guide to
assist the Board.

2) The Board will seek training from the WSBA Equity and Justice Team.

3) Diversity is considered when the POLB members are appointed and is considered in every
appointment request sent to the Court. This POLB’s success in its “blue sky” mission will depend
heavily on diversity.

4) The Boardactively seeks diverse perspectives from Board members and from stakeholders.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? Does it
seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? Other?

1) The POLB s dedicated to promoting professionalism through its purpose of promoting
appropriate and competent legal services and ensuring that the public receives legal services
from those dedicatedto being ethical, professional, competent and appropriate to the needs of
the public.

Please report how this committee/board is incorporating new and young lawyers and/or
their perspectives into its work:

How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? Other?

1) The POLB has new and young lawyer members and will continue to actively seek new and young
lawyer participation.
2) The POLB has heard presentations from new and young lawyers.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
How is the public impacted by your work? Has the committee/board sought input from the public,
and/or communicated its work to the public? Other?

1) The public will be directly affected when the Legal Health Check Up is launched. The public will
also be directly affectedif the Court adopts regulations around online delivery of legal services.

2) Yes. TheBoard, with the ATJ Technology Committee and WSBA has held events to gather
stakeholder and public input.

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff
Gender:
Female4 Male6 Multix Non-Binary x Transgenderx Two-spirit x Not Listedx No response 3

Ethnicity:
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American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Native x Asian 1
Black/African-American/African Descent 1 Hispanic/Latinx x

Middle-Eastern Descent x Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian x
White/European Descent 8 Multi-Racial/Biracial x

Not Listed x

No response 3

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual x Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer x Heterosexual 7
Two-spirit x Multiple orientations x Not Listed x No response 4
Disability:

Yesl No9 Noresponse 3
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT FY 20: October 2019 — September 2020

Pro Bono and Public Service Committee Size of Committee: 14

Chairs: Nicholas Larson, Nancy Chupp Direct expenses: $2,000

Staff Liaison: Paige Hardy, Diana Singleton Indirect expenses: $18,119
BOG Liaison: Kim Hunter Number of FY20 Applicants: 10

Background & Purpose:
The Pro Bono and Public Service Committee’s (Committee) purpose is to enhance a culture of service.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

The Committee fulfills its purpose by promoting opportunities and best practices that encourage
WSBA members to engage in pro bono and public service, with a particular emphasis on services to
low and moderate income individuals.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

The Committee established workgroups to accomplish the following tasks, and to carry out the
following future goals:

1) Pro Bono Policy/Rules Workgroup:

a) Received BOG approval of draft model pro bono policies that law firms, government agencies,
and in-house legal departments can adopt, adapt, and implement internally to enhance the
culture of pro bono within their company or organization.

i) Promulgating and publicizing the model policies using WSBA communication channels,
the soon to be updated Pro Bono WA website, and the committee’s networks with the
pro bono and legal aid community.

b) Drafted statement of support to proposed Comment to RPC 6.5

c) Drafted statement of support for MCLE Board’s proposal to make mandatory that one of the
six ethics credits address implicit and explicit bias.

d) Analyzed WSBA emeritus pro bono status and analogues from other states related to impact
on the number of pro bono attorneys in the state, identified potential barriers for converting
to emeritus status, and developed possible solutions to those barriers—such as reducing the
number of years of practice required.

i) Drafted proposed amendments and potential improvements to the emeritus pro bono
status guidelines, and soliciting feedback from stakeholders within WSBA as well as
across the state,

ii) Submitted proposed amendments to BOG for review and approval.

iii) Received BOG approval in July 2020 for proposed bylaw amendment. Workgroup will
work with the Office of General Counsel to move forward with the Supreme Court’s rule
change process via GR 9.

2) Strategic Planning Workgroup:

a) Created a strategic planning workgroup to continually assess the ongoing mission, values,
goals, structure, and work of the Committee. This includes contemplating recruitment
techniques that center diversifying the committee, as well as making it more inclusive and
equitable.

3) CLE Workgroup:
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a)

b)

Developed and promoted CLE programs focused on topics relevant to pro bono work,
including the October 2019 Legal Lunchbox focused on pro bono representation in
administrative law hearings and the October 2020 Legal Lunchbox focusing on Family Law
issues.

Actively working with the law schools in the state to create further CLEs.

4) Publications Workgroup:

a)

b)
c)

Produced, in collaboration with partners, several articles in the October/November 2019 NW
Lawyer Magazine highlighting pro bono achievements throughout Washington.

Working to produce articles for the October 2020 NW Lawyer Magazine.

Engaging in discussions with pro bono providers throughout the state to offer promotional
opportunities for such programs via WSBA communication channels, such as articles in the
NWLawyer or blog posts on the NWSidebar.

5) Technology:

a)

b)

Reviewed the pro bono portal (www.probonowa.net), the existing online clearinghouse for
pro bono opportunities in Washington and began to identify areas for improvement, such as
user experience, information accessibility, and website navigation.

Identified stakeholders, such as the Seattle Pro Bono Coordinators and the Access to Justice
Board Technology Committee and Communications Committee for a larger workgroup to
address and improve the portal.

Started holding regular meetings with Stakeholders in an effort to improve
www.probonowa.net with the goal to finalize the website before the end of FY20 or early in
FY21.

Additionally, the Committee continues to develop and implement a liaison program by which it
assigns one or more committee members to most of the organizations active in the pro bono space
throughout the state, including the Access to Justice Board, the Volunteer Legal Programs, Qualified
Legal Service Providers, Minority Bar Associations, county bar associations, and the three law schools.
This outreach is ongoing and multi-directional, and has resulted in the conceptualization of new CLE

opportunities and articles for publication, as well as increased collaboration and communication

between the Committee and these organizations across the state.

2019-2020 Goals:

Continue conducting the liaison program to foster communication and collaboration with pro
bono providers and organizations statewide.
Develop outreach to the public to ensure that the Committee’s work is responsive to the
needs of low-to-moderate income Washington residents.
Continue the workgroup projects set forth above, including the following:
0 Create multiple CLEs on topics relevant to pro bono work and promote them to WSBA
members as a benefit for volunteering with a QLSP;
0 Draft and submit proposed Emeritus Pro Bono-related rule changes to the Supreme
Court; Create and publish articles publicizing issues surrounding pro bono;
0 Promulgate and promote model pro bono policies and look for ways to encourage
adoption statewide;
0 Improve probonowa.net and ensure its ongoing viability and relevance; and
0 Continue to identify rules and policies that might inhibit participation in pro bono
work and seek ways to remove such barriers

Please report how this committee/board is addressing diversity:

184


http://www.probonowa.net/

1)

1)
2)

3)

4)
5)

6)

Are you using any of the tools provided by WSBA and if so, how? 2) Have you sought out
training or consultation from the Inclusion and Equity Specialist? 3) How have you elicited
input from a variety of perspectives in your decision-making? 4) What have you done to
promote a culture of inclusion within the board or committee? 5) What has your
committee/board done to promote equitable conditions for members from historically
underrepresented backgrounds to enter, stay, thrive, and eventually lead the profession? 6)
Other?

The Committee is planning to devote scheduled meeting time to diversity and inclusion
training by WSBA staff.

The Committee is planning to hold part 2 of the training when in-person meetings can
resume.

The co-chairs worked to solicit input from every Committee member regarding next steps in
the Committee’s future. Similarly, the Committee’s workgroups operate democratically with
significant opportunity for participation by all members.

The co-chairs sought out as much participation as possible from the entire group.

The Committee has carefully considered equity and inclusion as we have sought to fill out our
Committee for the coming year, and have actively reached out to members of minority bar
associations and groups with historically underrepresented backgrounds for potential
members. Although we seek to encourage the promotion of equity with all members of the
committee, we can absolutely work toward incorporating more inclusive and equitable
practices. This could be in consultation with the Inclusion and Equity Specialist or through an
outside facilitator.

N/A

Please report how this committee/board is addressing professionalism:

1) Does the committee/board’s work promote respect and civility within the legal community? 2) Does
it seek to improve relationships between and among lawyers, judges, staff and clients? 3) Does it raise
awareness about the causes and/or consequences of unprofessional behavior? 4) Other?

1)

2)

3)

4)

The Committee’s primary objective is to promote the culture of service, specifically pro bono
work, in the legal profession. Not only does this work align with GR 12.2, the preamble to the
Rules of Professional Conduct, or RPC 6.1, the committee seeks ways to make volunteering
easier for lawyers through its work on changes the rules for emeritus pro bono, model pro
bono policies, and outreach to entities statewide.

Yes. The Committee is actively working to increase collaboration and communication among
organizations that provide pro bono services, and is actively working to encourage greater
participation by lawyers in pro bono work. For example, the committee worked with the
Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH) and several Administrative Law Judges to put on a
Legal Lunchbox in October 2019. We also made sure that several Committee members were
in attendance at the recent Goldmark Luncheon benefitting LFW. The Committee Co-Chairs
are also liaisons to the King County Bar Association and the Access to Justice Board to stay
apprised of the needs of the legal aid communities.

Yes, we promote the idea that it is ethically required for attorneys to do pro bono work and
we week to promote as many pro bono opportunities as possible to encourage WSBA
attorneys a to meet the requirements of RPC 6.1, which states that attorneys “should aspire
to render at least thirty (30) hours of pro bono publico service each year.”

N/A

Please report how this committee/board is integrating new and young lawyers into its work:
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1) How have you brought new and young lawyers into your decision making process? 2) Has the
committee/board supported new and young lawyers by (for example) helping to find and prepare
them for employment, assisting with debt management, building community, and providing
leadership opportunities? 3) Other?

1) Several of our Committee members are new lawyers and we make sure that they are involved
in the broader Committee work, but are also contributing in meaningful ways to the
workgroups. Encouraging attorneys to commit to pro bono service is particularly valuable at
the early stages of an attorney’s legal career. Our Committee seeksto encourage new and
young lawyers to engage in those efforts.

2) The Committee encourages a variety of pro bono work, which is often engages with new
lawyers. Often Qualified Legal Service Providers have pro bono opportunities and CLEs that
are catered to attorneys new to the practice of law by training them in both substantive and
procedural areas of law.

3) The staff liaison has presented to the Young Lawyers Committee about the opportunities to
cross-collaborate with the Committee and members have been doing outgoing outreach with
all three law schools to connect law students to the work of the Committee.

Please report how this committee/board is addressing the needs of the public:
1) How is the public impacted by your work? 2) Has the committee/board sought input from the
public, and/or communicated its work to the public? 3) Other?

1) Our Committee works to increase pro bono publico work, which directly affects and increases
access to justice for the vast majority of the public that does not ordinarily enjoy legal counsel
due to the exorbitant costs of hiring private attorneys.

2) In this fiscal year, we have yet to prioritize communicating with or seeking additional input
from the public. All our meetings are public, however, and this priority will be emphasized as
we develop our strategic plan for the upcoming fiscal year to work with the communities that
we seek to serve.

3) N/A

FY20 Demographics: To Be Completed by WSBA Staff

Gender:

Female (10) Male (4) No Response
Transgender Two-spirit Multi
Non-Binary Not Listed

Ethnicity:

American Indian/Native American/Alaskan Black/African-American/African Descent
Native

Asian (1) Hispanic/Latinx (2)
Middle-Eastern Descent Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian
White/European Descent (11) Multi-Racial/Biracial

Not Listed No Response

Sexual Orientation:

Asexual Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Pansexual or Queer
Two-Spirit Heterosexual (13)
Multiple Orientations Not Listed

No Response (1)
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WSBA COMMITTEE/BOARD ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2020: October 1, 2019 — September 30, 2020

The mission of the Washington State Bar Association is to serve the public and the members of
the Bar, to ensure integrity of the legal profession, and to champion justice.

Name of Committee or Board: Washington Young Lawyers Committee
Chair: Jordan Couch
Staff Liaison: Julianne Unite
Board of Governors Liaison: Russell Knight
Size of Committee: 18

Direct Expenses: $15,000
Indirect Expenses: $63,620
Number of Applicants for FY21 6

(October 1, 2020 — September 30,

2021)

Purpose:

The Washington Young Lawyers Committee (WYLC) derives its authority from the WSBA Bylaws,
WSBA Board of Governors (BOG) Committees and Boards Policy, and WYLC Appointment Policy.

Per Section XII.A of the WSBA Bylaws, the WYLC'’s purpose is to encourage the interest and
participation of:

1) new and young lawyers and law students in the activities of the WSBA,;

2) developing and conducting programs of interest and value to new and young lawyers
consistent with the focus areas of public service and pro bono programs, transition to
practice, and member outreach and leadership; and upholding and supporting the Guiding
Principles of the WSBA.

Strategy to Fulfill Purpose:

This year’s focus on fulfilling the WYLC'’s purpose involves seven key areas:

Outreach and communication;
Debt;

Public Service and Leadership;
Rural Practice Project;

PwNPE
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5. Northwest Regional Summit;
6. ABA YLD Representation; and
7. PREP

The accomplishments and FY20 goals outlined in this document reflect how the work of the WYLC
addresses these priorities and fulfills the purpose of the WYLC. These priorities are focused on the
four key areas identified in the November 2014 new lawyer survey and July 25, 2015 Generative
Discussion of the BOG with the WYLC for key issues facing new and young lawyers: Employment,
Debt, Community, and Leadership.

This year, the WYLC replaced subcommittees with project teams to address discrete issues. Project
team members may involve constituents who are not members of the WYLC to help accomplish the
project team goals.

2019-2020 Accomplishments and Work in Progress:

2019-2020 Goals:
Outreach and Communication

1. The WYLC tasked a specific member, Past Chair Kim Sandher, with keeping social media
accounts updated with content to inform the public of the WYLC's activities.

2. Unfortunately, COVID-19 impacted the WYLC's ability to host socials/events/mixers as
originally planned. Planned socials in Pierce County and Skamania were cancelled and no
further socials are being planned until Washington’s phased approached progresses. Meetings
have taken place virtually via Zoom.

Debt

1. The debt project team presented a Loan Repayment Assistance Program (LRAP) bill to the
WYLC. The WYLC voted to forward the bill to the WSBA’s legislative affairs team. WYLC Chair-
elect Brian Neuharth is currently identifying and reaching out to stakeholders for additional
impute.

2. The debt project team is researching alternative approaches to addressing debt, including
income share agreements. The project team generally has met in alternating months to discuss
findings.

Public Service and Leadership

1. The Public Service and Leadership Award (PSLA) exists to connect and recognize new and young
lawyers that demonstrate values of public service and leadership. The WYLC received several
applications and voted to honored four new or young lawyers this year with the PSLA. Current
WYLC At-large member, and incoming Chair-elect Emily Ann Albrecht will write an article about
the PSLA recipients for and upcoming Washington State Bar News issue.

2. WYLC Chair Jordan Couch was recognized as the WSBA Outstanding Young Lawyer APEX Award
recipient this year.

Rural Practice Project

1. WYLC Access to Justice (ATJ) and Rural Recruitment and Retention (RRR) project team, led by
WYLC member Alixanne Pinkerton, met with the BOG’s rural practice project stakeholders and
staff regarding the results of their contacts with rural practitioners in Washington State.

2. The WSBA requested the WYLC to assist with research gathering for the rural practice project.
WYLC will assist with a specific focus on what will help new and young lawyers in underserved
rural areas. WYLC can connect with other groups who are already researching or involved with
rural community outreach, to gain information helpful to the issue of legal access in rural
communities in Washington State. WYLC could help identify who those entities are that WSBA
should be connecting with who have information helpful to the rural practice project.

Northwest Regional Summit
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1. After researching possibilities and value, the WYLC chose not to co-host the Northwest

Regional Summit in partnership with the Oregon New Lawyers Division in 2020.

Instead of a summit, the WYLC is working on establishing ongoing relationships with new and
young lawyers in Oregon, Ildaho, Montana, and South Dakota to collaborate on addressing the
legal needs of rural areas.

ABA YLD Representation

1.

The WYLC continued to provide the ABA YLD Meeting Scholarships for new and young lawyers
attending ABA meetings as delegates. No delegate spots went unfilled, maximizing
Washington’s voting power. Scholarship recipients reported to the WYLC regarding their
experiences and identified additional ABA opportunities of value to new and young lawyers.
Current WYLC At-large member and incoming Chair-elect Emily Albrecht served as the ABAYLD
District Representative for Washington and Oregon.

Due to the WYLC’s work this past y